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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS) AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Unaudited in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30, December 29, December 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017

Net revenues $ 247,356 $ 234,043 $ 718,284 $ 670,371
Cost of goods sold 136,181 122,748 411,958 362,849
Gross profit 111,175 111,295 306,326 307,522
Operating expenses:
Research and development 8,978 12,427 26,967 28,141
Selling, general and administrative 73,877 97,855 219,670 237,499
Total operating expenses 82,855 110,282 246,637 265,640
Operating income 28,320 1,013 59,689 41,882
Gain on divestiture — — — 8,000
Interest and other expense, net (2,858) (806) (7,875) (3,562)
Income before provision for income taxes 25,462 207 51,814 46,320
Provision for income taxes 7,185 6,754 17,630 12,628
Net income (loss) $ 18,277 $ (6,547) $ 34,184 $ 33,692

Net income (loss) per share - basic $ 036 $ 0.12) $ 066 $ 0.64

Net income (loss) per share - diluted $ 035 $ 0.12) $ 064 $ 0.63
Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 51,401 53,090 51,708 52,717

Diluted 52,822 53,090 53,184 53,285

Comprehensive income (loss) $ 13,214 $ (6,350) $ 24079 $ 39,353

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

Accounts receivable, less allowance of $3,383 at December 29, 2018 and $2,111 at March 31, 2018

Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Intangible assets, less accumulated amortization of $272,370 at December 29, 2018 and $249,278 at March 31, 2018

Goodwill
Deferred tax asset
Other long-term assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related costs
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Deferred tax liability
Other long-term liabilities

Total stockholders’ equity

Common stock, $0.01 par value; Authorized — 150,000,000 shares; Issued and outstanding — 50,992,734 shares at
December 29, 2018 and 52,342,965 shares at March 31, 2018

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

December 29, March 31,
2018 2018
(Unaudited)

$ 154,871  $ 180,169
167,641 151,226

168,936 160,799

24,449 28,983

515,897 521,177

351,108 332,156

134,724 156,589

210,723 211,395

3,702 3,961

11,483 12,061

$ 1,227,637 $ 1,237,339
$ 17,199 $ 194,259
62,579 55,265

51,811 69,519

79,693 65,660

211,282 384,703

326,618 59,423

18,441 6,526

28,167 34,258

510 523

531,131 503,955

140,584 266,942
(29,096) (18,991)

643,129 752,429

$ 1,227,637 $ 1,237,339

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Unaudited in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Acc(“)l:;:l:led
Additional Comprehensive Total
Shares Par Value Paid-in Capital Retained Earnings Income/(Loss) Stockholders’ Equity
Balance, March 31, 2018 52,343 $ 523 $ 503,955 $ 266,942 $ (18,991) $ 752,429
Employee stock purchase plan 45 1 1,779 — — 1,780
Exercise of stock options 75 1 2,830 — — 2,831
Shares repurchased (888) (©)] (4,552) (75,439) — (80,000)
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations 67 — — — — —
Stock-based compensation expense — — 3,379 — — 3,379
Cumulative effect of change in accounting standards — — — 1,177 — 1,177
Net loss — — — (2,819) — (2,819)
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (4,719) (4,719)
Balance, June 30, 2018 51,642 $ 516 $ 507,391 $ 189,861 $ (23,710) $ 674,058
Exercise of stock options 125 1 4,294 — — 4,295
Shares repurchased (182) ) 14,213 (14,211) — —
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations 40 1 — — — 1
Stock-based compensation expense — — 4,582 — — 4,582
Net income — — — 18,726 — 18,726
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (323) (323)
Balance, September 29, 2018 51,625 $ 516 $ 530,480 $ 194376 $ (24,033) $ 701,339
Employee stock purchase plan 22 — 1,474 — — 1,474
Exercise of stock options 66 1 2,320 — — 2,321
Shares repurchased 771) 7) (7,924) (72,069) — (80,000)
Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations 51 — (@)) — — (€))
Stock-based compensation expense — — 4,782 — — 4,782
Net income — — — 18,277 — 18,277
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (5,063) (5,063)
Balance, December 29, 2018 50,993 $ 510 $ 531,131 $ 140,584 §$ (29,096) $ 643,129

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Balance, April 1, 2017

Employee stock purchase plan

Exercise of stock options

Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations
Stock-based compensation expense

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Balance, July 1, 2017

Exercise of stock options

Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations
Stock-based compensation expense

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Balance, September 30, 2017

Employee stock purchase plan

Exercise of stock options

Issuance of restricted stock, net of cancellations
Stock-based compensation expense

Net loss

Other comprehensive income

Balance, December 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Unaudited in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Accgr:;]uel:ted
Additional Comprehensive Total

Shares Par Value Paid-in Capital Retained Earnings Income/(Loss) Stockholders’ Equity
52,255 $ 523 482,044 $ 289,916 $ (32,873) $ 739,610
58 — 1,621 — — 1,621
195 2 6,428 — — 6,430
14 — — — — —
— — 1,343 — — 1,343
— — — 20,137 — 20,137
= = = = 3,629 3,629
52,522 $ 525 491,436 $ 310,053 $ (29,244) $ 772,770
115 2 3,688 — — 3,690
57 — — — — —
= = 2,856 = = 2,856
—_ —_ —_ 20,102 —_ 20,102
— — — — 1,835 1,835
52,694 $ 527 497,980 $ 330,155 $ (27,409) $ 801,253
44 1 1,624 = — 1,625
597 6 23,112 — — 23,118
53 — — — — —
— — 3,161 — — 3,161

- - - (6,547) — (6,547)
— — — — 197 197
53,388 $ 534 525,877 $ 323,608 $ (27,212) $ 822,807




HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited in thousands)

Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30,
2018
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income 34,184 % 33,692
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortization 79,637 66,267
Impairment of assets 21,170 218
Stock-based compensation expense 12,743 7,360
Gain on divestiture — (8,000)
Provision for losses on accounts receivable and inventory 3,220 514
Other non-cash operating activities 1,038 398
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Change in accounts receivable (19,752) 8,204
Change in inventories (11,624) 17,460
Change in prepaid income taxes 1) 805
Change in other assets and other liabilities 12,100 17,747
Change in accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,928 18,058
Net cash provided by operating activities 138,643 162,723
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (105,245) (55,696)
Proceeds from divestiture — 9,000
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,314 1,627
Net cash used in investing activities (102,931) (45,069)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Term loan borrowings 347,780 —
Repayment of term loan borrowings (258,103) (45,054)
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 3,254 3,246
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 9,446 33,239
Share repurchases (160,000) —
Other financing activities — 579
Net cash used in financing activities (57,623) (7,990)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (3,387) 2,363
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (25,298) 112,027
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 180,169 139,564
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 154,871 $ 251,591
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid 9,492 $ 5,684
Income taxes paid 6,233 $ 7,320
Transfers from inventory to fixed assets for placement of Haemonetics equipment 12,100 $ 5,424

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Haemonetics Corporation ("Haemonetics" or the "Company") presented herein have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim financial information and
with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S.
GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of the Company's management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments)
considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated. Operating results for the nine months
ended December 29, 2018 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full fiscal year ending March 30, 2019 or any other interim
period. The Company has assessed its ability to continue as a going concern. As of December 29, 2018, the Company has concluded that substantial doubt
about its ability to continue as a going concern does not exist. These unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in the annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018.

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements to provide additional
evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require additional disclosure. The Company had no significant subsequent events.

2. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Standards Implemented
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Update No. 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). ASC Update No. 2014-09 stipulates that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. To
achieve this core principle, an entity should apply the following steps: (1) identify the contract(s) with a customer; (2) identify the performance obligations in
the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognize revenue
when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent Considerations
(Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net). The purpose of ASC Update No. 2016-08 is to clarify the guidance on principal versus agent considerations. It
includes indicators that help to determine whether an entity controls the specified good or service before it is transferred to the customer and to assist in
determining when the entity satisfied the performance obligation and as such, whether to recognize a gross or a net amount of consideration in its
consolidated statement of operations.

In April 2016, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations and
Licensing. The guidance clarifies that entities are not required to assess whether promised goods or services are performance obligations if they are
immaterial in the context of the contract. ASC Update No. 2016-10 also addresses how to determine whether promised goods or services are separately
identifiable and permits entities to make a policy election to treat shipping and handling costs as fulfillment activities. In addition, it clarifies key provisions in
Topic 606 related to licensing.

The Company adopted ASC Update No. 2014-09 on April 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective method. Under this method, entities recognize the
cumulative effect of applying the new standard at the date of initial application with no restatement of comparative periods presented. The cumulative effect
of applying the new standard resulted in an increase to opening retained earnings of $1.5 million upon adoption of Topic 606 in April 2018, primarily related
to deferred revenue associated with software contracts. Software revenue accounted for approximately 8.4% and 8.1% of total revenue for the three and nine
months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, and for approximately 8.5% and 8.4% of total revenue for the three and nine months ended December 30,
2017, respectively. The new standard has been applied only to those contracts that were not
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completed as of March 31, 2018. The impact of adopting ASC Update No. 2014-09 was not significant to individual financial statement line items in the
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss).

Other Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2016-16, Income Taxes (Topic 740). The guidance requires companies to recognize the income tax
effects of intercompany sales and transfers of assets, other than inventory, in the income statement as income tax expense (or benefit) in the period in which
the transfer occurs. The Company adopted ASC Update No. 2016-16 during the first quarter of fiscal 2019. The adoption of ASC Update No. 2016-16 did not
have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flow (Topic 230). The guidance reduces diversity in how certain cash receipts
and cash payments are presented and classified in the consolidated statements of cash flows. The Company adopted ASC Update No. 2016-15 during the first
quarter of fiscal 2019. The adoption of ASC Update No. 2016-15 did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2017-09, Compensation - Stock Compensation: Scope of Modification Accounting (Topic 718). The
guidance clarifies when to account for a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award as a modification. The Company adopted ASC
Update No. 2017-09 during the first quarter of fiscal 2019. The adoption of ASC Update No. 2017-09 did not have a material impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging: Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging Activities (Topic
815). The new guidance makes more financial and non-financial hedging strategies eligible for hedge accounting, amends the presentation and disclosure
requirements for hedging activities and changes how companies assess hedge effectiveness. The Company early adopted ASC Update No. 2017-12 during the
second quarter of fiscal 2019. The adoption of ASC Update No. 2017-12 did not have an impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements or the
classification of its designated and non-designated hedge contracts.

In August 2018, the Securities and Exchange Commission adopted amendments to certain disclosure requirements in Securities Act Release No. 33-10532,
Disclosure Update and Simplification. This amendment require companies to disclose a reconciliation of changes in stockholders’ equity to prior periods. A
presentation showing the activity for the year to date and quarter to date periods along with comparable prior year detail are shown in the disclosure.

3. RESTRUCTURING

On an ongoing basis, the Company reviews the global economy, the healthcare industry, and the markets in which it competes to identify opportunities for
efficiencies, enhance commercial capabilities, align its resources and offer its customers better solutions. In order to realize these opportunities, the Company
undertakes restructuring-type activities to transform its business.

During fiscal 2018, the Company launched a Complexity Reduction Initiative (the "2018 Program"), a company-wide restructuring program designed to
improve operational performance and reduce cost, freeing up resources to invest in accelerated growth. This program includes a reduction of headcount and
operating costs which will enable a more streamlined organizational structure. The Company expects to incur aggregate charges between $50 million and $60
million associated with these actions, of which it expects $35 million to $40 million will consist of severance and other employee costs and the remainder will
consist of other exit costs, primarily related to third party services. These charges, substantially all of which will result in cash outlays, will be incurred as the
specific actions required to execute on these initiatives are identified and approved and are expected to continue through fiscal 2020. During the three and
nine months ended December 29, 2018, the Company incurred $1.9 million and $7.3 million, respectively, of restructuring and turnaround costs under this
program. Total cumulative charges under this program are $43.8 million.

During fiscal 2017, the Company launched a restructuring program (the "2017 Program") designed to reposition its organization and improve its cost
structure. During the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, there were nominal restructuring and turnaround charges recorded under this program.
There were no charges recorded under this program during the three months ended December 30, 2017. During the nine months ended December 30, 2017,
the Company incurred $7.7 million of restructuring and turnaround costs under this program. The 2017 Program is substantially complete.



The following table summarizes the activity for restructuring reserves related to the 2018 Program and the 2017 Program for the nine months ended
December 29, 2018, substantially all of which relates to employee severance and other employee costs:

(In thousands) 2018 Program 2017 Program Total
Balance at March 31, 2018 $ 27,129 $ 1,406 $ 28,535
Costs incurred, net of reversals (957) (62) (1,019)
Payments (17,295) (1,022) (18,317)
Non-cash adjustments (96) 37 (59)
Balance at December 29, 2018 $ 8,781 $ 359 $ 9,140

The substantial majority of restructuring costs during the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 have been included as a component of selling,
general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income (loss). As of December 29, 2018, the Company had a
restructuring liability of $9.1 million, of which $8.6 million is payable within the next twelve months.

In addition to the restructuring costs included in the table above, during the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, the Company also incurred
costs of $2.4 million and $8.2 million, respectively, that do not constitute restructuring under ASC 420, Exit and Disposal Cost Obligations, which the
Company refers to as turnaround costs. These costs, substantially all of which have been included as a component of selling, general and administrative
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income, consist primarily of expenditures directly related to the restructuring actions and include
program management costs associated with the implementation of outsourcing initiatives and recent accounting standards.

The tables below present restructuring and turnaround costs by reportable segment:

Restructuring costs Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands) December 29,2018 December 30,2017 December 29,2018 December 30, 2017
Japan $ — 52 % 102 $ 163
EMEA 105 869 224 894
North America Plasma 22 555 (18) 555
All Other (821) 26,979 (1,327) 28,050
Total $ (694) $ 28,455 $ (1,019) $ 29,662
Turnaround costs Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(In thousands) December 29,2018 December 30,2017 December 29,2018 December 30, 2017
Japan $ — s — s — s —
EMEA 21 (161) 49 (135)
North America Plasma 45 229 86 578
All Other 2,382 2,775 8,105 9,463
Total $ 2,448 $ 2,843 $ 8,240 $ 9,906
Total restructuring and turnaround costs $ 1,754 $ 31,298 $ 7,221  $ 39,568

4. INCOME TAXES

The Company conducts business globally and reports its results of operations in a number of foreign jurisdictions in addition to the United States. The
Company's reported tax rate is impacted by the jurisdictional mix of earnings in any given period as the foreign jurisdictions in which it operates have tax
rates that differ from the U.S. statutory tax rate.

The Company's reported tax rate for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 was 28.2% and 34.0%, respectively. The tax rate for the three and

nine months ended December 29, 2018 includes a discrete stock compensation windfall benefit of $1.8 million and $5.8 million, respectively. The Company's
effective tax rate for the three and nine months ended December 29,
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2018 was negatively impacted by certain provisions of the recently enacted U.S. tax reform as discussed below. In addition, the effective tax rate for the nine
months ended December 29, 2018 is higher than the U.S. statutory tax rate primarily as a result of the jurisdictional mix of earnings, including an asset
impairment expense of $21.2 million recorded in pretax income for which no tax benefit was recognized as a result of the valuation allowance maintained
against its deferred tax assets in the impacted jurisdiction. Refer to Note 8, Property, Plant and Equipment for additional details.

During the three months ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, the Company reported an income tax provision of $7.2 million and $6.8 million,
respectively. During the nine months ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, the Company reported an income tax provision of $17.6 million and
$12.6 million, respectively. The change in the Company's tax provision for both the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 was primarily due to an
increase in the tax expense of its U.S. entity, which was impacted by the U.S. tax reform provisions, including Global Intangible Low Taxed Income, partially
offset by a discrete stock compensation windfall benefit.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2018, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Act") was enacted in the United States. In addition, the Securities and Exchange
Commission issued guidance under Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118, Income Tax Accounting Implications of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act that directed
taxpayers to consider the impact of the U.S. legislation as “provisional” when it does not have the necessary information available, prepared or analyzed
(including computations) in reasonable detail to complete its accounting for the change in tax law. As of December 29, 2018, the Company has completed its
accounting for the tax effects of the enactment of the Act. During the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, the Company recognized an
immaterial adjustment to the provisional tax expense estimate recorded related to the Act.

The Company has incorporated the other impacts of the Act that became effective in fiscal 2019 in the calculation of the year to date tax provision and
effective tax rate, including the provisions related to Global Intangible Low Taxed Income, Foreign Derived Intangible Income, Base Erosion Anti Abuse
Tax, as well as other provisions which limit tax deductibility of expenses.

The Company is in a three year cumulative loss position in the U.S. and, accordingly, maintains a valuation allowance against certain U.S. deferred tax assets.
Additionally, the Company also maintains a valuation allowance against certain other deferred tax assets primarily in Switzerland, Puerto Rico, Luxembourg
and France which it has concluded are not more-likely-than-not realizable.

5. EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”)

The following table provides a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share computations.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

December 29, December 30, December 29, December 30,
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Basic EPS
Net income (loss) $ 18,277 $ (6,547) $ 34,184 $ 33,692
Weighted average shares 51,401 53,090 51,708 52,717
Basic income (loss) per share $ 036 $ 0.12) $ 066 $ 0.64
Diluted EPS
Net income (loss) $ 18,277 % (6,547) $ 34,184 $ 33,692
Basic weighted average shares 51,401 53,090 51,708 52,717
Net effect of common stock equivalents 1,421 — 1,476 568
Diluted weighted average shares 52,822 53,090 53,184 53,285
Diluted income (loss) per share $ 035 $ 0.12) $ 064 $ 0.63

Basic earnings per share is calculated using the Company's weighted-average outstanding common stock. Diluted earnings per share is calculated using its
weighted-average outstanding common stock including the dilutive effect of stock awards as determined under the treasury stock method. For the three and
nine months ended December 29, 2018, weighted average shares outstanding, assuming dilution, excludes the impact of 0.2 million and 0.1 million anti-
dilutive shares, respectively. For the three months ended December 30, 2017, the Company recognized a net loss; therefore it excluded the impact of
outstanding stock awards from the diluted loss per share calculation as its inclusion would have an anti-dilutive effect. For the nine months
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ended December 30, 2017, weighted average shares outstanding, assuming dilution, excludes the impact of 0.5 million anti-dilutive shares.
Share Repurchase Program

On February 6, 2018, the Company announced that its Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $260 million of its outstanding common stock
from time to time, based on market conditions, through March 30, 2019. As of December 29, 2018, the Company had utilized the full $260 million share
repurchase authorization, which resulted in approximately 3.0 million total shares repurchased at an average price of $86.58 per share.

In May 2018, the Company completed a $100.0 million repurchase of its common stock pursuant to an accelerated share repurchase agreement ("ASR")
entered into with Citibank N.A (“Citibank”) in February 2018. The total number of shares repurchased under the ASR was approximately 1.4 million at an
average price per share upon final settlement of $72.51. In August 2018, the Company completed an additional $80.0 million repurchase of its common stock
pursuant to an ASR entered into with Citibank in June 2018. The total number of shares repurchased under the ASR was approximately 0.9 million at an
average price per share upon final settlement of $93.83. In December 2018, the Company repurchased the remaining $80.0 million of its common stock under
the Company's share repurchase authorization pursuant to an ASR entered into with Citibank in November 2018. The total number of shares repurchased
under the ASR was approximately 0.8 million at an average price per share upon final settlement of $103.74.

6. REVENUE

The Company's revenue recognition policy is to recognize revenues from product sales, software and services in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. Revenue is recognized when obligations under the terms of a contract with a customer are satisfied; this occurs with the
transfer of control of the Company’s goods or services. The Company considers revenue to be earned when all of the following criteria are met: it has a
contract with a customer that creates enforceable rights and obligations; promised products or services are identified; the transaction price, or the
consideration it expects to receive for transferring goods or providing services, is determinable and it has transferred control of the promised items to the
customer. A promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer is identified as a performance obligation. A contract’s transaction price
is allocated to each performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. Some of the Company’s contracts
have multiple performance obligations. For contracts with multiple performance obligations, the Company allocates the contract’s transaction price to each
performance obligation based on the estimated standalone selling prices of the good or service in the contract. For goods or services for which observable
standalone selling prices are not available, the Company uses an expected cost plus a margin approach to estimate the standalone selling price of each
performance obligation.

As of December 29, 2018, the Company had $25 million of its transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations related to executed contracts
with an original duration of one year or more. The Company expects to recognize approximately 56% of this amount as revenue within the next twelve
months and the remaining balance thereafter.

The Company adopted Topic 606 as of April 1, 2018, using the modified retrospective method. Under this method, entities recognize the cumulative effect of
applying the new standard at the date of initial application with no restatement of comparative periods presented. The cumulative effect of applying the new
standard resulted in an increase to opening retained earnings of $1.5 million upon adoption of Topic 606 on April 1, 2018, primarily related to deferred
revenue associated with software revenue. The new standard has been applied only to those contracts that were not completed as of March 31, 2018.

The impact of adopting Topic 606 was not significant to individual financial statement line items in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 29, 2018
or in the consolidated statements of income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018.

Product Revenues

The majority of the Company’s performance obligations related to product sales are satisfied at a point in time. Product revenue consists of the sale of its
disposable blood component collection and processing sets and the related equipment. The Company’s performance obligation related to product sales is
satisfied upon shipment or delivery to the customer based on the specified terms set forth in the customer contract. Shipping and handling activities performed
after a customer obtains control of the good are treated as fulfillment activities and are not considered to be a separate performance obligation. Revenue is
recognized over time for maintenance plans provided to customers that provide services beyond the Company’s standard warranty period. Payment terms
between customers related to product sales vary by the type of customer, country of sale, and the products or
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services offered and could result in an unbilled receivable or deferred revenue balance depending on whether the performance obligation has been satisfied (or
partially satisfied).

For product sales to distributors, the Company recognizes revenue for both equipment and disposables upon shipment to distributors, which is when its
performance obligations are complete. The Company's standard contracts with its distributors state that title to the equipment passes to the distributors at
point of shipment to a distributor’s location. The distributors are responsible for shipment to the end customer along with any installation, training and
acceptance of the equipment by the end customer. Payments from distributors are not contingent upon resale of the product.

The Company also places equipment at customer sites. While the Company retains ownership of this equipment, the customer has the right to use it for a
period of time provided they meet certain agreed to conditions. The Company recovers the cost of providing the equipment from the sale of its disposables.

Software and Other Revenues

To a lesser extent, the Company enters into other types of contracts including certain software licensing arrangements to provide software solutions to support
its plasma, blood collection and hospital customers. A portion of its software sales are perpetual licenses typically accompanied by significant implementation
services related to software customization as well as other professional and technical services. The Company generally recognizes revenue from the sale of
perpetual licenses and related customization services over time (the Company is creating or enhancing an asset that the customer controls) using an input
method which requires it to make estimates of the extent of progress toward completion of the contract. When the Company provides other services, including
in some instances hosting, technical support and maintenance, it recognizes these fees and charges over time (the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes benefits), as performance obligations for these services are satisfied during the contract period. Certain of its software licensing arrangements are
term-based licenses that include a per-collection or a usage-based fee related to the use of the license and the related technical support and hosting services.
For these usage-based arrangements, the Company applies the revenue recognition exception resulting in revenue recognition occurring upon the later of
actual usage or satisfaction of the related performance obligations. The payment terms for software licensing arrangements vary by customer pursuant to the
terms set forth in the customer contract and result in an unbilled receivable or deferred revenue balance depending on whether the performance obligation has
been satisfied (or partially satisfied).

Significant Judgments

Revenues from product sales are recorded at the net sales price, which includes estimates of variable consideration related to rebates, product returns and
volume discounts. These reserves are based on estimates of the amounts earned or to be claimed on the related sales. The Company's estimates take into
consideration historical experience, current contractual and statutory requirements, specific known market events and trends, industry data, and forecasted
customer buying and payment patterns. Overall, these reserves reflect the Company’s best estimates of the amount of consideration to which it is entitled
based on the terms of the contract. The amount of variable consideration included in the net sales price is limited to the amount that is probable not to result in
a significant reversal in the amount of the cumulative revenue recognized in a future period. Revenue recognized in the current period related to performance
obligations satisfied in prior periods was not material.

Contract Balances

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections results in billed accounts receivable, unbilled receivables (contract assets), and customer
advances and deposits (contract liabilities) on the consolidated balance sheets. The difference in timing between billing and revenue recognition primarily
occurs in software licensing arrangements, resulting in contract assets and contract liabilities.

As of December 29, 2018 and April 1, 2018, the Company had contract assets of $10.5 million and $2.7 million, respectively. The change is primarily due to
the delay in billings compared to the revenue recognized. Contract assets are classified as other current assets and other long-term assets on the consolidated
balance sheet.

As of December 29, 2018 and April 1, 2018, the Company had contract liabilities of $16.2 million and $16.6 million, respectively. During the three and nine

months ended December 29, 2018, the Company recognized $2.9 million and $14.4 million, respectively, of revenue that was included in the above April 1,
2018 contract liability balance. Contract liabilities are classified as other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.
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Practical Expedients

The Company elected not to disclose the value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations for contracts with an original expected
length of one year or less. When applicable, the Company has also elected to use the practical expedient to not adjust the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of a significant financing component if it is expected, at contract inception, that the period between when the Company transfers a promised
good or service to a customer, and when the customer pays for that good or service, will be one year or less.

7. INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and include the cost of material, labor and manufacturing overhead. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method.

December 29, March 31,
(In thousands) 2018 2018™
Raw materials $ 64,824 $ 52,997
‘Work-in-process 11,361 10,774
Finished goods 92,751 97,028
Total inventories $ 168,936 $ 160,799

() The Company corrected the classification of inventory as of March 31, 2018. This correction did not change total inventories and did not have a financial statement impact.

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As part of the acquisition of the whole blood business from Pall Corporation (“Pall”) in fiscal 2012, Pall agreed to manufacture and install in one of the
Company's facilities a filter media manufacturing line (the “HDC line”) for which the Company agreed to pay Pall approximately $15.0 million (plus pre-
approved overages). Pall also agreed to supply media to the Company for use in leukoreduction filters until such time as the Company accepted the HDC line.

In May 2018, the Company entered into a long-term supply agreement with Pall under which Pall will continue to supply media to the Company for use
in leukoreduction filters. As a condition of the supply agreement, the Company agreed to accept the HDC line and to make a final payment of $9.0 million to
Pall for the HDC line.

As aresult of the decision to continue to source media for leukoreduction filters from Pall rather than producing them internally, the Company does not
expect to utilize the HDC line for future production and expects that the asset’s future cash flows will not be sufficient to recover its carrying value of $19.8
million. Accordingly, during the first quarter of fiscal 2019 the Company recorded impairment charges of $19.8 million for the HDC line.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2019, the Company also impaired $1.4 million of property, plant and equipment as a result of a review of non-core and
underperforming assets and a decision to discontinue the use of or investment in certain assets. This impairment, as well as the impairment of the HDC line,
were included within cost of goods sold on the consolidated statements of income and impacted the All Other reporting segment.

Additionally, the Company has changed the estimated useful lives of PCS®2 devices as these will be replaced by the NexSys PCS® which the Company began
placing during the second quarter of fiscal 2019. During the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, the Company incurred $4.8 million and $13.2
million, respectively, of accelerated depreciation expense related to this change in estimate.

9. CAPITALIZATION OF SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT COSTS

For costs incurred related to the development of software to be sold, leased or otherwise marketed, the Company applies the provisions of ASC 985-20,
Software - Costs of Software to be Sold, Leased or Marketed, which specifies that costs incurred internally in researching and developing a computer software
product should be charged to expense until technological feasibility has been established for the product. Once technological feasibility is established, all

software development costs should be capitalized until the product is available for general release to customers.

The Company capitalized $2.7 million and $8.7 million of software development costs for ongoing initiatives during the nine months ended December 29,
2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively. At December 29, 2018 and March 31, 2018, the
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Company had a total of $74.6 million and $71.8 million of capitalized software costs, respectively, of which $9.8 million and $17.7 million are related to in-
process software development initiatives. During the nine months ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, there were $10.6 million and $2.3
million capitalized costs placed into service, respectively. The costs capitalized for each project are included in intangible assets in the consolidated financial
statements.

10. PRODUCT WARRANTIES
The Company generally provides warranty on parts and labor for one year after the sale and installation of each device. The Company also warrants

disposables products through their use or expiration. The Company estimates its potential warranty expense based on its historical warranty experience and
periodically assesses the adequacy of its warranty accrual, making adjustments as necessary.

Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30,
(In thousands) 2018 2017
Warranty accrual as of the beginning of the period $ 316 $ 176
Warranty provision 514 911
Warranty spending (577) (723)
Warranty accrual as of the end of the period $ 253 $ 364

11. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

On June 15, 2018, the Company entered into a credit agreement with certain lenders which provided for a $350.0 million term loan (the "Term Loan") and a
$350.0 million revolving loan (the "Revolving Credit Facility" and together with the Term Loan, the "Credit Facilities"). The Credit Facilities expire on June
15, 2023. Interest on the Credit Facilities is established using LIBOR plus 1.13% - 1.75%, depending on the Company's leverage ratio. Under the Credit
Facilities, the Company is required to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios specified in the credit agreement as well as other customary non-
financial affirmative and negative covenants. A portion of the net proceeds of $347.8 million was used to pay down the $253.7 million remaining outstanding
balance on the 2012 credit agreement, as amended in fiscal 2014. The remainder of the proceeds are being used to support the launch of the NexSys PCS
device and for general corporate purposes. At December 29, 2018, $345.6 million was outstanding under the Term Loan with an effective interest rate of
3.6% and no amount was outstanding on the Revolving Credit Facility. The Company also has $25.2 million of uncommitted operating lines of credit to fund
its global operations under which there were no outstanding borrowings as of December 29, 2018.

The Company has required scheduled principal payments of $8.8 million during fiscal 2019, $17.5 million during each fiscal 2020, fiscal 2021 and fiscal
2022, $214.4 million during fiscal 2023 and $70.0 million thereafter.

The Company was in compliance with the leverage and interest coverage ratios specified in the Credit Facilities as well as all other bank covenants as of
December 29, 2018.

12. DERIVATIVES AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company manufactures, markets and sells its products globally. During the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, 36.3% and 37.0%,
respectively, of its sales were generated outside the U.S., generally in foreign currencies. The Company also incurs certain manufacturing, marketing and
selling costs in international markets in local currency.

Accordingly, earnings and cash flows are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates relative to the U.S. Dollar, the Company's
reporting currency. The Company has a program in place that is designed to mitigate the exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. That
program includes the use of derivative financial instruments to minimize, for a period of time, the impact on its financial results from changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company utilizes foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the anticipated cash flows from transactions denominated in foreign
currencies, primarily the Japanese Yen and the Euro, and to a lesser extent the Swiss Franc, Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar and the Mexican Peso. This
does not eliminate the impact of the volatility of foreign exchange rates. However, because the Company generally enters into forward contracts one year out,
rates are fixed for a one-year period, thereby facilitating financial planning and resource allocation.
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Designated Foreign Currency Hedge Contracts

All of the Company's designated foreign currency hedge contracts as of December 29, 2018 and March 31, 2018 were cash flow hedges under ASC 815,
Derivatives and Hedging ("ASC 815"). The Company records the effective portion of any change in the fair value of designated foreign currency hedge
contracts in other comprehensive income until the related third-party transaction occurs. Once the related third-party transaction occurs, the Company
reclassifies the effective portion of any related gain or loss on the designated foreign currency hedge contracts to earnings. In the event the hedged forecasted
transaction does not occur, or it becomes probable that it will not occur, the Company would reclassify the amount of any gain or loss on the related cash flow
hedge to earnings at that time. The Company had designated foreign currency hedge contracts outstanding in the contract amount of $64.5 million as of
December 29, 2018 and $86.0 million as of March 31, 2018. At December 29, 2018, gains of $2.8 million, net of tax, will be reclassified to earnings within
the next twelve months. Substantially all currency cash flow hedges outstanding as of December 29, 2018 mature within twelve months.

Non-Designated Foreign Currency Contracts

The Company manages its exposure to changes in foreign currency on a consolidated basis to take advantage of offsetting transactions and balances. It uses
foreign currency forward contracts as a part of its strategy to manage exposure related to foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities. These
foreign currency forward contracts are entered into for periods consistent with currency transaction exposures, generally one month. They are not designated
as cash flow or fair value hedges under ASC 815. These forward contracts are marked-to-market with changes in fair value recorded to earnings. The
Company had non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts under ASC 815 outstanding in the contract amount of $39.1 million as of December 29, 2018
and $36.3 million as of March 31, 2018.

Interest Rate Swaps

On June 15, 2018, the Company entered into Credit Facilities which provided for a $350.0 million Term Loan and a $350.0 million Revolving Credit Facility.
Under the terms of the Credit Facilities, interest is established using LIBOR plus 1.13% - 1.75%. As a result, the Company's earnings and cash flows are
exposed to interest rate risk from changes to LIBOR. Part of the Company's interest rate risk management strategy includes the use of interest rate swaps to
mitigate its exposure to changes in variable interest rates. The Company's objective in using interest rate swaps is to add stability to interest expense and to
manage and reduce the risk inherent in interest rate fluctuations.

In August 2018, the Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements (the "Swaps") to pay an average fixed rate of 2.80% on a total notional value of
$241.9 million of debt. As a result of the interest rate swaps, 70% of the Term Loan exposed to interest rate risk from changes in LIBOR are fixed at a rate of
4.05%. The Swaps mature on June 15, 2023. The Company designated the Swaps as cash flow hedges of variable interest rate risk associated with $345.6
million of indebtedness. For the nine months ended December 29, 2018, a loss of $2.8 million was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss to
recognize the effective portion of the fair value of the Swaps that qualify as cash flow hedges.

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

The following table presents the effect of the Company's derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges and those not designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815 in its consolidated statements of income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) for the nine months ended December 29, 2018:

Amount of Gain (Loss) Location in

Amount of Gain s Location in Amount of Gain .
(Loss) Recognized Reclassified Consolidated Statements of Excluded from Consolidated Statements of
in Accumulated Other gg{rgp‘;“:ﬁ;?;iu\}stfgsgti?‘g Income (Loss) and Effectiveness C;;;?gig;%s:%fgsme
(In thousands) Comprehensive Loss Eamings Comprehensive Income (Loss) Testing (Loss)
Designated foreign currency Net revenues, COGS and Interest and other
hedge contracts, net of tax $ 2,781 $ (209) SG&A $ 1,349 expense, net
Non-designated foreign currency Interest and other
hedge contracts — — $ 1,307  expense, net
Designated interest rate swaps, Interest and other
net of tax $ (2,841) $ —  expense, net $ —
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The Company did not have fair value hedges or net investment hedges outstanding as of December 29, 2018 or March 31, 2018. As of December 29, 2018, no
deferred tax assets were recognized for designated foreign currency hedges.

ASC 815 requires all derivative instruments to be recognized at their fair values as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. The Company determines
the fair value of its derivative instruments using the framework prescribed by ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, by considering the
estimated amount it would receive or pay to sell or transfer these instruments at the reporting date and by taking into account current interest rates, currency
exchange rates, current interest rate curves, interest rate volatilities, the creditworthiness of the counterparty for assets, and its creditworthiness for liabilities.
In certain instances, the Company may utilize financial models to measure fair value. Generally, it uses inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; other observable inputs for the asset or
liability; and inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or other means. As of December 29, 2018, the
Company has classified its derivative assets and liabilities within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy prescribed by ASC 815, as discussed below, because
these observable inputs are available for substantially the full term of its derivative instruments.

The following tables present the fair value of the Company's derivative instruments as they appear in its consolidated balance sheets as of December 29, 2018
and March 31, 2018:

As of As of
Location in

(In thousands) Balance Sheet December 29, 2018 March 31, 2018
Derivative Assets:

Designated foreign currency hedge contracts Other current assets $ 1,655 $ 780

Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts Other current assets 100 324
$ 1,755 $ 1,104

Derivative Liabilities:

Designated foreign currency hedge contracts Other current liabilities $ 351 % 1,445

Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts Other current liabilities 71 138

Designated interest rate swaps Other current liabilities 2,841 —
$ 3,263 $ 1,583

Other Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the exit price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability, using assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liability. The fair value guidance establishes the following three-level hierarchy used for measuring fair value:

+ Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are other observable inputs, including quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities and
market-corroborated inputs.

* Level 3— Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs based on management’s best estimate of inputs market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, including assumptions about risk.

The Company's money market funds carried at fair value are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy because they are valued using quoted
market prices.
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Fair Value Measured on a Recurring Basis

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following as of December 29, 2018 and March 31, 2018.

As of December 29, 2018

(In thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Total
Assets

Money market funds $ 63,547 $ — 3 63,547
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 1,655 1,655
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 100 100

$ 63547 $ 1,755 $ 65,302

Liabilities
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts $ — 5 351 $ 351
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 71 71
Designated interest rate swaps — 2,841 2,841
$ — 3,263 $ 3,263
As of March 31, 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Total
Assets
Money market funds $ 75,450 $ — % 75,450
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 780 780
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 324 324
$ 75450 $ 1,104 $ 76,554
Liabilities
Designated foreign currency hedge contracts $ — 5 1,445 $ 1,445
Non-designated foreign currency hedge contracts — 138 138

$ —  $ 1,583 $ 1,583

Other Fair Value Disclosures

The Term Loan (which is carried at amortized cost), accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to various legal proceedings and claims arising out of the ordinary course of its business. The Company believes that except for those
matters described below, there are no other proceedings or claims pending against it the ultimate resolution of which could have a material adverse effect on
the financial condition or results of operations. At each reporting period, the Company evaluates whether or not a potential loss amount or a potential range of
loss is probable and reasonably estimable under ASC 450, Contingencies, for all matters. Legal costs are expensed as incurred.

Litigation and Related Matters

Product Recalls

In March 2018, the Company issued a voluntary recall of specific lots of its Acrodose™ Plus and PL Systems sold to its Blood Center customers in the U.S.
The recall resulted from reports of low pH readings for platelets stored in the CLX HP bag and, in some instances, an accompanying yellow discoloration of
the storage bag. For a period of nine weeks, the Company was unable to provide its customers with its Acrodose Plus and PL Systems. As a result of the

recall, Blood Center customers may have discarded collected platelets and incurred other damages. As of December 29, 2018, the Company has recorded
cumulative charges of $2.2 million associated with this recall which consists of $1.3 million of charges associated with customer returns
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and inventory reserves and $0.9 million of charges associated with customer claims. The Company may record incremental charges for customer claims in
future periods associated with this recall.

In August 2018, the Company issued a voluntary recall of certain whole blood collection kits sold to its Blood Center customers in the U.S. The recall
resulted from some collection sets' filters failing to adequately remove leukocytes from collected blood. As a result of the recall, the Company's Blood Center
customers may have conducted tests to confirm that the collected blood was adequately leukoreduced, sold the collected blood labeled as non-leukoreduced at
a lower price or discarded the collected blood. As of December 29, 2018, the Company has recorded cumulative charges of $1.4 million associated with this
recall which consists of $0.1 million of charges associated with customer returns and inventory reserves and $1.3 million of charges associated with customer
claims. The Company may record incremental charges for customer claims in future periods associated with this recall.

14. SEGMENT AND ENTERPRISE-WIDE INFORMATION

The Company determines its reportable segments by first identifying its operating segments, and then by assessing whether any components of these
segments constitute a business for which discrete financial information is available and where segment management regularly reviews the operating results of
that component. The Company's operating segments are based primarily on geography. North America Plasma is a separate operating segment with dedicated
segment management due the size and scale of the Plasma business unit. It aggregates components within an operating segment that have similar economic
characteristics.

The Company’s reportable segments are as follows:

* Japan

. EMEA

¢ North America Plasma
e All Other

The Company has aggregated the Americas Blood Center and Hospital and Asia - Pacific operating segments into the All Other reportable segment based
upon their similar operational and economic characteristics, including similarity of operating margin.

Management measures and evaluates the operating segments based on operating income. Management excludes certain corporate expenses from segment
operating income. In addition, certain amounts that management considers to be non-recurring or non-operational are excluded from segment operating
income because management evaluates the operating results of the segments excluding such items. These items include restructuring and turnaround costs,
deal amortization, asset impairments, accelerated depreciation and certain legal charges. Although these amounts are excluded from segment operating
income, as applicable, they are included in the reconciliations that follow. Management measures and evaluates the Company's net revenues and operating
income using internally derived standard currency exchange rates that remain constant from year to year; therefore, segment information is presented on this
basis.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2019, management reorganized its operating segments such that certain immaterial components of EMEA are now reported
as components of All Other. Accordingly, the prior year numbers have been updated to reflect this reclassification as well as other changes within the cost
reporting structure that occurred in the first quarter of fiscal 2019. These changes did not have an impact on its ability to aggregate Americas Blood Center
and Hospital with Asia - Pacific.
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Selected information by business segment is presented below:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30, December 29, December 30,
(In thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Net revenues
Japan $ 18,297 $ 18,161 $ 52,244  $ 50,557
EMEA 42,056 44,860 123,395 126,727
North America Plasma 104,163 86,545 295,392 249,132
All Other 85,282 86,338 250,576 249,632
Net revenues before foreign exchange impact 249,798 235,904 721,607 676,048
Effect of exchange rates (2,442) (1,861) (3,323) (5,677)
Net revenues $ 247,356  $ 234,043 $ 718,284 $ 670,371
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30, December 29, December 30,
(In thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Segment operating income
Japan $ 9,580 $ 9,715 $ 27,213 $ 25,838
EMEA 11,427 12,633 34,926 33,157
North America Plasma 43,392 34,160 123,456 96,052
All Other 34,460 34,729 103,730 97,929
Segment operating income 98,859 91,237 289,325 252,976
Corporate operating expenses (58,314) (52,164) (174,831) (150,670)
Effect of exchange rates 2,133 2,755 7,782 1,656
Restructuring and turnaround costs (1,791) (31,298) (7,258) (39,568)
Deal amortization (6,131) (6,506) (18,667) (19,501)
Asset impairments — — (21,170) —
Accelerated depreciation (4,822) (3,011) (13,203) (3,011)
Legal charges (1,614) — (2,289) —
Operating income $ 28,320 $ 1,013 $ 59,689 $ 41,882

The Company's products are organized into three categories for purposes of evaluating their growth potential: Plasma, Blood Center and Hospital.
Management reviews revenue trends based on these business units.
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Net revenues by business unit are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30, December 29, December 30,
(In thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Plasma $ 131,823 $ 113,098 $ 373,078 $ 324,376
Blood Center 67,155 74,227 199,881 211,502
Hospital 48,378 46,718 145,325 134,493
Net revenues $ 247,356 $ 234,043 $ 718,284 $ 670,371

Net revenues generated in the Company's principal operating regions on a reported basis are as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30, December 29, December 30,
(In thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
United States $ 157,457  $ 140,840 $ 452,523  $ 410,671
Japan 17,734 17,664 52,295 49,312
Europe 40,977 42,189 119,075 118,544
Asia 29,166 30,733 89,136 85,504
Other 2,022 2,617 5,255 6,340
Net revenues $ 247,356 $ 234,043 $ 718,284 $ 670,371
15. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
The components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss are as follows:
Net Unrealized
Gain/Loss on
(In thousands) Foreign Currency Defined Benefit Plans Derivatives Total
Balance as of March 31, 2018 $ (16,405) $ (323) $ (2,263) $ (18,991)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications™® (10,254) — (60) (10,314)
Amounts reclassified from Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss(®) — — 209 209
Net current period other comprehensive income (loss) (10,254) — 149 (10,105)
Balance as of December 29, 2018 $ (26,659) $ (323) $ 2,114) $ (29,096)

@ Presented net of income taxes, the amounts of which are insignificant.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with both our
interim consolidated financial statements and notes thereto which appear elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our annual consolidated
financial statements, notes thereto and the MD&A contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018. The following
discussion may contain forward-looking statements and should be read in conjunction with the “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking
Information” in this discussion.

Introduction

Haemonetics is a global healthcare company dedicated to providing a suite of innovative hematology products and solutions to customers to help improve
patient care and reduce the cost of healthcare. Our technology addresses important medical markets including commercial plasma collection, hospital-based
diagnostics, blood and blood component collection and devices and software products. When used in this report, the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and “the
Company” mean Haemonetics.

Our products are organized into three categories for purposes of evaluating and developing their growth potential: Plasma, Blood Center and Hospital. For
that purpose, “Plasma” includes plasma collection devices and disposables, plasma donor management software, and anticoagulant and saline sold to plasma
customers. “Blood Center” includes blood collection and processing devices and disposables for red cells, platelets and whole blood as well as related donor
management software. "Hospital", which is comprised of Hemostasis Management and Cell Processing products, includes devices and methodologies for
measuring coagulation characteristics of blood, surgical blood salvage systems, specialized blood cell processing systems, disposables and blood transfusion
management software.

We believe that Plasma and Hospital have the greatest growth potential, while Blood Center competes in challenging markets which require us to manage the
business differently, including reducing costs, shrinking the scope of the current product line, and evaluating opportunities to exit unfavorable customer
contracts. We are progressing toward a streamlined operating model with a management and cost structure that can bring about sustainable productivity
improvement across the organization. Overall implementation of our new operating model began in fiscal 2017 and will continue through fiscal 2019 and
beyond.

Recent Developments
NexSys PCS® and NexLynk DMS™

In fiscal 2018, we received FDA 510(k) clearance for our NexSys PCS plasmapheresis system, including our embedded software that activates YES™
technology, a yield-enhancing solution. We have begun production of the devices and expect to pursue further regulatory clearances for additional
enhancements to the overall product offering.

Our planned roll out of this new platform includes the placement of a significant number of new devices. Such placements will require meaningful capital
expenditures and new customer contracts that reflect pricing and volumes appropriate to these investments. We have entered into several long-term
commercial contracts and are continuing the rollout of NexSys PCS devices and NexLynk DMS donor management software for these Plasma customers.

Debt Issuance and Repayment

On June 15, 2018, we entered into a five year credit agreement with certain lenders which provided for a $350.0 million term loan (the "Term Loan") and a
$350.0 million revolving loan (the "Revolving Credit Facility" and together with the Term Loan, the "Credit Facilities"). A portion of the net proceeds of
$347.8 million was used to pay down the $253.7 million remaining outstanding balance on our 2012 credit agreement, as amended in fiscal 2014. The
remainder of the proceeds are being used to support the launch of the NexSys PCS device and for general corporate purposes. On August 21, 2018, we
entered into two interest rate swap agreements to effectively convert $241.9 million of borrowings under our Credit Facilities from a variable rate to a fixed
rate of interest.

Share Repurchase Program
In February 2018, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $260 million of our outstanding common stock through March 30, 2019. As of
December 29, 2018, we had utilized the full $260 million share repurchase authorization, which resulted in approximately 3.0 million total shares repurchased

at an average price of $86.58 per share.
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In May 2018, we completed a $100.0 million repurchase of our common stock pursuant to an accelerated share repurchase agreement ("ASR") entered into
with Citibank N.A (“Citibank”) in February 2018. The total number of shares repurchased under the ASR was approximately 1.4 million at an average price
per share upon final settlement of $72.51. In August 2018, we completed an additional $80.0 million repurchase of our common stock pursuant to an ASR
entered into with Citibank in June 2018. The total number of shares repurchased under the ASR was approximately 0.9 million at an average price per share
upon final settlement of $93.83. In December 2018, we repurchased the remaining $80.0 million of our common stock under our share repurchase
authorization pursuant to an ASR entered into with Citibank in November 2018. The total number of shares repurchased under the ASR was approximately
0.8 million at an average price per share upon final settlement of $103.74.

Long-Term Supply Agreement

As part of our acquisition of the whole blood business from Pall Corporation (“Pall”) in fiscal 2012, Pall agreed to manufacture and install in one of our
facilities a filter media manufacturing line (the “HDC line”) for which we agreed to pay Pall approximately $15.0 million (plus pre-approved overages). Pall
also agreed to supply media to us for use in leukoreduction filters until such time as we accepted the HDC line.

In May 2018, we entered into a long-term supply agreement with Pall under which Pall will continue to supply media to us for use in leukoreduction filters.
As a condition of the supply agreement, we agreed to accept the HDC line and to make a final payment of $9.0 million to Pall for the HDC line.

As aresult of the decision to continue to source media for our leukoreduction filters from Pall rather than producing them internally, we do not expect to
utilize the HDC line for future production and expect that the asset’s future cash flows will not be sufficient to recover its carrying value of $19.8 million.
Accordingly, during the first quarter of fiscal 2019 we recorded impairment charges of $19.8 million for the HDC line.

Product Recalls

In March 2018, we issued a voluntary recall of specific lots of our Acrodose™ Plus and PL Systems sold to our Blood Center customers in the U.S. The
recall resulted from reports of low pH readings for platelets stored in the CLX HP bag and, in some instances, an accompanying yellow discoloration of the
storage bag. For a period of nine weeks, we were unable to provide our customers with our Acrodose Plus and PL Systems. As a result of the recall, our
Blood Center customers may have discarded collected platelets and incurred other damages. As of December 29, 2018, we have recorded cumulative charges
of $2.2 million associated with this recall which consists of $1.3 million of charges associated with customer returns and inventory reserves and $0.9 million
of charges associated with customer claims. We may record incremental charges for customer claims in future periods associated with this recall.

In August 2018, we issued a voluntary recall of certain whole blood collection kits sold to our Blood Center customers in the U.S. The recall resulted from
some collection sets' filters failing to adequately remove leukocytes from collected blood. As a result of the recall, our Blood Center customers may have
conducted tests to confirm that the collected blood was adequately leukoreduced, sold the collected blood labeled as non-leukoreduced at a lower price or
discarded the collected blood. As of December 29, 2018, we have recorded cumulative charges of $1.4 million associated with this recall which consists of
$0.1 million of charges associated with customer returns and inventory reserves and $1.3 million of charges associated with customer claims. We may record
incremental charges for customer claims in future periods associated with this recall.

Restructuring Initiative

In fiscal 2018, we launched a Complexity Reduction Initiative (the "2018 Program"), a company-wide restructuring program designed to improve operational
performance and reduce cost, freeing up resources to invest in accelerated growth. This program includes a reduction of headcount and operating costs which
will enable a more streamlined organizational structure. We expect to incur aggregate charges between $50 million and $60 million associated with these
actions, of which we expect $35 million to $40 million will consist of severance and other employee costs and the remainder will consist of other exit costs,
primarily related to third party services. These charges, substantially all of which will result in cash outlays, will be incurred as the specific actions required to
execute on these initiatives are identified and approved and are expected to continue through fiscal 2020. We expect savings from this program of
approximately $80 million on an annualized basis once the program is completed. During the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, we incurred
$1.9 million and $7.3 million, respectively, of restructuring and turnaround costs under this program.
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Financial Summary

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

December 29, December 30, % Increase/ December 29, December 30, % Increase/
(In thousands, except per share data) 2018 2017 (Decrease) 2018 2017 (Decrease)
Net revenues $ 247,356 $ 234,043 57% $ 718,284 $ 670,371 7.1 %
Gross profit $ 111,175 $ 111,295 0.1D)% $ 306,326 $ 307,522 (0.4)%
% of net revenues 44.9% 47.6 % 42.6% 45.9%
Operating expenses $ 82,855 $ 110,282 49% $ 246,637 $ 265,640 (7.2)%
Operating income $ 28,320 $ 1,013 n/m $ 59,689 $ 41,882 42.5 %
% of net revenues 11.4% 0.4 % 8.3% 6.2%
Gain on divestiture $ — 3 — —% $ —  $ 8,000 (100.0)%
Interest and other expense, net $ (2,858) $ (806) n/m $ (7,875) $ (3,562) n/m
Income before provision for income taxes  $ 25,462 $ 207 n/m $ 51,814 $ 46,320 11.9 %
Provision for income taxes $ 7,185 $ 6,754 64% $ 17,630 $ 12,628 39.6 %
% of pre-tax income 28.2% n/m 34.0% 27.3%
Net income (loss) $ 18,277 $ (6,547) n/m $ 34,184 $ 33,692 1.5%
% of net revenues 7.4% 2.8)% 4.8% 5.0%
Net income (loss) per share - basic $ 036 % (0.12) n/m $ 066 $ 0.64 3.1%
Net income (loss) per share - diluted $ 035 % (0.12) n/m $ 064 $ 0.63 1.6 %

Net revenues increased 5.7% and 7.1% for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2018. Without
the effect of foreign exchange, net revenues increased 5.9% and 6.7% for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared
with the same periods of fiscal 2018. Revenue increases in Plasma and Hospital were partially offset by declines in Blood Center during the three and nine

months ended December 29, 2018.

Operating income increased for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, as compared with the same period of fiscal 2018, primarily due to
increased revenue volumes, favorable price and product mix, lower restructuring and turnaround costs and annualized savings as a result of the current and
prior year restructuring initiatives. This increase was partially offset by increased freight costs driven by revenue volume growth and rising fuel costs and
carrier fees, accelerated depreciation related to PCS®2 devices, increased investments within our Plasma and Hospital business units and increased variable
compensation. The increase in operating income for the nine months ended December 29, 2018 was partially offset by asset impairments associated with the

HDC line.

Management's Use of Non-GAAP Measures

Management uses non-GAAP financial measures, in addition to financial measures in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("U.S. GAAP"), to monitor the financial performance of the business, make informed business decisions, establish budgets and forecast
future results. These non-GAAP financial measures should be considered supplemental to, and not a substitute for, our reported financial results prepared in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current and prior year

periods using a constant currency conversion rate. We have provided this non-GAAP financial measure because we believe it provides meaningful

information regarding our results on a consistent and comparable basis for the periods presented.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Revenues by Geography

Three Months Ended
December 29, December 30, Constant currency
(In thousands) 2018 2017 Reported growth Currency impact growth ®
United States $ 157,457 $ 140,840 11.8 % — % 11.8 %
International 89,899 93,203 (3.5)% (0.6)% (2.9)%
Net revenues $ 247,356 $ 234,043 5.7 % (0.2)% 5.9 %

(M Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current and prior year periods using a constant currency. See "Management's Use of Non-
GAAP Measures."

Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30, Constant currency
(In thousands) 2018 2017 Reported growth Currency impact growth ®
United States $ 452,523 $ 410,671 10.2% —% 10.2%
International 265,761 259,700 2.3% 0.9% 1.4%
Net revenues $ 718,284 $ 670,371 7.1% 0.4% 6.7%

() Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current and prior year periods using a constant currency. See "Management's Use of Non-
GAAP Measures."

Our principal operations are in the U.S., Europe, Japan and other parts of Asia. Our products are marketed in approximately 90 countries around the world
through a combination of our direct sales force, independent distributors and agents. Our revenue generated outside the U.S. was 36.3% and 37.0%, of total
net revenues for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared with 39.8% and 38.7% for the three and nine months ended
December 30, 2017, respectively. International sales are generally conducted in local currencies, primarily Japanese Yen, Euro, Chinese Yuan and Australian
Dollars. Our results of operations are impacted by changes in foreign exchange rates, particularly in the value of the Yen, Euro and Australian Dollar relative
to the U.S. Dollar. We have placed foreign currency hedges to mitigate our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations.

Please see the section entitled “Foreign Exchange” in this discussion for a more complete explanation of how foreign currency affects our business and our
strategy for managing this exposure.

Net Revenues by Business Unit

Three Months Ended
December 29, December 30, Constant currency
(In thousands) 2018 2017 Reported growth Currency impact growth ®
Plasma $ 131,823 $ 113,098 16.6 % 0.6 % 16.0 %
Blood Center 67,155 74,227 (9.5)% (0.3)% (9.2)%
Hospital @ 48,378 46,718 3.6% (0.9% 4.5%
Net revenues $ 247,356  $ 234,043 5.7 % (0.2)% 5.9 %

® Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current and prior year periods using a constant currency. See "Management's Use of Non-
GAAP Measures.™
2 Hospital revenue includes both Cell Processing and Hemostasis Management revenue. Hemostasis Management revenue was $21.3 million and $19.9 million for the three months ended December

29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively. Hemostasis Management revenue increased 7.3% in the third quarter of fiscal 2019 as compared with the same period of fiscal 2018. Without the
effect of foreign exchange, Hemostasis Management revenue increased 9.0% in the third quarter of fiscal 2019 as compared with the same period of fiscal 2018.
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Nine Months Ended

December 29, December 30, Constant currency
(In thousands) 2018 2017 Reported growth Currency impact growth ®
Plasma $ 373,078 $ 324,376 15.0 % 0.5% 14.5 %
Blood Center 199,881 211,502 (5.5)% 0.3% (5.8)%
Hospital @) 145,325 134,493 8.1 % 0.8% 7.3 %
Net revenues $ 718,284 $ 670,371 71% 0.4% 6.7 %

() Constant currency growth, a non-GAAP financial measure, measures the change in revenue between the current and prior year periods using a constant currency. See "Management's Use of Non-
GAAP Measures."

@ Hospital revenue includes both Cell Processing and Hemostasis Management revenue. Hemostasis Management revenue was $65.4 million and $55.6 million for the nine months ended December
29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively. Hemostasis Management revenue increased 17.6% in the first nine months of fiscal 2019 as compared with the same period of fiscal 2018. Without
the effect of foreign exchange, Hemostasis Management revenue increased 17.0% in the first nine months of fiscal 2019 as compared with the same period of fiscal 2018.

Plasma

Plasma revenue increased 16.6% and 15.0% during the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared with the same periods of
fiscal 2018. Without the effect of foreign exchange, Plasma revenue increased 16.0% and 14.5% for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018,
respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2018. This revenue growth was primarily driven by an increase in volume of plasma disposables due
to continued strong performance in the U.S. and favorable NexSys PCS pricing during the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018. Increases in sales
of liquid solutions also contributed to the growth during the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018.

We have continuing delays in the expansion of our liquid solutions production capacity that require us or our customers to continue to obtain alternative
sources of supply. We expect purchases from these alternate sources to continue until we can complete the expansion and produce solutions at the necessary
level.

Blood Center

Blood Center revenue decreased 9.5% and 5.5% during the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared with the same periods
of fiscal 2018. Without the effect of foreign exchange, Blood Center revenue decreased 9.2% and 5.8% for the three and nine months ended December 29,
2018, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2018. This decrease was primarily driven by lower whole blood revenue due to continued
market declines, the strategic exit of certain contracts, products and markets, including unfavorable order timing associated with these exits, as well as
product recalls.

Hospital

Hospital revenue increased 3.6% and 8.1% during the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively as compared with the same periods of
fiscal 2018. Without the effect of foreign exchange, Hospital revenue increased 4.5% and 7.3% during the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018,
respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2018. The increase during both the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 was primarily
attributable to the growth of disposables associated with TEG® diagnostic systems, principally in the U.S. and China. The TEG 6s system and TEG Manager®
software are approved for the same set of indications as the TEG 5000 system in Europe, Australia and Japan. In the U.S., the TEG 6s system is approved for
cardiovascular surgery and cardiology. We are pursuing a broader set of indications for the TEG 6s system in the U.S., including trauma. The increase during
the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 was partially offset by the continued decline in OrthoPAT® revenue due to better blood management
which has reduced orthopedic blood loss. Effective March 31, 2019, our OrthoPAT products will be discontinued and we will offer the Cell Saver Elite + as
an alternative autotransfusion system for orthopedics or other medium to low blood loss procedures.
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Gross Profit

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30, % Increase/ December 30, % Increase/
(In thousands) 2018 2017 (Decrease) December 29, 2018 2017 (Decrease)
Gross profit $ 111,175  $ 111,295 0.1D)% $ 306,326 $ 307,522 (0.4)%
% of net revenues 44.9% 47.6% 42.6% 45.9%

Gross profit decreased 0.1% and 0.4% for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal
2018. Without the effect of foreign exchange, gross profit increased 1.1% and decreased 2.4% for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018,
respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2018. Gross profit margin decreased 270 and 330 basis points for the three and nine months ended
December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2018. The decrease in gross profit margin during the three and nine months
ended December 29, 2018 was primarily due to increased depreciation expense as a result of the accelerated depreciation of PCS2 devices and unfavorable
volume and mix. Asset impairments associated with the HDC line also contributed to the decline in gross profit margin during the nine months ended
December 29, 2018. The decline during both the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 was partially offset by savings as a result of the prior year
restructuring initiative and favorable pricing.

Operating Expenses
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30, % Increase/ December 29, December 30, % Increase/
(In thousands) 2018 2017 (Decrease) 2018 2017 (Decrease)
Research and development $ 8978 $ 12,427 27.8)% $ 26,967 $ 28,141 (4.2)%
% of net revenues 3.6% 5.3% 3.8% 4.2%
Selling, general and administrative $ 73,877 $ 97,855 (245% $ 219,670  $ 237,499 (7.5)%
% of net revenues 29.9% 41.8% 30.6% 35.4%
Total operating expenses $ 82,855 $ 110,282 24.9% $ 246,637 $ 265,640 (7.2)%
% of net revenues 33.5% 47.1% 34.3% 39.6%

Research and Development

Research and development expenses decreased 27.8% and 4.2% for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared with the
same periods of fiscal 2018. Without the effect of foreign exchange, research and development expenses decreased 27.3% and 3.7% for the three and nine
months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2018. The decrease during the three and nine months ended
December 29, 2018 was primarily driven by lower restructuring and turnaround costs partially offset by our continued investment of resources in clinical
programs, primarily in our Hospital business unit, as well as continued investment in our Plasma business unit.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 24.5% and 7.5% for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared
with the same periods of fiscal 2018. Without the effect of foreign exchange, selling, general, and administrative expenses decreased 23.8% and 7.5% for the
three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared with the same periods of fiscal 2018. The decrease for the three and nine months
ended December 29, 2018 was primarily the result of lower restructuring and turnaround costs and annualized savings as a result of the current and prior year
restructuring initiatives. This decrease was partially offset by increased investments within our Plasma and Hospital business units, higher freight costs driven
by revenue volume growth and rising fuel costs and carrier fees and an increase in variable compensation and stock-based compensation expense.

Interest and Other Expense, Net
Interest expense from our Term Loan borrowings, which constitutes the majority of expense, increased by $1.4 million and $3.4 million during the three and
nine months ended December 29, 2018, respectively, as compared with the prior year periods due to an increase in the Term Loan balance as well as an

increase in the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate on total debt outstanding as of December 29, 2018 was 3.6%.
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Income Taxes

We conduct business globally and report our results of operations in a number of foreign jurisdictions in addition to the United States. Our reported tax rate is
impacted by the jurisdictional mix of earnings in any given period as the foreign jurisdictions in which we operate have tax rates that differ from the U.S.
statutory tax rate.

Our reported tax rate for the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 was 28.2% and 34.0%, respectively. The rate for the three and nine months
ended December 29, 2018 includes a discrete stock compensation windfall benefit of $1.8 million and $5.8 million, respectively. Our effective tax rate for the
three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 was negatively impacted by certain provisions of the recently enacted U.S. tax reform as discussed below. In
addition, the effective tax rate for the nine months ended December 29, 2018 is higher than the U.S. statutory tax rate primarily as a result of the jurisdictional
mix of earnings, including the impact of an asset impairment expense of $21.2 million recorded in pretax income for which no tax benefit was recognized as a
result of the valuation allowance maintained against our deferred tax assets in the impacted jurisdiction. Refer to Note 8, Property, Plant and Equipment for
additional details.

During the three months ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, we reported an income tax provision of $7.2 million and $6.8 million,
respectively. During the nine months ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, we reported an income tax provision of $17.6 million and $12.6
million, respectively. The change in our tax provision for both the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 was primarily due to an increase in the tax
expense of our U.S. entity, which was impacted by the U.S. tax reform provisions including Global Intangible Low Taxed Income, partially offset by a
discrete stock compensation windfall benefit.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2018, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Act") was enacted in the United States. In addition, the Securities and Exchange
Commission issued guidance under Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118, Income Tax Accounting Implications of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act that directed
taxpayers to consider the impact of the U.S. legislation as “provisional” when it does not have the necessary information available, prepared or analyzed
(including computations) in reasonable detail to complete its accounting for the change in tax law. As of December 29, 2018, we have completed our
accounting for the tax effects of the enactment of the Act. During the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, we recognized an immaterial
adjustment to the provisional tax expense estimate recorded related to the Act.

We have incorporated the other impacts of the Act that became effective in fiscal 2019 in our calculation of the year to date tax provision and effective tax
rate including the provisions related to Global Intangible Low Taxed Income, Foreign Derived Intangible Income, Base Erosion Anti Abuse Tax, as well as
other provisions which limit tax deductibility of expenses.

We are in a three year cumulative loss position in the U.S. and, accordingly, maintain a valuation allowance against certain U.S. deferred tax assets.
Additionally, we also maintain a valuation allowance against certain other deferred tax assets primarily in Switzerland, Puerto Rico, Luxembourg and France
which we have concluded are not more-likely-than-not realizable.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table contains certain key performance indicators we believe depict our liquidity and cash flow position:

December 29, March 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2018 2018

Cash & cash equivalents $ 154,871 $ 180,169
Working capital $ 304,615 $ 136,474
Current ratio 2.4 1.4
Net debt(®) $ (188,946) $ (73,513)
Days sales outstanding (DSO) 61 58
Inventory turnover 2.9 3.5

(MNet debt position is the sum of cash and cash equivalents less total debt.
During fiscal 2018, we launched the 2018 Program, a restructuring initiative designed to reposition our organization and improve our cost structure. During
the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, we incurred $1.9 million and $7.3 million, respectively, of restructuring and turnaround costs under this

program.

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, internally generated cash flow from operations, our Revolving Credit Facility and proceeds
from employee stock option exercises. We believe these sources are sufficient to fund our cash
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requirements over at least the next twelve months. Our expected cash outlays relate primarily to investments, capital expenditures, including production of the
NexSys PCS and Plasma plant capacity expansions, share repurchases, cash payments under the loan agreement, restructuring and turnaround initiatives and
acquisitions.

As of December 29, 2018, we had $154.9 million in cash and cash equivalents, the majority of which is held in the U.S. or in countries from which it can be
repatriated to the U.S. On June 15, 2018, we entered into a credit agreement with certain lenders which provided for a $350.0 million Term Loan and a $350.0
million Revolving Credit Facility. The Credit Facilities expire on June 15, 2023. Interest on the Credit Facilities is established using LIBOR plus 1.13% -
1.75%, depending on our leverage ratio. Under the Credit Facilities, we are required to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios specified in the
credit agreement as well as other customary non-financial affirmative and negative covenants. A portion of the net proceeds of $347.8 million was used to
pay down the $253.7 remaining outstanding balance on our 2012 credit agreement, as amended in fiscal 2014. The remainder of the proceeds are being used
to support the launch of our NexSys PCS device and for general corporate purposes. At December 29, 2018, $345.6 million was outstanding under the Term
Loan with an effective interest rate of 3.6% and no amount was outstanding on the Revolving Credit Facility. We also have $25.2 million of uncommitted
operating lines of credit to fund our global operations under which there were no outstanding borrowings as of December 29, 2018.

We have scheduled principal payments of $8.8 million required during the remainder of fiscal 2019. We were in compliance with the leverage and interest
coverage ratios specified in the credit agreement as well as all other bank covenants as of December 29, 2018.

Cash Flows
Nine Months Ended
December 29, December 30, Increase/
(In thousands) 2018 2017 (Decrease)
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 138,643 $ 162,723  $ (24,080)
Investing activities (102,931) (45,069) (57,862)
Financing activities (57,623) (7,990) (49,633)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents® (3,387) 2,363 (5,750)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ (25,298) $ 112,027

(MThe balance sheet is affected by spot exchange rates used to translate local currency amounts into U.S. Dollars. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, we have removed the effect of foreign currency
throughout our cash flow statement, except for its effect on our cash and cash equivalents.

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by $24.1 million during the nine months ended December 29, 2018, as compared with the nine months
ended December 30, 2017. The decrease in cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to a working capital outflow driven largely by an increase
accounts receivable and an increase in inventory build to support the launch of the NexSys PCS devices. Decreases in accrued payroll due to severance
payments associated with the 2018 Program and the payout of annual bonuses also contributed to the decline. Net income, as adjusted for depreciation,
amortization and other non-cash charges, partially offset the decrease in operating activities.

Net cash used in investing activities increased by $57.9 million during the nine months ended December 29, 2018, as compared with the nine months ended
December 30, 2017. The increase in cash used in investing activities was primarily the result of an increase in capital expenditures in the current year period
due to the NexSys PCS launch and the proceeds received related to the divestiture of our SEBRA product line in the prior period.

Net cash provided by financing activities increased by $49.6 million during the nine months ended December 29, 2018, as compared with the nine months
ended December 30, 2017, primarily due to the $350.0 million Term Loan entered into in June 2018, as discussed above. This increase was partially offset by
the repayment of the $253.7 remaining outstanding balance on our 2012 credit agreement, as amended in fiscal 2014, as well as $160.0 million of share
repurchases during the nine months ended December 29, 2018.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable are generally limited due to our large number of customers and their diversity across
many geographic areas. A portion of our trade accounts receivable outside the United States, however, include sales to government-owned or supported
healthcare systems in several countries, which are subject to payment delays and local economic conditions. Payment is dependent upon the financial stability
and creditworthiness of those countries' national economies.

We have not incurred significant losses on receivables. We continually evaluate all receivables for potential collection risks associated with the availability of
government funding and reimbursement practices. If the financial condition of customers or the countries' healthcare systems deteriorate such that their ability
to make payments is uncertain, allowances may be required in future periods.

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation had a significant impact on our results of operations for the periods presented. Historically, we believe we have been able to
mitigate the effects of inflation by improving our manufacturing and purchasing efficiencies, by increasing employee productivity and by adjusting the selling
prices of products. We continue to monitor inflation pressures generally and raw materials indices that may affect our procurement and production costs.
Increases in the price of petroleum derivatives could result in corresponding increases in our costs to procure plastic raw materials.

Foreign Exchange

During the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018, 36.3% and 37.0%, respectively, of our sales were generated outside the U.S., generally in
foreign currencies, yet our reporting currency is the U.S. Dollar. We also incur certain manufacturing, marketing and selling costs in international markets in
local currency. Our primary foreign currency exposures relate to sales denominated in Euro, Japanese Yen, Chinese Yuan and Australian Dollars. We also
have foreign currency exposure related to manufacturing and other operational costs denominated in Swiss Francs, Canadian Dollars, Mexican Pesos, and
Malaysian Ringgit. The Yen, Euro, Yuan and Australian Dollar sales exposure is partially mitigated by costs and expenses for foreign operations and sourcing
products denominated in foreign currencies. Since our foreign currency denominated Yen, Euro, Yuan and Australian Dollar sales exceed the foreign currency
denominated costs, whenever the U.S. Dollar strengthens relative to the Yen, Euro, Yuan or Australian Dollar, there is an adverse effect on our results of
operations and, conversely, whenever the U.S. Dollar weakens relative to the Yen, Euro, Yuan or Australian Dollar, there is a positive effect on our results of
operations. For Swiss Francs, Canadian Dollars Mexican Pesos, and Malaysian Ringgit our primary cash flows relate to product costs or costs and expenses
of local operations. Whenever the U.S. Dollar strengthens relative to these foreign currencies, there is a positive effect on our results of operations.
Conversely, whenever the U.S. Dollar weakens relative to these currencies, there is an adverse effect on our results of operations.

We have a program in place that is designed to mitigate our exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. That program includes the use of
derivative financial instruments to minimize, for a period of time, the unforeseen impact on our financial results from changes in foreign exchange rates. We
utilize forward foreign currency contracts to hedge the anticipated cash flows from transactions denominated in foreign currencies, primarily Japanese Yen
and Euro, and to a lesser extent Swiss Francs, Australian Dollars, and Mexican Pesos. This does not eliminate the volatility of foreign exchange rates, but
because we generally enter into forward contracts one year out, rates are fixed for a one-year period, thereby facilitating financial planning and resource
allocation. These contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. The final impact of currency fluctuations on the results of operations is dependent on the local
currency amounts hedged and the actual local currency results.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Standards to be Implemented

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASC Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). ASC Update No. 2016-02 is
intended to increase the transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease asset and lease liabilities on the balance sheet, including
those previously classified as operating leases under current U.S. GAAP and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. ASC Update No. 2016-
02 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years, and is applicable to us in fiscal 2020.
Earlier adoption is permitted. In July 2018, the FASB issued an update to the leasing guidance to allow an additional transition option which would allow
companies to adopt the standard as of the beginning of the year of adoption as opposed to the earliest
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comparative period presented. While we are still in the process of determining the effect that the new standard will have on our financial position and results
of operations, we expect to recognize additional assets and corresponding liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets, when we adopt the new standard.
Additionally, we are in the process of implementing a new lease administration and lease accounting system, and updating our controls and procedures for
maintaining and accounting for our lease portfolio under the new standard. As a result, we will adopt the new standard on March 31, 2019.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2017-07, Compensation - Retirement Benefits (Topic 715). The guidance revises the presentation of net
periodic pension cost and net periodic post-retirement benefit cost. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and is
applicable to us in fiscal 2020. Early adoption is permitted for all entities as of the beginning of an annual reporting period. The impact of adopting ASC
Update No. 2017-07 is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2018-07, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718). The new guidance will align the accounting for
non-employee share-based payments with the existing employee share-based transactions guidance. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2018, and is applicable to us in fiscal 2020. Early adoption is permitted for all entities, including interim periods, but no earlier than the
entity's adoption of ASC 606. The impact of adopting ASC Update No. 2018-07 on our financial position and results of operations is being assessed by
management.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASC Update No. 2018-15, Intangibles, Goodwill and Other - Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40). The new guidance
will align the accounting implementation costs incurred in a cloud computing arrangement that is a service contract with the accounting for internal-use
software licenses. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and is applicable to us in fiscal 2021. Early adoption is
permitted for all entities, including interim periods. The impact of adopting ASC Update No. 2018-15 is not expected to have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

» « ” «

Statements contained in this report, as well as oral statements we make that are prefaced with the words “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “continue,”
“estimate,” “project,” “intend,” “designed,” and similar expressions, are intended to identify forward looking statements regarding events, conditions and
financial trends that may affect our future plans of operations, business strategy, results of operations and financial position. These statements are based on
our current expectations and estimates as to prospective events and circumstances about which we can give no firm assurance. Further, any forward-looking
statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect
events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made. As it is not possible to predict every new factor that may emerge, forward-looking
statements should not be relied upon as a prediction of our actual future financial condition or results.

These forward-looking statements, like any forward-looking statements, involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those projected or anticipated. Factors that may influence or contribute to the inaccuracy of the forward-looking statements or cause actual results to
differ materially from expected or desired results may include, without limitation, demand for whole blood and blood components, changes in executive
management, changes in operations, restructuring and turnaround plans, the impact of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, asset revaluations to reflect current business
conditions, asset sales, technological advances in the medical field and standards for transfusion medicine and our ability to successfully offer products that
incorporate such advances and standards, product quality, market acceptance, regulatory uncertainties, including in the receipt or timing of regulatory
approvals, the effect of economic and political conditions, the impact of competitive products and pricing, blood product reimbursement policies and
practices, foreign currency exchange rates, changes in customers’ ordering patterns including single-source tenders, the effect of industry consolidation as
seen in the plasma and blood center markets, the effect of communicable diseases and the effect of uncertainties in markets outside the U.S. (including Europe
and Asia) in which we operate and other risks detailed under Part IT, Item 1A. Risk Factors included in this report, if any, as well as those described in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018. The foregoing list should not be construed as exhaustive.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our exposure relative to market risk is due to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk.

Foreign Exchange Risk

See the section above entitled Foreign Exchange for a discussion of how foreign currency affects our business. It is our policy to minimize, for a period of
time, the unforeseen impact on our financial results of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates by using derivative financial instruments known as forward
contracts to hedge anticipated cash flows from forecasted foreign currency denominated sales and costs. We do not use the financial instruments for
speculative or trading activities.

We estimate the change in the fair value of all forward contracts assuming both a 10% strengthening and weakening of the U.S. Dollar relative to all other
major currencies. In the event of a 10% strengthening of the U.S. Dollar, the change in fair value of all forward contracts would result in a $5.3 million
increase in the fair value of the forward contracts; whereas a 10% weakening of the U.S. Dollar would result in a $5.5 million decrease of the fair value of the
forward contracts.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to changes in interest rates is associated with borrowings under our Credit Facilities, all of which is variable rate debt. Total outstanding debt
under our Credit Facilities as of December 29, 2018 was $345.6 million with an interest rate of 3.6% based on prevailing LIBOR rates. An increase of 100
basis points in LIBOR rates would result in additional annual interest expense of $3.5 million. On August 21, 2018, we entered into two interest rate swap
agreements to effectively convert $241.9 million of borrowings under our Credit Facilities from a variable rate to a fixed rate. The interest rate swaps qualify
for hedge accounting treatment as cash flow hedges.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation, as of December 29, 2018, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, respectively) regarding the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). Based upon that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of December 29,
2018.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
We implemented certain controls related to the adoption of FASB ASC Topic 606, effective April 1, 2018. These controls were designed and implemented to
ensure the completeness and accuracy over financial reporting. With the exception of the controls implemented for FASB ASC Topic 606, there were no

changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the three and nine months ended December 29, 2018 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Information with respect to this Item may be found in Note 13, Commitments and Contingencies to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
There are no material changes from the Risk Factors previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018.
Item 2. Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information on the Company’s share repurchases during the third quarter of fiscal 2019:

Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Total Shares Purchased as Value of Shares that
Number of Shares Average Price Paid per Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
Purchased Share Announced Program Under the Program®
September 30, 2018 - October 27, 2018
October 28, 2018 - November 24, 2018 556,135 @ 556,135
November 25, 2018 - December 29, 2018 215,024 @ 215,024
Total 771,159 $0

@ On February 6, 2018, the Company announced that the Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of up to $260 million of the Company’s common stock from time to time, based on
market conditions, through March 30, 2019. Under the Company's share repurchase program, shares may be repurchased in accordance with applicable laws both on the open market, including
under trading plans established pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act, and in privately negotiated transactions. As of December 29, 2018, the Company had utilized the full $260 million
share repurchase authorization, which resulted in approximately 3.0 million total shares repurchased at an average price of $86.58 per share, thereby completing the program.

@ In November 2018, the Company entered into an accelerated share repurchase agreement ("ASR") with Citibank N.A. to repurchase approximately $80.0 million of the Company's common
stock. In December 2018, the ASR was completed. The total number of shares repurchased under this ASR was approximately 0.8 million at an average price per share upon final settlement of
$103.74.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
Not applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

Not applicable.
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Item 6. Exhibits
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Office Lease Agreement, dated as of December 18, 2018, by and between OPG 125 Summer Owner (DE) LLC and the Company.

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of Christopher Simon, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley of 2002, of William Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company.

Certification Pursuant to 18 United States Code Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of
Christopher Simon, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Certification Pursuant to 18 United States Code Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of William
Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

The following materials from Haemonetics Corporation on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 29, 2018, formatted in Extensible
Business Reporting Language (XBRL); (i) Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets,
(iii) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (iv) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Confidential treatment has been requested as to portions of the exhibit. Confidential materials omitted and filed separately with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the XBRL-related information in Exhibit 101 to this Form 10-Q is deemed not filed or part of a
registration statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act, is deemed not filed for the purposes of section 18 of the
Exchange Act, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION
2/5/2019 By: /s/ Christopher Simon

Christopher Simon,
President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

2/5/2019 By: /s/ William Burke

William Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
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CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED: Certain portions of this document have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment and, where applicable, have been marked with an asterisk (“[***]”) to denote where omissions have been made. The confidential
material has been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Exhibit 10.1

125 SUMMER STREET
BOSTON, MA

OFFICE LEASE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER (DE) LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company,
AS LANDLORD

AND

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION,
a Massachusetts corporation,
AS TENANT
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OFFICE LEASE AGREEMENT

This Office Lease Agreement (this “Lease”) is made and entered into as of December 18, 2018 (the “Effective Date”), by and between
OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER (DE) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”), and HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a
Massachusetts corporation (“Tenant”).

1. Basic Lease Information.

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05

1.06

1.07

1.08

“Building” shall mean the building located at 125 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02110 and commonly known as 125 Summer
Street. The “Rentable Floor Area of the Building” is deemed to be 475,482 square feet.

“Premises” shall mean the areas shown on Exhibit A to this Lease. The Premises are located on (a) a portion of the sixteenth
(16th) floor of the Building and known as Suite 1620 (the “16th Floor Premises”), (b) a portion of the seventeenth (17th) floor
of the Building and known as Suite 1701 (the “17th Floor Premises”), (c) the entire eighteenth (18th) floor of the Building and
known as Suite 1800 (the “18th Floor Premises™), and (d) the entire nineteenth (19th) floor of the Building and known as Suite
1900 (the “19th Floor Premises™).

“Rentable Floor Area of the Premises”: 62,066 square feet, consisting of (a) 10,617 square feet on the sixteenth (16th) floor of
the Building, (b) 9,066 square feet on the seventeenth (17th) floor of the Building, (c) 21,228 square feet on the eighteenth
(18th) floor of the Building, and (d) 21,155 square feet on the nineteenth (19th) floor of the Building.

“Estimated Delivery Date”: October 1, 2019.

“Term” and “Term Commencement Date”: See Section 3.01.

“Rent Commencement Date”: June 1, 2020, subject to adjustment as provided in Exhibit C attached hereto.

“Term Expiration Date”: The last day of the month in which the twelfth (12th) anniversary of the Rent Commencement Date
occurs.

“Base Rent”:
Annual Base Rent Rate Monthl
Period Per Square Foot of Rentable Y
Base Rent
Floor Area *

Lease Year 1: $[***] $[+**]
Lease Year 2: $[*+*] $[**]
Lease Year 3: $[***] $[*+**]
Lease Year 4: $[***] $[+**]
Lease Year 5: $[***] $[***]
Lease Year 6: $[***] $[+**]
Lease Year 7: $[***] $[+**]

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested



1.09

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

Lease Year 8: $[*] $[***]
Lease Year 9: $[***] $[+**]
Lease Year 10: $[***] $[***]
Lease Year 11: $[*] $[***]
Lease Year 12: $[***] $[***]

*Subject to the Rent Waiver Period under Section 4.01 below.

As used above, the first “Lease Year” shall commence on the Term Commencement Date and end on the day immediately
preceding the first anniversary of the Rent Commencement Date (provided that if the Rent Commencement Date does not
occur on the first day of a calendar month, the first Lease Year shall further include the balance of the calendar month in which
such first anniversary occurs), and each subsequent Lease Year shall mean each successive period of twelve (12) calendar
months following the first Lease Year during the initial Term, provided that the last Lease Year of the initial Term shall end on
the Term Expiration Date set forth above for the initial Term.

“Tenant’s Proportionate Share”: 13.05% for the initial Premises.
“Base Year” for Expenses (as defined in Exhibit B): Calendar year 2019, adjusted to reflect a fully occupied Building.

“Base Year” for Taxes (as defined in Exhibit B): Fiscal Year 2020 (i.e., July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020) adjusted to reflect a fully
assessed, fully occupied Building. For purposes hereof, “Fiscal Year” shall mean the Base Year for Taxes and each period of
July 1 to June 30 thereafter.

“Tenant Work Allowance”: $[***] (based on $[***] per square foot of Rentable Floor Area of the Premises, plus $[***]), as
further described in the attached Exhibit C.

Additional Provisions: See Exhibit F

Parking

Extension Options

Right of First Offer
Hazardous Materials
Dedicated Venting System
Generator

Negative Condition

NouhswWbE

“Letter of Credit” shall mean the letter of credit in the amount of $[***], as provided in Section 6 and Exhibit G attached
hereto and subject to reduction as provided in Exhibit G attached hereto.

“Broker”: Cushman & Wakefield (“Tenant’s Broker”), which represented Tenant in connection with this Lease.
“Permitted Use”: Any general office (which may include, without limitation, employee training, employee lunch room and

kitchen facilities with vending machines for Tenant’s

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested
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1.16

1.17

exclusive use), research and development, laboratory (including medical laboratory), and/or storage uses, including, but not
limited to, administrative offices and other lawful uses reasonably related to or incidental to such specified uses to the extent
not otherwise prohibited by the terms and conditions of this Lease, provided that such uses shall be permitted under applicable
zoning. The parties acknowledge and agree that the foregoing sentence shall not limit or otherwise affect Landlord’s obligation
to process a change of use in the certificate of occupancy for the Building to expressly allow laboratory use on or at the 16"
floor of the Building as provided in Section 5.

“Notice Address(es)”:
For Landlord: For Tenant:
OPG 125 Summer Owner (DE) LLC Prior to the Term Commencement Date:
c/o Oxford Properties Group
125 Summer Street Haemonetics Corporation
Boston, MA 02110 400 Wood Road
Attention: Director of Leasing Braintree, MA 02184-9114

Attention: SVP, Global Business Services
OPG 125 Summer Owner (DE) LLC

c/o Oxford Properties Group With a copy to:

125 Summer Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02110 Haemonetics Corporation
Attention: Director of Legal 400 Wood Road

Braintree, MA 02184-9114
Attention: Executive Vice President and General
Counsel

From and after the Term Commencement Date:

Haemonetics Corporation

125 Summer Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02110

Attention: SVP, Global Business Services

With a copy to:

Haemonetics Corporation

125 Summer Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02110

Attention: Executive Vice President and General
Counsel

“Business Day(s)” are Monday through Friday of each week, exclusive of New Year’s Day, Presidents Day, Memorial Day,
Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day (“Holidays”). Landlord may designate additional
Holidays that are commonly recognized by other office buildings in the area where the Building is located. “Building Service
Hours” are 8:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M. on Business Days and, upon Tenant’s request, 8:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. on Saturdays
(excluding Holidays).

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested
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1.18  “Property” means the Building and the parcel(s) of land on which it is located, more particularly described in Exhibit A-1
attached hereto, and, at Landlord’s discretion, the parking facilities and other improvements, if any, serving the Building and
the parcel(s) of land on which they are located.

1.19  Other Defined Terms: Other capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth in the Lease and its Exhibits below. References
in this Lease to numbered Sections shall be deemed to refer to the numbered Sections of this Lease, unless otherwise specified.

1.20  Exhibits: The following exhibits and attachments are incorporated into and made a part of this Lease:

Exhibit A (Outline and Location of Premises)
Exhibit A-1 (Description of the Property)
Exhibit B (Expenses and Taxes)

Exhibit C (Work Letter)

Exhibit D (Commencement Letter)

Exhibit E (Building Rules and Regulations)
Exhibit F (Additional Provisions)

Exhibit G (Letter of Credit)

Exhibit H (Form of SNDA)

Exhibit I (Tenant’s Approved Signage)
Exhibit I-1 (Tenant’s Approved Logo)

2. Lease Grant.

2.01 Premises. This Lease is effective as of the Effective Date but the Term shall commence on the Term Commencement Date as
provided herein. During the Term, Landlord hereby leases the Premises to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases the Premises from Landlord. The
Premises exclude the exterior faces of exterior walls, the common stairways and stairwells, elevators and elevator wells, fan rooms, electric and
telephone closets, janitor closets, freight elevator vestibules, and pipes, ducts, conduits, wires and appurtenant fixtures serving other parts of the
Building (exclusively or in common), and other Common Areas (as defined below) of the Building. If the Premises include the entire rentable
area of any floor, the common corridors, elevator lobby, and restroom facilities located on such full floor(s) shall be considered part of the
Premises.

2.02  Appurtenant Rights. During the Term, Tenant shall have, as appurtenant to the Premises, the non-exclusive rights to use in
common (subject to reasonable rules of general applicability to tenants and other users of the Building from time to time made by Landlord of
which Tenant is given notice): (a) the common lobbies, corridors, stairways, elevators and loading platform of the Building, and the pipes,
ducts, conduits, wires and appurtenant meters and equipment serving the Premises in common with others; (b) common driveways and
walkways necessary for access to the Building; (c) if the Premises include less than the entire rentable floor area of any floor, the common
corridors, elevator lobby, and restroom facilities located on such floor; and (d) subject to Landlord’s right to temporarily close the Garage as
provided in Exhibit F attached hereto, the Garage (as defined in Exhibit F attached hereto); and (e) all other areas or facilities in or about the
Building from time to time designated for general use in common by Tenant, other Building tenants, and Landlord (collectively, the “Common
Areas”). In addition Tenant shall have the exclusive right to use the Dedicated Venting System (as defined in Section 5 of Exhibit F attached
hereto) and the Back-Up Power and Supplemental Components (as defined in Section 6 of Exhibit F attached hereto) and the non-exclusive
right to access those portions of the Building and the Property (including, without limitation, the roof of the Building), to the extent necessary
for the operation,

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested
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maintenance, and repair of the Dedicated Venting System, all subject to, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions set forth in Section 5
of Exhibit F attached hereto).

3. Term and Commencement Date.

3.01 Term. The “Term” of this Lease shall begin at 12:01 a.m. on the following date (the “Term Commencement Date”): the date on
which the Premises are delivered free of all tenants and other occupants and their personal property, with the Shell Condition Work (as defined
in Exhibit C attached hereto), and the Initial Tenant Work (defined below) substantially complete (as defined in Exhibit C attached hereto) and
with Tenant having received a copy of a certificate of occupancy for the Premises that permits the use of the Premises for the Permitted Use
(and which may be temporary so long as such temporary certificate of occupancy permits the use of the Premises for the Permitted Use);
provided, however, that if such certificate of occupancy cannot be issued due to any work to be performed by Tenant, then the issuance of a
certificate of occupancy shall not be a condition to the occurrence of the Term Commencement Date but Landlord shall secure such certificate
of occupancy as soon as practicable following the completion of any such work to be performed by Tenant.

The Term of this Lease shall end at 11:59 p.m. on the Term Expiration Date set forth in Section 1, unless sooner terminated or extended in
accordance with the provisions of this Lease. Promptly after the determination of the Term Commencement Date, Landlord and Tenant shall
execute and deliver a commencement letter in the form attached as Exhibit D (the “Commencement Letter”). Tenant’s failure to execute and
return the Commencement Letter, or to provide written objection to the statements contained in the Commencement Letter, within thirty (30)
days after its delivery to Tenant shall be deemed an approval by Tenant of the statements contained therein. The Term Commencement Date
shall not occur until substantial completion as described in the first paragraph of this Section 3.01.

3.02 [Initial Tenant Work. As used herein, the “Initial Tenant Work” shall mean all alterations, additions or improvements performed,
or to be performed, in or about the Premises that are required initially to put the Premises in condition suitable for Tenant’s use and occupancy
for the Permitted Use, as and to the extent described in Exhibit C attached hereto, excluding the Shell Condition Work (as defined in Exhibit C
attached hereto). The Initial Tenant Work shall include, without limitation, the Dedicated Venting System, the installation of a separate HVAC
system for the 16" Floor Premises, and the installation of the Back-Up Power And Supplemental Components referenced in Exhibit F attached
hereto. The Initial Tenant Work shall be performed by Landlord in accordance with, and subject to, the provisions of Exhibit C attached hereto.
Landlord shall also deliver the Premises on the Term Commencement Date with all base building systems serving the Premises in good
working order. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, to the extent that any changes to the Base Building (as defined in Section 5 below) are
specifically required solely because of Tenant’s research and development use, lab use or the lab specifications for the Initial Tenant Work
(“Base Building Modifications”, which shall not include any modifications to the Base Building required by the Initial Tenant Work for general
office use), Landlord shall perform such Base Building Modifications and Tenant shall pay for all costs of such Base Building Modifications as
a part of the Excess Tenant Work Costs (as defined in Exhibit C attached hereto). Landlord represents to Tenant that, to Landlord’s knowledge,
there are no actionable levels of Hazardous Materials (as defined in Exhibit F attached hereto) existing at the Premises as of the Effective Date.
Landlord shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold Tenant harmless from any and all costs for any removal, encapsulation or remediation
required by applicable Environmental, Health and Safety Laws for any actionable levels of Hazardous Materials existing at the Premises as of
the Term Commencement Date, except to the extent such Hazardous Materials were brought onto the Premises or the Property by Tenant, its
employees, agents, or contractors. Except as expressly provided in this Section 3.02, and subject to Landlord’s obligations as expressly
provided in Exhibit C and its other obligations under this Lease, the Premises shall be leased by Tenant in their current “as is” condition and
configuration without any representations or warranties by Landlord.

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested
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3.03 Intentionally Omitted.

3.04 Park Square Agreement Contingency. Landlord has advised Tenant that the 18" Floor Premises is currently occupied by Park
Square Executive Search (“Park Square”) pursuant to a lease by and between Landlord and Park Square. Landlord represents and warrants that,
as of the Effective Date, it has entered into a lease termination agreement pursuant to which Park Square is required to terminate its existing
lease early and vacate the 18" Floor Premises upon such early termination (the “Park Square Agreement”).

3.05 Early Access. Except as otherwise provided in Exhibit C to this Lease, Tenant shall not be permitted to take possession of or
enter the Premises for business purposes before the Term Commencement Date without Landlord’s permission.

4. Rent.

4.01 Base Rent and Additional Rent. During the Term (but subject to the following subparagraph of this Section 4.01 below), Tenant
hereby covenants and agrees to pay to Landlord, without any setoff or deduction (except to the extent expressly set forth in this Lease), (a) all
Base Rent (as provided in Section 1), (b) Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the Expense Excess and the Tax Excess (as provided in Exhibit B
attached hereto), and (c) all other Additional Rent due for the Term (collectively referred to as “Rent”). “Additional Rent” means all sums
(exclusive of Base Rent) that Tenant is required to pay to Landlord from time to time under this Lease.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord agrees to waive payment of the monthly amounts of (i) Base Rent and (ii) Additional Rent for
Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the Expense Excess and the Tax Excess for the Premises for the period commencing on the Term
Commencement Date and ending on the date immediately preceding the Rent Commencement Date set forth in Section 1 (the “Rent Waiver
Period”). In the event that the Rent Waiver Period does not end on the last day of a calendar month, then on the first day of the calendar month
in which the Rent Waiver Period expires, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the amount of the Base Rent and Additional Rent for the portion of the
calendar month that follows the last day of the Rent Waiver Period, pro-rated on a per diem basis.

4.02 Manner and Timing of Payments. Base Rent and other recurring fixed monthly charges of Additional Rent shall be due and
payable in advance on the first day of each calendar month without notice or demand. All other items of Rent shall be due and payable by
Tenant within thirty (30) days after billing by Landlord. Rent shall be made payable to the entity, and sent to the address, that Landlord from
time to time designates for such purposes and shall be paid by Tenant by good and sufficient check payable in United States of America
currency or by electronic or wire transfer to an account from time to time designated by Landlord. Landlord’s acceptance of less than the entire
amount of Rent shall be considered, unless otherwise specified by Landlord, a payment on account of the oldest obligation due from Tenant
hereunder, notwithstanding any statement to the contrary contained on or accompanying any such payment from Tenant. Rent for any partial
month during the Term shall be prorated on a per diem basis. Tenant shall pay and be liable for all rental, sales and use taxes (but excluding
income taxes), if any, imposed upon or measured by Rent. No endorsement or statement on a check or letter accompanying payment shall be
considered an accord and satisfaction.

5. Compliance with Laws; Use.

Tenant shall use the Premises only for the Permitted Use (or any portions of the Permitted Use) and shall not use or permit the use of
the Premises for any other purpose. In connection with Landlord’s application for a building permit for the Initial Tenant Work, Landlord, at its
sole cost and expense, shall
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process a change of use in the certificate of occupancy for the Building to expressly allow laboratory use on or at the 16" floor of the Building
(the “Amended Building_CO”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, all laboratory uses and research and development uses shall be
limited to the Lab Space (as defined below) and only such other portions of the Premises as such uses are allowed under the Amended Building
CO. From and after the Term Commencement Date, Tenant shall comply with all statutes, codes, ordinances, orders, rules and regulations of
any municipal or governmental entity whether in effect now or later, including without limitation, the Environmental Health and Safety Laws
(as defined in Exhibit F attached hereto) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (“Law(s)”), regarding the operation of Tenant’s business and
the use and occupancy of the Premises, subject to Landlord’s delivery obligations as expressly set forth in this Lease. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, and except as provided in Exhibit C attached hereto, Tenant shall be solely responsible for complying with all Laws
that relate to operations of Tenant’s laboratory uses, and all Laws pertaining to equipment, installations and improvements used or required in
connection with the operations of Tenant’s laboratory uses. Tenant shall comply with applicable laboratory practices, (including the use of
safety equipment) and policies established by the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (the “CDC”), and its use of the Premises shall not
exceed applicable Biosafety Level 2 (“BSL-2") requirements and protocols in effect with respect to Tenant’s use from time to time, and Tenant
shall store, use and dispose of Hazardous Materials in compliance with all applicable Environmental, Health and Safety Laws and shall comply
with all Laws applicable to the handling, use or disposition of any Hazardous Materials in connection with the Back-Up Power And
Supplemental Components referenced in Section 6 of Exhibit F. In addition, Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, promptly comply with
any Laws that relate to the Base Building (defined below), but only to the extent such obligations are triggered by Tenant’s use of the Premises
(other than for general office use), the Initial Tenant Work (unless such obligations are triggered solely due to the total cost of the Initial Tenant
Work or by Tenant’s use of the Premises for general office use) or any Alterations (as defined in Section 8.01) in or about the Premises
performed or requested by Tenant after the Term Commencement Date, provided that Landlord shall perform the Shell Condition Work and the
Initial Tenant Work in compliance with all applicable Laws (subject to Tenant’s reimbursement obligations set forth in Section 3.02 above).
Except to the extent the same are expressly set forth herein as obligations of Tenant, Landlord shall be responsible for the compliance of the
Base Building with all applicable Laws. All costs incurred by Landlord for compliance work shall be included in Expenses except as otherwise
expressly provided in Exhibit B attached hereto. “Base Building” shall include the structural portions of the Building, the common restrooms,
and the Building mechanical, electrical, and plumbing systems and equipment located in the internal core of the Building on the floor or floors
on which the Premises are located. Tenant shall promptly provide Landlord with copies of any notices it receives regarding an alleged violation
of Law. Except as otherwise provided herein, Tenant shall be solely responsible, at Tenant’s sole cost and expenses, for obtaining all
operational permits, licenses and approvals required in order for Tenant to use the Premises for the Permitted Use (excluding any permits,
licenses, and approvals required for the construction of the Initial Tenant Work, which shall be Landlord’s responsibility). If any governmental
license or permit required to be obtained by Tenant shall be required for the proper and lawful conduct of Tenant’s business at the Premises, and
if the failure to secure such license or permit would in any way affect Landlord, the Premises, the Buildings or the Property or Tenant’s ability
to perform any of its obligations under this Lease, Tenant, at Tenant’s expense, shall duly procure and thereafter maintain such license and
submit the same to inspection by Landlord. Tenant, at Tenant’s expense, shall at all times comply in all material respects with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. Within five (5) business days following Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s written request therefor,
Tenant shall provide Landlord with copies of any Environmental Health and Safety permits, licenses and registrations that are obtained or
renewed during the Term. Tenant shall not exceed the standard density limit for the Building, which is 1 person per 150 useable square feet.
Tenant shall not use or permit the use of any portion of the Premises or any equipment installed by Tenant or any party acting under or through
Tenant in a manner that results in commercially unreasonable objectionable noise, odors, or vibrations emanating from the Premises and shall
prevent the emanation of noxious odors, smoke, vibration, noise, water or other commercially
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unreasonable effects which constitute a nuisance or otherwise unreasonably interfere with the safety or comfort of Landlord or of any of the
other occupants of the Building. Landlord agrees that Tenant’s use of the Premises for the Permitted Use shall not be objectionable provided
that Tenant complies with the foregoing and its obligations under this Lease, Landlord and Tenant both acknowledging the fact that the
Premises are in a multi-tenant Building, which includes office uses and the Permitted Use under this Lease. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing sentence, Tenant shall not use any portion of the Premises for a personal fitness or exercise area or install or use any exercise
equipment therein. Tenant shall comply with the rules and regulations of the Building attached as Exhibit E and such other reasonable rules
and regulations adopted by Landlord from time to time, including rules and regulations for the performance of Alterations, of which Tenant has
been given prior written notice and which do not materially decrease Tenant’s rights or materially increase Tenant’s obligations under this
Lease. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Lease and the rules and regulations, the terms of this Lease shall control. If the
Premises or any portion thereof are located on a multi-tenant floor, Tenant shall cause all portions of such Premises that are visible from the
Common Areas on such floors to be arranged, furnished, and lighted in a manner in which such Premises appears at all times to be occupied for
the Permitted Use.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, during the Term, (a) Tenant shall be entitled to the allocation of one
hundred percent (100%) of the maximum allowable chemical quantities (both in use and in storage) permitted by MAQ Codes (defined below)
for the 16" Floor Premises, (b) with respect to any Permitted Use of the Premises located on the 17", 18", or 19" floors of Building that is
subject to regulation by MAQ Codes, the maximum allowable chemical quantities (both in use and in storage) permitted by MAQ Codes shall
be allocated based on the proportion that the rentable square footage of the Premises located on the applicable floor bears to the total rentable
square footage of such floor, and (c) Landlord shall not permit the use of the 16™ floor of the Building or any portion thereof (excluding the 16%
Floor Premises) for the use or storage of chemicals the quantities of which are regulated by the MAQ Codes. As used in this paragraph, “MAQ
Codes” shall mean 780 CMR — Massachusetts State Building Code 9" Edition, 527 CMR — Massachusetts Comprehensive Fire Safety Code,
and NEPA 45 — Standard on Fire Protection for Laboratories Using Chemicals, 2011 Edition.

6. Letter of Credit.

Concurrently with Tenant’s execution and delivery of this Lease, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a clean, irrevocable letter of credit in the
amount set forth in Section 1, which shall comply with, which may be drawn by Landlord in accordance with, and which shall be subject to
reduction in accordance with, the provisions of Exhibit G attached hereto (such letter of credit, together with any renewal or replacement
thereof in accordance herewith, being referred to herein as the “Letter of Credit”).

7. Building Services.

7.01 Building Services. Landlord shall furnish Tenant with the following services: (a) water for use in the Base Building restrooms;
(b) customary heat and air conditioning in season during Building Service Hours; (c) standard janitorial service for the office portions of the
Premises on Business Days (it being acknowledged and agreed that Tenant shall be solely responsible for all cleaning with respect to the Lab
Space as provided in Section 9.01); (d) elevator service; (e) electricity in accordance with the terms and conditions in Section 7.02; (f) access to
the Building for Tenant and its employees 24 hours per day/7 days per week, subject to the terms of this Lease and such protective services or
monitoring systems, if any, as Landlord may from time to time impose, including, without limitation, sign-in procedures and/or presentation of
identification cards; and (g) such other services as Landlord reasonably determines are necessary or appropriate for the Property. In addition,
Tenant shall have the right to receive HVAC service during hours other than Building Service Hours by paying Landlord’s then standard charge
for additional HVAC service and providing such prior notice as is reasonably specified by Landlord. As of the Effective
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Date, Landlord’s standard charge for additional HVAC service is $64.00 per hour during warm weather months (generally commencing as of
June 1%) and $47.00 per hour during cold weather months (generally commencing as of October 1%). If Tenant is permitted to connect any
supplemental HVAC units to the Building’s condenser water loop or chilled water line, such permission shall be conditioned upon Landlord
having adequate excess capacity from time to time and such connection and use shall be subject to Landlord’s reasonable approval and
reasonable restrictions imposed by Landlord, and Landlord shall have the right to charge Tenant a connection fee and/or a monthly usage fee, as
reasonably determined by Landlord. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Landlord agrees that, throughout the Term of this Lease, 20 tons
of condenser water will be available for the 16" Floor Premises and 5 tons of condenser water will be available for the 17" Floor Premises,
provided that Tenant will be responsible, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, for the installation, operation and maintenance of any condenser
water pump(s) to the extent Tenant determines such pump(s) are necessary to maintain flow requirements. If, at Tenant’s request, Landlord, or
an affiliated or third party service provider, provides any services that are not Landlord’s express obligation under this Lease, including, without
limitation, any repairs which are Tenant’s responsibility pursuant to Section 9 below, Tenant shall pay to the applicable service provider the cost
of such services plus a reasonable administrative charge.

7.02 Tenant Electricity. As part of the Initial Tenant Work, Landlord shall deliver the Premises separately metered for electricity;
provided, however, that if separate metering is not allowed by the utility company, then Landlord instead shall install sub-meters or check meter
for the Premises. Without the consent of Landlord, Tenant’s use of electrical service shall not exceed the Building’s standard capacity, as
reasonably determined by Landlord, based upon the Building standard electrical design load. To the extent the Premises are separately metered,
Tenant shall timely pay the separate charges for such electricity service directly to the applicable utility company. With respect to the electricity
charges hereunder that are not separately metered, Tenant shall make estimated monthly payments for such electricity charges hereunder, in
advance on the first day of each month or partial month of the Term, based on amounts estimated by Landlord from time to time for such
electricity charges, subject to periodic reconciliations based on actual meter readings and utility rates for the space and period in question.

7.03 Interruption of Services. Any interruption, diminishment or termination of services to the Premises (a “Service Failure”) due to
the application of Laws, the failure of any equipment, the performance of maintenance, repairs, improvements or alterations, utility
interruptions or the occurrence of an event of Force Majeure (as defined in Section 21.06) or any other cause shall not give rise to an abatement
of Rent or relieve Tenant from the obligation to fulfill any covenant or agreement, except as provided in this Section 7.03. If the Premises, or
any portion thereof, are made untenantable as a result of a Service Failure not caused by Tenant, and such Service Failure continues for a period
in excess of five (5) consecutive Business Days after written notice thereof to Landlord, then Tenant shall be entitled to receive an abatement of
Rent payable hereunder during the period commencing on the day following such five (5) Business-Day period and ending on the day the
services have been restored. If the entire Premises has not been rendered untenantable by such Service Failure, the amount of abatement shall
be equitably prorated. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, if any Service Failure not caused by
Tenant is not cured within one hundred eighty (180) days following the date the Service Failure commences, then Tenant shall have the right, at
its sole election, to terminate this Lease by giving written notice of such termination to Landlord at any time following the end of such one
hundred eighty (180) day period until such time as the Service Failure is cured. This Section shall not apply to any Service Failure arising from
a casualty event governed by Section 14 below. The remedies set forth in this Section 7.03 shall be Tenant’s sole remedies for a Service Failure.

7.04  Reservations. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Landlord reserves the right from time to time to modify
components of the access procedures for the Building or other portions of the Property, to change the number of lobby attendants, or to
institute, modify, supplement, or discontinue any
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particular access control procedures or equipment for the Building, whether during or after business hours. Landlord does not warrant or
guarantee the effectiveness of any such system or procedures. Tenant expressly disclaims any such warranty, guarantee, or undertaking by
Landlord with respect thereto and acknowledges that access control procedures from time to time in effect are solely for the convenience of
tenants generally and are not intended to secure the Premises or to guarantee the physical safety of any persons in or about the Premises or the
Property. Tenant shall be responsible for securing the Premises, including without limitation by Tenant’s installation of access card readers or
other security equipment for the Premises in accordance with Exhibit C and/or Section 8 and by restricting or monitoring access into and from
the Premises by its employees or other invitees. At the time that any Tenant employee (or other person acting under or through Tenant) who
has been issued a Building access card is terminated or otherwise ceases to work at the Premises, Tenant shall inactivate the Building access
card for such person and, notify the Building’s property manager that such person should be removed from the active list for Building access
cards.

8. Alterations

8.01 Alterations. Tenant shall not make alterations, repairs, additions or improvements or install any Cable (collectively referred to as
“Alterations”, which shall not include any alterations, repairs, additions, or improvements made as a part of the Shell Condition Work or the
Initial Tenant Work) in the Premises, without first obtaining the written consent of Landlord in each instance, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. “Cable” shall mean and refer to any electronic, fiber, phone and data cabling and related
equipment that is installed by or for the exclusive benefit of Tenant or any party acting under or through Tenant. Prior to starting work on any
Alterations, Tenant shall furnish Landlord with plans and specifications (which shall be in CAD format if requested by Landlord); names of
contractors reasonably acceptable to Landlord (provided that Landlord may designate specific contractors with respect to Base Building and
vertical Cable, as may be described more fully below); required permits and approvals; evidence of contractor’s and subcontractor’s insurance
in amounts reasonably required by Landlord and naming as additional insureds the Landlord, the managing agent for the Building, and such
other Additional Insured Parties (as defined in Section 13) as Landlord may designate for such purposes; and any security for performance in
amounts reasonably required by Landlord. Landlord may designate specific contractors with respect to oversight, installation, repair,
connection to, and removal of vertical Cable. All Cable shall be clearly marked with adhesive plastic labels (or plastic tags attached to such
Cable with wire) to show Tenant’s name, suite number, and the purpose of such Cable (i) every 6 feet outside the Premises (specifically
including, but not limited to, the electrical room risers and any Common Areas), and (ii) at the termination point(s) of such Cable. Changes to
the plans and specifications must also be submitted to Landlord for its approval. Alterations shall be constructed in a good and workmanlike
manner using materials of a quality reasonably approved by Landlord, and Tenant shall ensure that no Alteration impairs any Building system
or Landlord’s ability to perform its obligations hereunder. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for any third-party expenses incurred by Landlord in
connection with the review, inspection, and coordination of Tenant’s plans for Alterations and Tenant’s performance thereof and pay to
Landlord or its managing agent a fee for Landlord’s administrative oversight and coordination of any Alterations equal to 2.0% of the hard
costs of the Alterations. Upon completion, Tenant shall furnish “as-built” plans (in CAD format, if requested by Landlord) for Alterations,
customary AIA completion affidavits, full and final waivers of lien, any applicable certificate of occupancy for the space affected by such
Alterations, and any other items required under the Building’s construction rules and regulations for closing out the particular work in
question. Landlord’s approval of an Alteration shall not be deemed to be a representation by Landlord that the Alteration complies with Law or
will not adversely affect any Building system. If any Alteration requires any change to the Base Building, any Building system, or any
Common Area, then such changes shall be made at Tenant’s sole cost and expense and performed, at Landlord’s election, either by Tenant’s
contractor or a contractor engaged by Landlord. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord’s consent shall not be required for any Alteration that
satisfies all of the following criteria (a “Cosmetic
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Alteration”): (a) is of a cosmetic nature such as painting, wallpapering, hanging pictures and installing carpeting; (b) is not visible from the
exterior of the Premises or Building; (c) will not affect the Base Building (defined in Section 5); and (d) does not require work to be performed
inside the walls or above the ceiling of the Premises. Cosmetic Alterations shall be subject to all the other provisions of this Section 8.03, to
the extent applicable thereto. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, the provisions of this Section 8.01, including,
without limitation, the administrative fee set forth herein, shall not apply to any alterations, additions, or improvements performed as a part of
the Shell Condition Work or the Initial Tenant Work.

8.02 Liens. Tenant shall not cause or permit any mechanics’ or other liens to be placed upon the Property, the Premises, or Tenant’s
leasehold interest hereunder in connection with any work or service done by or for the benefit of Tenant, its subtenants, or any other party
acting under or through Tenant (excluding the Initial Tenant Work to be undertaken by the Landlord). Except in the event of an emergency,
Tenant shall give Landlord notice at least five (5) Business Days prior to the commencement of any work in the Premises to afford Landlord the
opportunity, where applicable, to post and record notices of non-responsibility. Tenant, within ten (10) Business Days after notice from
Landlord, shall fully discharge any such lien by settlement, by bonding or by insuring over the lien in the manner prescribed by the applicable
lien Law. If Tenant fails to timely discharge such lien within such period, in addition to any other remedies available to Landlord as a result of
such failure, Landlord, at its option, may bond, insure over or otherwise discharge the lien. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for any amount
paid by Landlord to discharge such lien, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees. Landlord shall have the right to require
Tenant to post a performance or payment bond in connection with any work or service done or purportedly done by or for the benefit of
Tenant. Tenant acknowledges and agrees that all such work or service is being performed for the sole benefit of Tenant and not for the benefit
of Landlord.

8.03 Leasehold Improvements. All Leasehold Improvements shall, except as expressly provided in this Lease, remain upon the
Premises at the end of the Term without compensation to Tenant. “Leasehold Improvements” shall mean and include all Initial Tenant Work
and other leasehold improvements from time to time existing in or to the Premises, including without limitation any such leasehold
improvements (if any) that exist as of the Term Commencement Date under this Lease or that are made by or for the benefit of Tenant (or any
party acting under or through Tenant) before the Term Commencement Date or thereafter from time to time during the Term. Landlord, by
written notice to Tenant at the time of Landlord’s approval of the plans therefor, may require Tenant, at Tenant’s expense, to remove at the end
of the Term any Leasehold Improvements that, in Landlord’s reasonable judgment, are of a nature that would require removal and repair costs
that are materially in excess of the removal and repair costs associated with standard office improvements (“Required Removables”). Required
Removables may include, without limitation, laboratory fixtures, laboratory equipment and specialized improvements for laboratory uses,
raised floors, private baths and showers, vaults, rolling file systems, slab penetrations, structural alterations and modifications and any Cable
installed by or on behalf of Tenant; provided, however, that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, but subject to
Section 5 of Exhibit F attached hereto, Required Removables shall not include the Dedicated Venting System, the Back-Up Power and
Supplemental System (as defined below), typical intercommunicating internal stairways or staircases or any standard core restroom facilities,
the same shall not be required to be removed by Tenant at the end of the Term, and Landlord shall indicate in writing at the time of Landlord’s
approval of the Construction Documents whether or not such improvements are required to be removed by Tenant at the end of the Term. The
Required Removables shall be removed by Tenant before the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease in accordance with Section 20.

8.04 Signage. No signs, advertisements or notices shall be painted or affixed to windows, doors or other parts of the Building, except
those of such color, size, style and in such places as are first approved in writing by Landlord. On or before the Substantial Completion Date,
Landlord shall provide and install
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a stainless steel plaque with Tenant’s logo as shown on Exhibit I attached hereto to be installed near the high-rise elevator bank in the location
shown on Exhibit I attached hereto (“Tenant’s Elevator Bank Signage”). For any portion of the Premises on a floor that is not entirely leased by
Tenant, elevator lobby signage identifying Tenant using Building standard graphics shall be installed by Landlord at its expense, provided that
any changes to a Tenant’s initial elevator lobby signage shall be made by Landlord at Tenant’s expense. All tenant identification and suite
numbers at the entrance to the Premises on any floor that is not entirely leased by Tenant shall be subject to Landlord’s prior written approval in
Landlord’s reasonable discretion, and shall be installed by Landlord, at Tenant’s cost and expense, using the standard graphics for the Building.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary (a) for any portion of the Premises that constitutes an entire floor of the Building, Tenant, at
Tenant’s sole cost, may install interior signage on such floor which is not visible from the exterior of the Premises without Landlord’s prior
written consent, and (b) Landlord hereby approves the design and style of Tenant’s logo as shown on Exhibit I-1 attached hereto, for use as a
part of Tenant’s signage.

9. Repairs and Maintenance.

9.01 Tenant Obligations. Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall perform all maintenance and repairs to the Premises that are not
Landlord’s express responsibility under this Lease, and keep the Premises in good condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear, damage by
casualty or the acts of Landlord, and matters for which Landlord is responsible under this Lease, excepted. Tenant’s repair and maintenance
obligations include, without limitation, repairs to: (a) floor covering; (b) interior partitions; (c) doors; (d) the interior side of demising walls;
(e) Alterations (described in Section 8); (f) supplemental air conditioning units, kitchens, including hot water heaters, plumbing, and similar
facilities exclusively serving the Premises or any portion thereof, whether such items are installed by Tenant or are currently existing in the
Premises; and (g) any Cable. Tenant shall maintain in effect throughout the Term maintenance contracts for any such supplemental air
conditioning units or other specialty equipment exclusively serving the Premises and, from time to time upon Landlord’s request, provide
Landlord with a copy of such maintenance contract and reasonable evidence of its service record. All repairs and other work performed by
Tenant or its contractors, including that involving Cable, shall be subject to the terms of Section 8.01 above. If Tenant fails to make any repairs
to the Premises required hereunder of Tenant for more than thirty (30) days after notice from Landlord (although notice shall not be required in
an emergency), and if such repairs cannot be completed in such thirty (30) day period, if Tenant fails to commence such repairs within such
thirty (30) day period and thereafter fails to diligently pursue such repairs until completion, Landlord may make the repairs, and, within thirty
(30) days after Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s written demand therefor, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the reasonable cost of the repairs.

Landlord shall have no obligation to provide any cleaning, janitorial or refuse or waste removal services in or to the laboratory space to
be located in the 16" Floor Premises (the “Lab Space™), which Lab Space is presently shown on the fit plan attached as part of Schedule C-2
hereto (the “Fit Plan”). Landlord and Tenant agree to amend this Lease to reflect the final, as-built Lab Space. Tenant shall be responsible, at its
sole cost and expense, for providing cleaning and janitorial services to such Lab Space in a neat and first-class manner consistent with the
cleaning standards generally prevailing in comparable buildings in the Greater Boston area for laboratory and office space or as otherwise
reasonably established by Landlord in writing from time to time, using an insured contractor or contractors selected by Tenant and approved in
writing by Landlord. Tenant shall also be responsible to arrange for, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, any waste (including biomedical,
hazardous and laboratory waste) and refuse removal services for Tenant’s operations at the Premises. All such waste (including biomedical,
hazardous and laboratory waste) and refuse removal shall be performed in compliance with applicable Environmental, Health and Safety Laws
using licensed laboratory waste disposal companies. All waste (including biomedical, hazardous and laboratory waste) and refuse shall be
stored in the Premises and shall be removed as required by applicable Environmental, Health and Safety Laws. Tenant shall also cause all
extermination of vermin in the
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Premises to be performed by companies reasonably approved by Landlord in writing and shall contract and utilize pest extermination services
for the Premises as reasonably necessary or as requested by Landlord. Landlord agrees that its approval of any contractors or companies under
this paragraph shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed; provided, however, that Landlord shall have the right to require any
contractor or subcontractor performing work at the Premises or the Building, including without limitation, any contractor providing cleaning
and janitorial services for the Lab Space, to employ union labor and any construction manager used by Tenant in connection with work at the
Premises or the Building to be a union-associated construction manager.

9.02 Landlord Obligations. Landlord shall keep and maintain in good repair and working order, perform maintenance upon, and
replace, as and when necessary (a) the structural elements of the Building; (b) the mechanical (including HVAC), electrical, plumbing and
fire/life safety systems serving the Building in general; (c) the Common Areas; (d) the roof and roof membrane of the Building; (e) the exterior
windows of the Building; and (f) the elevators serving the Building. Subject to reasonable wear and tear, Landlord shall from time to time
make repairs for which Landlord is responsible hereunder.

10. Entry by Landlord.

Landlord may enter the Premises to inspect, show to current lenders, prospective lenders or purchasers of the Building, and prospective tenants
of the Premises or any portion thereof, or clean the Premises or to perform or facilitate the performance of repairs, alterations or additions to the
Premises or any portion of the Building. Except in emergencies or to provide Building services, Landlord shall provide Tenant with reasonable
(but not less than forty-eight (48) hours) prior verbal notice of entry. In connection with any such entry for non-emergency work performed
during Building Service Hours, Landlord shall use reasonable efforts, consistent with the operation of a first-class high rise building, not to
unreasonably interfere with Tenant’s use of the Premises. Except in the case of emergencies, Tenant shall have the right to accompany
Landlord and/or its agents, representatives, or contractors during any entry onto the Premises by Landlord or its agents, representatives, or
contractors. In addition, in connection with any entry to show the Premises to prospective tenants, Landlord shall comply with any reasonable
privacy and security protocols established by Tenant for the Lab Space to ensure the confidentiality of any proprietary information. If
reasonably necessary, Landlord may temporarily close all or a portion of the Common Areas of the Building to perform repairs, alterations and
additions, and portions of the Premises in order to perform any maintenance or repairs pursuant to Section 9 of this Lease; provided, that,
except in emergencies, any such work that would unreasonably prevent the use of or access to such portions of the Premises during Building
Service Hours will be performed on weekends or after Building Service Hours. Any such entry by Landlord in accordance with the terms of
this Section 10 shall not constitute a constructive eviction or entitle Tenant to an abatement or reduction of Rent.

11. Assignment and Subletting.

11.01 Transfers. Except in connection with a Permitted Transfer (defined in Section 11.04), Tenant shall not assign, sublease, transfer
or encumber any interest in this Lease or allow any third party to use all or any portion of the Premises (in each such case, collectively or
individually, a “Transfer” to a “Transferee”) without the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed if Landlord does not exercise its recapture rights under Section 11.02. Without limitation, it is agreed that Landlord’s
consent shall not be considered unreasonably withheld if the proposed Transferee (a) is a governmental entity, (b) is an occupant of the
Building, (c) whether or not an occupant of the Building, has exchanged written bona fide proposals with Landlord regarding the leasing of
space within the Building within the preceding six (6) months, (d) is incompatible with the character of occupancy of the Building, (e)
intentionally deleted, or (f) would subject the Premises to a use which would: (i) involve a material increase in personnel or material increase in
wear upon the
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Building; (ii) violate any exclusive right granted to another tenant of the Building; (iii) require material expense for any addition to or
modification of the Premises or the Building in order to comply with applicable Laws; or (iv) involve a violation of the Permitted Use clauses
of this Lease. Any Transfer in violation of this Section shall, at Landlord’s option, be deemed a Default by Tenant as described in
Section 16.01, and shall be voidable by Landlord. In no event shall any Transfer, including a Permitted Transfer, release or relieve Tenant from
any obligation under this Lease, and the Tenant originally named in this Lease shall remain primarily liable for the performance of the tenant’s
obligations under this Lease, as amended from time to time.

11.02  Process. Tenant shall provide Landlord with financial statements for the proposed Transferee, a fully executed copy of the
proposed assignment, or sublease, and such other information as Landlord may reasonably request. Within ten (10) Business Days after receipt
of the required information and documentation, Landlord shall either: (a) consent to the Transfer by execution of a consent agreement in a form
reasonably designated by Landlord; (b) reasonably refuse to consent to the Transfer in writing; or (c) in the event of a proposed assignment of
this Lease or subletting of at least the entire portion of the Premises located on a floor, recapture the portion of the Premises that Tenant is
proposing to Transfer, and give Tenant written notice of the same. If Landlord fails to give Tenant such written notice within such ten (10)
Business Day period, then Landlord shall be deemed to have waived its right to recapture the portion of the Premises that Tenant is proposing
to Transfer, but shall be deemed to have refused consent to such Transfer. If Landlord exercises its right to recapture, this Lease shall
automatically be amended (or terminated if the entire Premises is being assigned or sublet) to delete the applicable portion of the Premises
effective on the proposed effective date of the Transfer, although Landlord may require Tenant to execute a reasonable amendment or other
document reflecting such reduction or termination. Tenant shall pay to Landlord the reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees incurred by Landlord
in connection with such requested Transfer.

11.03 Excess Payments. In the event, if any, that (i) all rent and other cash consideration (including without limitation, any parking
charges in excess of the rates charged by Landlord to Tenant, any payment in excess of fair market value for services rendered by Tenant to the
Transferee and any payment in excess of fair market value for assets, fixtures, inventory, equipment, or furniture transferred by Tenant to the
Transferee in connection with such Transfer) which Tenant receives as a result of a Transfer exceeds (ii) the Rent payable to Landlord for the
portion of the Premises and Term covered by the Transfer, then Tenant shall, at Landlord’s election, pay to Landlord an amount equal to fifty
percent (50%) of such excess, from time to time on a monthly basis upon Tenant’s receipt of such excess; provided that in determining any such
excess, Tenant may deduct from the excess all reasonable and customary expenses incurred by Tenant in connection with such Transfer,
including, without limitation, any remodeling or redecorating costs, improvement allowances, reasonable legal costs, and brokerage fees)
incurred by Tenant in connection with such Transfer, except that any construction costs incurred by Tenant in connection with such Transfer
shall be deducted on a straight-line basis over the term of the applicable Transfer. If Tenant is in Default, Landlord may require that all
sublease payments be made directly to Landlord, in which case Tenant shall receive a credit against Rent in the amount of Tenant’s share of
payments received by Landlord.

11.04 Permitted Transfers. Tenant may assign this Lease to a successor to Tenant by merger, consolidation, or the purchase of all or
substantially all of Tenant’s assets (a “Successor”), or assign this Lease or sublet all or a portion of the Premises to an Affiliate (defined below),
without the consent of Landlord, and the provisions of Sections 11.01, 11.02, and 11.03 above shall not apply to such assignment of subletting,
provided that all of the following conditions are satisfied (a “Permitted Transfer”): (a) Tenant must not be in Default, (b) Tenant shall give
written notice to Landlord at least ten (10) days prior to the effective date of the Permitted Transfer, if permissible, or otherwise as soon as is
reasonably practicable following the Transfer, and (c) any transferee pursuant to a merger, consolidation or the purchase of all or
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substantially all of Tenant’s assets shall have a tangible net worth at least equal to that of Tenant as of the date of such transfer. Tenant’s notice
to Landlord shall include information and documentation evidencing that the Transfers qualifies as a Permitted Transfer hereunder and that
each of the above conditions has been satisfied. As used herein, “Affiliate” shall mean an entity controlled by, controlling or under common
control with Tenant that is not a Successor. In the event that, at any time after a Permitted Transfer, the Affiliate to which the Permitted
Transfer is made ceases to qualify as an Affiliate of the original Tenant, such event shall be deemed a Transfer that is subject to the provisions
of Sections 11.01, 11.02, and 11.03 above. In no event shall any Permitted Transfer to an Affiliate or a Successor (to the extent Tenant remains
in existence) release or relieve Tenant from any obligation under this Lease, and in such event Tenant shall remain primarily liable for the
performance of the tenant’s obligations under this Lease, as amended from time to time.

11.05  Prohibited Matters. Without limiting Landlord’s right to withhold its consent to any transfer by Tenant, and regardless of
whether Landlord shall have consented to any such transfer, neither Tenant nor any other person having an interest in the possession, use or
occupancy of the Premises or any part thereof shall enter into any lease, sublease, license, concession, assignment or other transfer or
agreement for possession, use or occupancy of all or any portion of the Premises which provides for rent or other payment for such use,
occupancy or utilization based, in whole or in part, on the net income or profits derived by any person or entity from the space so leased, used
or occupied, and any such purported lease, sublease, license, concession, assignment or other transfer or agreement shall be absolutely void and
ineffective as a conveyance of any right or interest in the possession, use or occupancy of all or any part of the Premises.

11.06 Permitted Business Occupants. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, Tenant shall have the right,
without the consent of Landlord, to designate portions of the Premises, not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the Premises in the aggregate and
which portion(s) shall not be separately demised, for temporary use by third parties who provide services in support of Tenant’s operations for
the Permitted Use, including without limitation, Tenant’s consultants, auditors, and caterers (“Permitted Business Occupants™) without being
subject to this Section 11; provided, that (a) in no event shall the use of any portion of the Premises by any such Permitted Business Occupant
create or be deemed to create any right, title or interest of such Permitted Business Occupant in any portion of the Premises or this Lease, (b)
such use or occupancy shall terminate automatically upon the termination of this Lease, (c) no demising walls shall be erected (or shall
otherwise be required by applicable Law) in the Premises separating the space used by a Permitted Business Occupant from the remainder of
the Premises, provided, however, Tenant may install cubicles for the Permitted Business Occupants and for Tenant’s employees, (d) there shall
be no separate identification of any Permitted Business Occupant in the elevator lobby or any entrance to the Premises, and (e) such Permitted
Business Occupants shall carry such insurance as Landlord may reasonably require. Upon the written request of Landlord, Tenant shall notify
Landlord in writing of all Permitted Business Occupants (if any) occupying the Premises.

12. Notices.

All demands, approvals, consents or notices (collectively referred to as a “notice”) shall be in writing and delivered by hand or sent by express
mail or by overnight or same day courier service at the party’s respective Notice Address(es) set forth in Section 1; provided, however, notices
sent by Landlord regarding general Building operational matters may be posted in the Building mailroom or the general Building newsletter or
sent via e-mail to the e-mail address provided by Tenant to Landlord for such purpose. In addition, if the Building is closed (whether due to
emergency, governmental order or any other reason), then any notice address at the Building shall not be deemed a required notice address
during such closure, and, unless Tenant has provided an alternative valid notice address to Landlord for use during such closure, any notices
sent during such closure may be sent via e-mail or in any other practical manner reasonably
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designed to ensure receipt by the intended recipient. Each notice shall be deemed to have been given or received on the earlier to occur of
actual delivery or the date on which delivery is refused, or, if Tenant has vacated the Premises or any other Notice Address of Tenant without
providing a new Notice Address, three (3) Business Days after notice is deposited in the U.S. mail or with a courier service in the manner
described above. Either party may, at any time, change its Notice Address (other than to a post office box address) by giving the other party
written notice of the new address.

13. Indemnity and Insurance.

13.01 Indemnification. Subject to Sections 13.04 and 17.04 of this Lease, except to the extent caused by the negligence or willful
misconduct of Landlord or any Landlord Related Parties (defined below), and to the maximum extent permitted under applicable Law, Tenant
shall indemnify, defend and hold Landlord and Landlord Related Parties harmless against and from all liabilities, obligations, damages,
penalties, claims, actions, costs, charges and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and other professional fees
(collectively referred to as “Losses”), which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against Landlord or any of the Landlord Related
Parties by any third party arising out of or in connection with any damage or injury occurring in the Premises or to the extent arising out of or in
connection with any negligence or willful misconduct of Tenant, its trustees, managers, members, principals, beneficiaries, partners, officers,
directors, employees and agents (the “Tenant Related Parties”) or any of Tenant’s transferees, contractors or licensees, which indemnification
hereunder, for the avoidance of doubt, shall also include such Losses by reason of any failure of Tenant to keep, observe or perform any of its
obligations under Sections 5 or 6 of Exhibit F, or by reason of any damage to any property (including but not limited to property of any
Landlord Related Party) or any injury (including but not limited to death) to any person occurring in, on, or about the Building, to the extent
that such injury or damage shall arise from the operation, maintenance, testing, refueling or cleaning of the Back-Up Power And Supplemental
Components. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Tenant’s indemnification obligations under this Lease shall not apply to any Losses
arising prior to the Term Commencement Date, except to the extent caused by Tenant or any employees, agents, contractors or vendors on
behalf of Tenant and not Landlord. To the maximum extent permitted under applicable Law, but subject to Sections 13.04 and 17.04 of this
Lease, and except to the extent caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord or any Landlord Related Parties, Tenant hereby
waives all claims against and releases Landlord and its trustees, managers, members, principals, beneficiaries, partners, officers, directors,
employees, Mortgagees (defined in Section 20) and agents (the “Landlord Related Parties”) from all claims for any damage to property or
business loss in any manner related to (a) Force Majeure, (b) acts of third parties (which are not Landlord-Related Parties or parties acting by or
through Landlord), (c) the bursting or leaking of any tank, water closet, drain or other pipe, or (d) the inadequacy or failure of any security or
protective services, personnel or equipment.

Subject to Sections 13.04 and 17.04 of this Lease, except to the extent caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Tenant or any
Tenant Related Parties, and to the maximum extent permitted under applicable Law, Landlord shall, during the Term, indemnify, defend and
hold Tenant and Tenant Related Parties harmless against and from all Losses which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against
Tenant or any of the Tenant Related Parties by any third party arising out of or in connection with any damage or injury occurring in the
Common Areas to the extent caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord or any Landlord Related Parties. To the maximum
extent permitted under applicable Law, but subject to Sections 13.04 and 17.04 of this Lease, and except to the extent caused by the negligence
or willful misconduct of Tenant or any Tenant Related Parties, Landlord hereby waives all claims against and releases Tenant and its trustees,
managers, members, principals, beneficiaries, partners, officers, directors, employees, Mortgagees (defined in Section 20) and agents (the
“Tenant Related Parties”) from all claims for any damage to property located in areas of the Building outside of the Premises or business loss in
any manner related to (a) Force Majeure, or (b) acts of third parties (which are not Tenant-Related Parties or parties acting by or through
Tenant).
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13.02 Tenant’s Insurance. Tenant shall maintain the following coverages in the following amounts throughout the Term (and during
any other periods before or after the Term during which Tenant or any Tenant Related Party enters into or occupies all or any portion of the
Premises):

(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering claims of bodily injury, personal injury and property damage arising out
of Tenant’s operations and contractual liabilities, including coverage formerly known as broad form, on an occurrence basis, with limits of
$1,000,000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 annual aggregate and excess/umbrella limit of $5,000,000.00.

(b)  Property insurance covering (i) Tenant’s Property (as defined below), and (ii) any Leasehold Improvements in the
Premises, whether installed by or for the benefit of Tenant under this Lease (“Tenant-Insured Improvements™). Such insurance shall be written
on an “all risks” basis for physical loss or damage, for the full replacement cost value (subject to reasonable deductible amounts) without
deduction for depreciation of the covered items and in amounts that meet any co-insurance clauses of the policies of insurance, and shall
include coverage for damage or other loss caused by fire or other peril, including vandalism and malicious mischief, theft, water damage,
including sprinkler leakage, bursting or stoppage of pipes, and explosion, and providing business interruption coverage for a period of one year.

(c) Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability or other similar insurance to the extent required by Law.

The limits of insurance required to be carried by Tenant shall not limit Tenant’s liability. Such insurance shall (i) be issued by an
insurance company that has an A.M. Best rating of not less than A-VIII; and (ii) be in form and content reasonably acceptable to Landlord. In
the event that Tenant receives any notice of cancellation or material changes to the insurance policies required under this Lease, Tenant shall
notify Landlord of the same within five (5) days after Tenant’s receipt of such notice. Tenant’s Commercial General Liability Insurance shall
(a) name Landlord, Landlord’s managing agent, and any other party designated by Landlord, written notice of which is provided to Tenant
(“Additional Insured Parties”) as additional insureds; and (b) be primary insurance as to all claims thereunder and provide that any insurance
carried by Landlord is excess and non-contributing with Tenant’s insurance. Tenant shall deliver to Landlord, on or before the Term
Commencement Date and at least fifteen (15) days before the expiration dates thereof, certificates from Tenant’s insurance company on the
forms currently designated “ACORD 28” (Evidence of Commercial Property Insurance) and “ACORD 25-S” (Certificate of Liability
Insurance) or the equivalent. Attached to the ACORD 25-S (or equivalent) there shall be a blanket Additional Insured endorsement or a
specific endorsement naming the Additional Insured Parties as additional insureds which shall be binding on Tenant’s insurance company.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the foregoing requirement that the insurance company provide prior notice to Landlord of cancellation or
material change of the applicable policy cannot reasonably be obtained based on then-prevailing insurance industry practices, Tenant shall so
advise Landlord of such unavailability and shall instead provide Landlord with notice of any such cancellation or material change as provided
above. The insurance coverages set forth in (a) and (b) of this Section 13.02 shall also include coverage for the obligations of the Tenant
related to the use of the Dedicated Venting System and the Back-Up Power And Supplemental Components referenced in Exhibit F attached to
this Lease.

Tenant shall maintain such increased amounts of the insurance required to be carried by Tenant under this Section 13.02, and such other
types and amounts of insurance covering the Premises and Tenant’s operations therein, as may be reasonably requested by Landlord, but not in
excess of the amounts and types of insurance then being required by landlords of buildings comparable to and in the vicinity of the Building.

13.03 Tenant’s Property. All furnishings, fixtures, equipment, and other personal property and effects of Tenant and of all persons

claiming through Tenant which from time to time may be on the
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Premises or elsewhere in the Building (collectively, “Tenant’s Property”) shall be at the sole risk of Tenant to the maximum extent permitted by
law and shall be kept insured by Tenant throughout the Term (and during any other periods before or after the Term during which Tenant or any
Tenant Related Party enters into or occupies all or any portion of the Premises) at Tenant’s expense in accordance with Section 13.02. Tenant’s
Property expressly includes all business fixtures and equipment, including without limitation any security or access control systems installed by
Tenant for the Premises, filing cabinets and racks, removable cubicles and partitions, kitchen equipment, computers and related equipment,
raised flooring, supplemental cooling equipment, audiovisual and telecommunications equipment, non-building standard signage, and other
tenant equipment installations, in each case including related conduits, cabling, and brackets or mounting components therefor and any
connectors to base building systems and in each case whether installed or affixed in or about the Premises, in building core areas, or elsewhere
in the Building. Tenant’s Property shall not include items installed in, to, or at the Premises as a part of the Initial Tenant Work.

13.04 Waiver of Subrogation. Each party waives, and shall cause its insurance carrier to waive, any right of recovery against the other
for any loss of or damage to property which loss or damage is (or, if the insurance required hereunder had been carried, would have been)
covered by insurance. For purposes of this Section 13.04, any deductible or self-insured retention with respect to a party’s insurance shall be
deemed covered by, and recoverable by such party under, valid and collectable policies of insurance.

13.05 Landlord’s Insurance. Landlord shall maintain all-risk property insurance, insuring the full replacement cost of the Premises
(excluding Tenant-Insured Improvements), the Building, and the Property, including the Common Areas. Landlord shall also carry, during the
Term, Commercial General Liability Insurance with respect to the Common Areas, with contractual liability insurance, in a combined single
limit of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage naming Tenant as an additional insured
to the extent Landlord indemnifies Tenant under Section 13.01 of this Lease.

14. Casualty Damage.

14.01 Casualty. If all or any portion of the Premises becomes untenantable or inaccessible by fire or other casualty to the Premises or
the Common Areas (collectively a “Casualty”), Landlord, with reasonable promptness, but in no event later than ninety (90) days following the
date of such Casualty, shall cause a general contractor selected by Landlord to provide Landlord with a written estimate of the amount of time
required, using standard working methods, to substantially complete the repair and restoration of the Premises and any Common Areas
necessary to provide access to the Premises (“Completion Estimate”). Landlord shall promptly forward a copy of the Completion Estimate to
Tenant. If the Completion Estimate indicates that the Premises and any Common Areas necessary to provide access to the Premises cannot be
made tenantable and the Premises and such Common Areas restored to the condition immediately prior to the Casualty within one hundred
eighty (180) days from the date of the Casualty, then either party shall have the right to terminate this Lease upon written notice to the other
within thirty (30) days after Tenant’s receipt of the Completion Estimate. Tenant, however, shall not have the right to terminate this Lease under
the immediately preceding sentence if the Casualty was caused by the willful misconduct of Tenant or any Tenant Related Parties. In addition,
(a) either party, by notice to the other party within ninety (90) days after the date of the Casualty, shall have the right to terminate this Lease if
the Premises have been materially damaged and less than two (2) years of the Term remain after the date of the Casualty, (b) Landlord, by
written notice to Tenant within ninety (90) days after the date of the Casualty, shall have the right to terminate this Lease if (1) any Mortgagee
requires that the insurance proceeds be applied to the payment of the mortgage debt; or (2) a material uninsured loss to the Building or Premises
occurs; provided, however, that Landlord may only exercise its right to termination this Lease under this clause (b) if it terminates the leases of
all other tenants of the Building similarly affected by such
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Casualty, and (c) Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease if the Premises or any Common Areas necessary to provide access to the
Premises are not restored within two hundred ten (210) days from the date of the Casualty (subject to extension due to any events of Force
Majeure for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days), upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Landlord, provided that if such restoration is
completed on or before the expiration of such thirty (30) day period, then such termination shall be deemed null and void and this Lease shall
continue in full force and effect. If this Lease is terminated by either party on account of any Casualty as provided in this Section 14, then
Tenant shall pay to Landlord (by assignment or otherwise) the insurance proceeds paid or payable to Tenant under the policy(ies) referred to in
Section 13.02(b) on account of the damage to or loss of the Leasehold Improvements in the Premises; however, from any such proceeds
actually received by Tenant, Tenant shall be entitled to retain any amount up to the depreciated amount of the Excess Tenant Work Costs after
deduction of the Allowance.

14.02 Restoration. If this Lease is not terminated, Landlord shall promptly and diligently, subject to reasonable delays for insurance
adjustment or other matters beyond Landlord’s reasonable control, restore the Premises and Common Areas, subject to the following
provisions. Such restoration shall be to substantially the same condition that existed prior to the Casualty, except for modifications required by
Law or any other modifications to the Common Areas deemed desirable by Landlord. Upon notice from Landlord, Tenant shall assign or
endorse over to Landlord (or to any party designated by Landlord) all property insurance proceeds payable to Tenant under Tenant’s insurance
with respect to any Leasehold Improvements. Such insurance proceeds shall be paid to Landlord in accordance with the procedures set forth in
Exhibit C attached hereto. In no event shall Landlord be required to spend more for the restoration of the Premises and Common Areas than the
proceeds received by Landlord. Landlord shall not be liable for any inconvenience to Tenant, or injury to Tenant’s business resulting in any
way from the Casualty or the repair thereof. During any period of time that all or a material portion of the Premises is rendered untenantable as
a result of a Casualty, the Rent shall abate for the portion of the Premises that is untenantable and not used by Tenant.

15. Condemnation.

Either party may terminate this Lease if any material part of the Premises is taken or condemned for any public or quasi-public use under Law,
by eminent domain or private purchase in lieu thereof (a “Taking”). Landlord shall also have the right to terminate this Lease if there is a
Taking of any portion of the Building or Property which would have a material adverse effect on Landlord’s ability to profitably operate the
remainder of the Building; provided, however, that Landlord may not terminate this Lease as aforesaid unless it terminates the leases of all
other tenants of the Building similarly affected by such Taking. Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease if there is a Taking of any
portion of the Building or Property which would have a material adverse effect, as reasonably determined by Tenant, on Tenant’s rights to
occupy the Premises pursuant to the terms of the Lease. The terminating party shall provide written notice of termination to the other party
within forty five (45) days after it first receives notice of the Taking. The termination shall be effective as of the effective date of any order
granting possession to, or vesting legal title in, the condemning authority. If this Lease is not terminated, Base Rent and Tenant’s Proportionate
Share shall be appropriately adjusted to account for any reduction in the square footage of the Building or Premises. All compensation awarded
for a Taking shall be the property of Landlord. The right to receive compensation or proceeds are expressly waived by Tenant, provided,
however, Tenant may file a separate claim for Tenant’s Property and Tenant’s reasonable relocation expenses, provided the filing of the claim
does not diminish the amount of Landlord’s award. If only a part of the Premises is subject to a Taking and this Lease is not terminated,
Landlord, with reasonable diligence, will restore the remaining portion of the Premises as nearly as practicable to the condition immediately
prior to the Taking.
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16. Events of Default.

16.01 Default. In addition to any other Default specifically described in this Lease, each of the following occurrences shall be a
“Default”: (a) Tenant’s failure to pay any portion of Rent when due, if the failure continues for seven (7) Business Days after written notice to
Tenant (“Monetary Default”); (b) Tenant’s failure (other than a Monetary Default) to comply with any term, provision, condition or covenant of
this Lease, if the failure is not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice to Tenant provided, however, if Tenant’s failure to comply
cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty (30) -day period, Tenant shall be allowed additional time as is reasonably necessary to cure the
failure so long as Tenant begins the cure within such thirty-(30)-day period and diligently pursues the cure to completion; (c) Tenant effects or
permits a Transfer without Landlord’s required approval (where such approval is required under this Lease) or otherwise in violation of
Section 11 of this Lease; (d) Tenant or any guarantor becomes insolvent, makes a transfer in fraud of creditors, makes an assignment for the
benefit of creditors, admits in writing its inability to pay its debts when due or forfeits or loses its right to conduct business; (e) the leasehold
estate is taken by process or operation of Law; or (f) if a receiver, guardian, conservator, trustee in bankruptcy or similar officer shall be
appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction to take charge of all or any part of Tenant’s or any guarantor’s property and such appointment is
not discharged within ninety (90) days thereafter, or if a petition including, without limitation, a petition for reorganization or arrangement is
filed by Tenant or any guarantor under any bankruptcy law or is filed against Tenant or any guarantor and, in the case of a filing against Tenant
only, the same shall not be dismissed within ninety (90) days from the date upon which it is filed.

16.02 Remedies. Upon the occurrence of any Default, Landlord may, immediately or at any time thereafter, elect to terminate this
Lease by notice of termination, by entry, or by any other means available under law and may recover possession of the Premises as provided
herein. Upon termination by notice, by entry, or by any other means available under law, Landlord shall be entitled immediately, in the case of
termination by notice or entry, and otherwise in accordance with the provisions of law to recover possession of the Premises from Tenant and
those claiming through or under the Tenant. Except as provided in this Lease, such termination of this Lease and repossession of the Premises
shall be without prejudice to any remedies which Landlord might otherwise have for arrears of rent or for a prior breach of the provisions of
this Lease. Tenant waives any statutory notice to quit and equitable rights in the nature of further cure or redemption, and Tenant agrees that
upon Landlord’s termination of this Lease Landlord shall be entitled to re-entry and possession in accordance with the terms hereof. Landlord
may, without notice, store Tenant’s personal property (and those of any person claiming under Tenant) at the expense and risk of Tenant or, if
Landlord so elects, Landlord may sell such personal property at public auction or auctions or at private sale or sales after thirty (30) days’
notice to Tenant and apply the net proceeds to the earliest of installments of rent or other charges owing Landlord. Tenant agrees that a notice
by Landlord alleging any default shall, at Landlord’s option (the exercise of such option shall be indicated by the inclusion of the words “notice
to quit” in such notice), constitute a statutory notice to quit. If Landlord exercises its option to designate a notice of default hereunder as a
statutory notice to quit, any grace periods provided for herein shall run concurrently with any statutory notice periods.

16.03 Reimbursement of Expenses. In the case of termination of this Lease pursuant to this Section 16, Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord for all expenses arising out of such termination, including without limitation, all costs incurred in collecting amounts due from Tenant
under this Lease (including reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of litigation and the like); all expenses incurred by Landlord in attempting to relet
the Premises or parts thereof (including advertisements, brokerage commissions, Tenant’s allowances, costs of preparing the Premises for other
tenants, and the like); all of Landlord’s then unamortized costs of any work allowances provided to Tenant for the Premises; and all Landlord’s
other reasonable expenditures necessitated by the termination. The reimbursement from Tenant shall be due and
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payable immediately from time to time upon notice from Landlord that an expense has been incurred, without regard to whether the expense
was incurred before or after the termination.

16.04 Damages.

(a)  Inthe event of a termination of this Lease pursuant to this Section 16, in lieu of all damages set forth in Section
16.04(b) below and beyond the date of such demand, Landlord may elect by written notice to Tenant within six (6) months
following such termination to recover, as liquidated damages, an amount equal to the then present value of the amount of Base
Rent and Additional Rent which would have been paid in accordance with this Lease for the remainder of the Term and if the terms
of this Lease had been fully complied with by Tenant, minus the then present value of the aggregate fair market rent payable for the
Premises for the remainder of the Term (if less than the Base Rent and Additional Rent payable hereunder), estimated as of the date
of Landlord’s election, and taking into account reasonable projections of vacancy and time required to re-lease the Premises, plus
(ii) the amount of Base Rent and Additional Rent of any kind accrued and unpaid at the time of Landlord’s election, and minus (iii)
the amount of any recovery by Landlord under the foregoing provisions of this Section 16 up to the time of payment of such
liquidated damages (but reduced by any amounts of reimbursement under Section 16.03). For the purposes of calculating the rent
which would have been paid hereunder for the calculation described above, the last full year’s Additional Rent under Section 4 is to
be deemed constant for each year thereafter. The Federal Reserve discount rate (or equivalent) shall be used in calculating present
values. Should the parties be unable to agree on a fair market rent, the matter shall be submitted, upon the demand of either party,
to the Boston, Massachusetts office of the American Arbitration Association, with a request for arbitration in accordance with the
rules of the Association by a single arbitrator who shall be an MAI appraiser with at least ten years’ experience as an appraiser of
major office buildings in downtown Boston. The parties agree that a decision of the arbitrator shall be conclusive and binding
upon them. If and for so long as Landlord does not make the election provided for in this Section 16.04 above, Tenant shall
indemnify Landlord for the loss of rent by a payment at the end of each month which would have been included in the Term,
representing the excess of the rent which would have been paid in accordance with this Lease (i.e., Base Rent and Additional Rent
that would have been payable to be ascertained monthly) over the rent actually derived from the Premises by Landlord for such
month (the amount of rent deemed derived shall be the actual amount less any portion thereof attributable to Landlord’s reletting
expenses described in Section 16.03 which have not been reimbursed by Tenant thereunder).

(b)  Inthe event of a termination of this Lease pursuant to this Section 16, and in lieu of all damages set forth in Section
16.04(a) and all damages beyond the date of such demand, Landlord may, by written notice to Tenant given within six (6) months
after termination under any of the provisions contained in Section 16 and before such full recovery, elect to recover, and Tenant
shall thereupon pay, as liquidated damages, an amount equal to (i) the aggregate of the Base Rent and Additional Rent for the
twelve-month period ending one year after the termination date (or, if lesser, for the balance of the Term had it not been terminated)
if the terms of this Lease had been fully complied with by Tenant, plus (ii) the amount of Base Rent and Additional Rent of any
kind accrued and unpaid at the time of termination, and minus (iii) the amount of any recovery by Landlord under the foregoing
provisions of this Section 16 up to the time of payment of such liquidated damages (but reduced by any amounts of reimbursement
under Section 16.03). The amount under clause (i) represents a reasonable forecast of the minimum damages expected to occur in
the event of a breach, taking into account the uncertainty, time and cost of determining elements relevant to actual
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damages, such as fair market rent, time and costs that may be required to re-lease the Premises, and other factors. Liquidated
damages hereunder shall not be in lieu of any claims for reimbursement under Section 16.03.

(c)  To the extent required by applicable Laws, Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate any
damages caused by a Default by Tenant. Any obligation imposed by law or by this Lease upon Landlord to relet the Premises after
any termination of the Lease shall be subject to the reasonable requirements of Landlord to lease to high quality tenants on such
terms as Landlord may from time to time deem appropriate and to develop the Building in a harmonious manner with an
appropriate mix of uses, tenants, floor areas and terms of tenancies, and the like, and Landlord shall not be obligated to relet the
Premises to any party to whom Landlord or its affiliate may desire to lease other available space in the Building.

16.05 Intentionally Deleted.

16.06 Claims in Bankruptcy. Nothing herein shall limit or prejudice the right of Landlord to prove and obtain in a proceeding for
bankruptcy, insolvency, arrangement or reorganization, by reason of the termination, an amount equal to the maximum allowed by a statute or
law in effect at the time when, and governing the proceedings in which, the damages are to be proved, whether or not the amount is greater to,
equal to, or less than the amount of the loss or damage which Landlord has suffered.

16.07 Late Charges and Fees. If Tenant does not pay any Rent within ten (10) days of the date when due hereunder, then following
notice and in addition to all other remedies hereunder, Tenant shall pay to Landlord interest on such unpaid amount at the rate of one and one
half percent (1.5%) per month from the date such amount was due until the date paid (which interest, as accrued to date, shall be payable from
time to time within thirty (30) days following Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s written demand therefor); provided, however, in no event shall
such interest exceed the maximum amount permitted to be charged by applicable Law; and provided further that such interest shall not apply
with respect to the first late payment in any twelve (12) consecutive month period. In addition, Tenant shall pay to Landlord a reasonable fee
for any checks returned by Tenant’s bank for any reason.

16.08 Enforcement Costs. Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as Additional Rent, the costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’
fees, incurred in enforcing any obligations of Tenant under this Lease upon the occurrence of and during the continuance of a Default.

16.09  General. The repossession or re-entering of all or any part of the Premises shall not relieve Tenant of its liabilities and
obligations under this Lease. Except as provided in this Lease, no right or remedy of either party shall be exclusive of any other right or
remedy, and each right and remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to any other right and remedy now or subsequently available to such
party at law or in equity. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, in addition to the other remedies provided in this Lease, either party
shall be entitled to pursue the restraint by court order of the violation of any of the provisions of this Lease or of applicable Law or to a decree
compelling specific performance of any such provisions.

17. Limitation of Liability.

17.01 Landlord’s Liability. Tenant agrees from time to time to look only to Landlord’s interest in the Building and the proceeds
therefrom (which shall include, without limitation, rents and insurance and sales proceeds) for satisfaction of any claim against Landlord
hereunder or under any other instrument related to the Lease (including any separate agreements among the parties and any notices or
certificates
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delivered by Landlord) and not to any other property or assets of Landlord. If Landlord from time to time transfers its interest in the Building
(or part thereof which includes the Premises), then from and after each such transfer, and the transferee’s written assumption of Landlord’s
obligations under this Lease, Tenant shall look solely to the interests in the Building of each of Landlord’s transferees for the performance of all
of the obligations of Landlord hereunder (or under any related instrument) thereafter accruing. The obligations of Landlord shall not be binding
on any direct or indirect partners (or members, trustees or beneficiaries) of Landlord or of any successor, individually, but only upon Landlord’s
or such successor’s interest described above. If Landlord shall refuse or fail to provide any consent or approval for any matter for which
Landlord’s consent or approval is required under this Lease or is otherwise requested by Tenant, Landlord shall not be liable for damages as a
result thereof, and Tenant’s sole remedy to enforce any alleged obligation of Landlord to provide such consent or approval shall be an action for
specific performance, injunction, or declaratory relief; provided that this sentence shall not prevent Tenant from pursuing a claim, if made in
good faith in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Lease, for direct damages (and not for any other damages, such as indirect or
consequential damages) to the extent caused by a refusal by Landlord to provide such consent or approval where Landlord was obligated to
provide such consent or approval under the terms and conditions of this Lease and such refusal was made in bad faith disregard of such
obligations under this Lease.

17.02 Assignment of Rents.

(a)  With reference to any assignment by Landlord of Landlord’s interest in this Lease, or the rents payable hereunder,
conditional in nature or otherwise, which assignment is made to the holder of a mortgage on property which includes the Premises, Tenant
agrees that the execution thereof by Landlord, and the acceptance thereof by the holder of such mortgage shall never be treated as an
assumption by such holder of any of the obligations of Landlord hereunder unless such holder shall, by notice sent to Tenant, specifically
otherwise elect and, except as aforesaid, such holder shall be treated as having assumed Landlord’s obligations hereunder only upon foreclosure
of such holder’s mortgage and the taking of possession of the Premises.

(b) In no event shall the acquisition of Landlord’s interest in the Property by a purchaser which, simultaneously therewith,
leases Landlord’s entire interest in the Property back to the seller thereof be treated as an assumption by operation of law or otherwise, of
Landlord’s obligations hereunder, but Tenant shall look solely to such seller-lessee, and its successors from time to time in title, for
performance of Landlord’s obligations hereunder. For all purposes, such seller-lessee, and its successors in title, shall be the Landlord
hereunder unless and until Landlord’s position shall have been assumed by such purchaser—lessor.

(c) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this Section 17.02, in the event of any transfer of title to the Property by Landlord,
Landlord shall thereafter be entirely freed and relieved from the performance and observance of all covenants and obligations hereunder
thereafter accruing. Tenant hereby agrees to enter into such agreements or instruments as may, from time to time, be reasonably requested in
confirmation of the foregoing provided such successor has assumed all obligations of Landlord under this Lease, and if requested by Tenant,
Tenant has been provided with a copy of such assignment and assumption (which may be redacted for economic and other confidential terms).

17.03 Landlord Default. In the event Tenant alleges that Landlord is in default under any of Landlord’s obligations under this Lease,
Tenant agrees to give any Mortgagee (as defined in Section 20), a copy of any notice of default which is served upon the Landlord, provided
that prior to such notice, Tenant has been notified, in writing (whether by way of notice of an assignment of lease, request to execute an
estoppel letter, or otherwise), of the address of any such Mortgagee. Tenant further agrees that if Landlord shall have failed to cure such default
within the time provided by law or such additional time as may be
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provided in this Lease or such notice to Landlord, such Mortgagee shall have a period of thirty (30) days after the last date on which Landlord
could have cured such default within which such Mortgagee will be permitted, but not be obligated, to cure such default. If such default cannot
be cured within such thirty-(30)-day period, then such Mortgagee shall have such additional time as may be necessary to cure such default, if
prior to the end of such thirty-(30)-day period such Mortgagee has commenced and is diligently pursuing such cure or the remedies under the
Mortgage necessary for Mortgagee to be able to effect such cure, in which event Tenant shall have no right with respect to such default while
such cure and remedies are being diligently pursued by such Mortgagee. Except as may be expressly provided in this Lease, in no event shall
Tenant have the right to terminate the Lease nor shall Tenant’s obligation to pay Base Rent or other charges under this Lease abate based upon
any default by Landlord of its obligations under the Lease.

17.04 No Consequential Damages. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, in no event shall Landlord or
any Landlord Related Party ever be liable to Tenant or any Tenant Related Party for loss of profits, loss of business, or indirect, consequential,
or punitive damages suffered by Tenant or Tenant Related Party from whatever cause, and, except as expressly provided otherwise in Section
18 below, in no event shall Tenant or any Tenant Related Party ever be liable to Landlord or any Landlord Related Party for loss of profits, loss
of business, or indirect, consequential, or punitive damages suffered by Landlord or any Landlord Related Party from whatever cause.

18. Holding Over.

If Tenant fails to surrender all or any part of the Premises at the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, any such occupancy of all or any
part of the Premises after such expiration or termination shall be that of a tenancy at sufferance. Any such occupancy after such expiration or
termination shall be subject to all the terms and provisions of this Lease, except that Tenant shall pay an amount for such occupancy (on a per
month basis without reduction for partial months during the holdover) equal to [***]% the Base Rent and [***]% of Additional Rent due for
the month immediately preceding the holdover. No holdover by Tenant or payment by Tenant after the expiration or earlier termination of this
Lease shall be construed to extend the Term or prevent Landlord from immediate recovery of possession of the Premises by summary
proceedings or otherwise. In addition, if Tenant holds over for more than thirty (30) days, then Tenant shall be liable to Landlord for all
damages and losses that Landlord suffers from the holdover.

19. Surrender of Premises.

At the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease or Tenant’s right of possession hereunder, Tenant shall remove all Tenant’s Property from
the Premises, remove all Required Removables (if any) under Section 8.03, remove all non-building standard signage installed by or on behalf
of Tenant (excluding Tenant’s Elevator Bank Signage, which shall be removed by Landlord at the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease
or Tenant’s right of possession hereunder ), and quit and surrender the Premises to Landlord, broom clean, and in good condition and repair,
reasonable wear and tear, damage by casualty or the acts of Landlord, and matters for which Landlord is responsible under this Lease,
excepted. Tenant shall repair any damage caused by the installation or removal of Tenant’s Property or Required Removables or signage that
Tenant is obligated to remove hereunder. If Tenant fails to remove any of Tenant’s Property or to restore or repair the Premises to the required
condition as provided herein upon the expiration of the Term of this Lease (or, as applicable, within twenty (20) days after any earlier
termination of this Lease or Tenant’s right to possession hereunder), then Landlord, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, shall be entitled, but not
obligated, to remove and store Tenant’s Property and/or perform such restoration or repair of the Premises. Landlord shall not be responsible
for the value, preservation, or safekeeping of Tenant’s Property, and Tenant shall pay to Landlord, upon demand, the expenses and storage
charges so incurred. If Tenant fails to remove Tenant’s Property from the Premises or storage, within thirty (30) days after notice, Landlord
may deem all or any part of Tenant’s Property to be abandoned and, at Landlord’s option, title to
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Tenant’s Property shall vest in Landlord or Landlord may dispose of Tenant’s Property in any manner Landlord deems appropriate.
20. Subordination to Mortgages; Estoppel Certificate.

20.01 Subordination. This Lease is and shall be subject and subordinate to any mortgage(s), deed(s) of trust, deeds to secure debt,
ground lease(s) or other lien(s) now or subsequently arising upon the Premises, the Building or the Property, and to all renewals, modifications,
refinancings, and extensions thereof (collectively referred to as a “Mortgage”) subject to the provisions hereof. The party having the benefit of
a Mortgage shall be referred to as a “Mortgagee”. This clause shall be self-operative, but upon request from Landlord or a Mortgagee, Tenant
shall execute a subordination agreement in favor of the Mortgagee in such Mortgagee’s standard form, with such commercially reasonable
changes as Tenant may request that are acceptable to Mortgagee for other comparable leases in the Building. As an alternative, any Mortgagee
shall have the right at any time to subordinate its Mortgage to this Lease. Upon request, Tenant, without charge, shall attorn to any successor to
Landlord’s interest in this Lease. In the event Mortgagee enforces it rights under the Mortgage, Tenant, at Mortgagee’s option, will attorn to
Mortgagee or its successor; provided, however, that Mortgagee or its successor shall not be liable for or bound by (i) any payment of any Rent
installment which may have been made more than thirty (30) days before the due date of such installment, (ii) any act or omission of or default
by Landlord under this Lease (but Mortgagee, or such successor, shall be subject to the continuing obligations of landlord under the Lease
arising from and after such succession, but only to the extent of Mortgagee’s, or such successor’s, interest in the Property as provided in
Section 17), (iii) any credits, claims, setoffs or defenses which Tenant may have against Landlord, or (iv) any obligation under this Lease to
maintain a fitness facility at the Building, if any. Tenant, upon the reasonable request by Mortgagee or such successor in interest, shall execute
and deliver an instrument or instruments confirming such attornment. Concurrently with the execution of this Lease, Landlord will obtain from
the existing Mortgagee, a subordination, non-disturbance and attornment agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit H (an “SNDA”).
Notwithstanding anything in this Section 20.01 to the contrary, as a condition precedent to the subordination of this Lease to a future Mortgage,
Landlord shall be required to provide Tenant with an SNDA in favor of Tenant from such future Mortgagee on such Mortgagee’s standard form,
with such commercially reasonable changes as Tenant may reasonably request that are reasonably acceptable to Mortgagee.

20.02 Moadification of Lease. If any Mortgagee requires a modification of this Lease, which modification will not cause an increased
cost or expense to Tenant or in any other way materially and adversely change the rights and obligations of Tenant hereunder, Tenant agrees
that this Lease may be so modified and agrees to execute whatever documents are reasonably required therefor and to deliver the same to
Landlord within ten (10) Business Days following a request therefor. At the request of Landlord or any Mortgagee, Tenant agrees to execute a
short form of this Lease and deliver the same to Landlord within ten (10) Business Days following the request therefor.

20.03 Estoppel Certificate. Either party shall, within fifteen (15) days after receipt of a written request from the other, execute and
deliver a commercially reasonable estoppel certificate addressed to such parties and any parties reasonably requested by such party, such as, in
the case of Landlord, a current or prospective Mortgagee or purchaser of the Building. Without limitation, such estoppel certificate may
include a certification as to the status of this Lease and any particular obligations thereunder, the existence of any defaults, and the amount of
Rent that is then due and payable.

20.04 Tenant Information. Upon Landlord’s request from time to time, Tenant shall provide to Landlord the financial statements for
Tenant and any guarantor for its most recent fiscal year and fiscal quarter. Financial statements for each fiscal year shall be prepared and
certified by a certified public accountant; financial statements for each quarter shall be prepared and certified by Tenant’s or any
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guarantor’s chief financial officer. If requested by Tenant, such financial statements shall be furnished pursuant to a confidentiality agreement
in a form reasonably provided by Landlord for such purpose. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord agrees that, as long as Tenant is a public
company, Tenant shall not be required to provide any information pursuant to this Section 20.04.

21. Miscellaneous.

21.01 Measurement of Floor Area. Landlord and Tenant stipulate and agree that the Rentable Floor Area of the Premises originally
leased to Tenant shall be conclusively deemed to be as specified in Section 1 and that the Rentable Floor Area of the Building is as specified in
Section 1 as of the Effective Date. Any change in the Rentable Floor Area of the Premises on account of expansion shall be conclusively
deemed to be as specified in any applicable expansion provisions under Exhibit F (if any) or in any amendment hereafter executed by Landlord
and Tenant in connection with such expansion (if any). Any other change in the Rentable Floor Area of the Premises on account of casualty,
condemnation, or the like shall be determined in accordance with the measurement standard that was originally used to determine the stipulated
Rentable Floor Area for the space in question. Any change in the Rentable Floor Area of the Building on account of casualty, condemnation, or
the like shall be determined from time to time by Landlord based on area computations supplied by Landlord’s architect, which determinations
shall be conclusive absent manifest error. References in this Lease to floor area measurements and square footage shall mean Rentable Floor
Area unless the reference explicitly provides otherwise.

21.02 Notice of Lease. Tenant shall not record this Lease or any memorandum or notice without Landlord’s prior written consent in
Landlord’s sole discretion; provided, however, that Landlord agrees to consent to the recording of a memorandum or notice of this Lease, at
Tenant’s cost and expense and in a form reasonably satisfactory to Landlord, if the initial term of this Lease together with any extension terms
granted hereunder (if any) exceed, in the aggregate, the applicable statutory period for notice of leases in the state in which the Building is
located. If this Lease is terminated before the Term expires, upon Landlord’s request the parties shall execute, deliver and record an instrument
acknowledging such termination date of this Lease, and Tenant appoints Landlord its attorney-in-fact in its name and behalf to execute the
instrument if Tenant shall fail to execute and deliver the instrument after Landlord’s request therefor within ten (10) days. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, so long as Tenant is a publicly traded entity, if and as required, Tenant may file a copy of this Lease with Tenant’s filings with the
Securities Exchange Commission.

21.03 Governing Law, Etc. This Lease shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance with the Laws of the state or commonwealth in
which the Building is located and Landlord and Tenant hereby irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction and proper venue of such state or
commonwealth. This Lease contains all of the agreements and understandings between Landlord and Tenant with respect to the Premises and
supersedes all prior writings and dealings between them with respect thereto, including all lease proposals, letters of intent and other
documents. Neither party is relying upon any warranty, statement or representation not contained in this Lease. If any term or provision of this
Lease shall to any extent be void or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected. This Lease may be amended only by a
writing signed by all of the parties hereto. The titles are for convenience only and shall not be considered a part of the Lease. Where the phrases
“persons acting under Tenant” or “persons claiming under Tenant” or similar phrases are used, such persons shall include subtenants, sub-
subtenants, and licensees, and all employees, agents, independent contractors and invitees of Tenant or of such other parties. The enumeration
of specific examples of or inclusions in a general provision shall not be construed as a limitation of the general provision. If Tenant is granted
any extension option, expansion option, or other right or option, the exercise of such right or option (and notice thereof) must be irrevocable to
be effective, time always being of the essence to the exercise of such right or option; and if Tenant purports to condition the exercise of any
option or to vary its terms in any manner except as otherwise permitted under this Lease,
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then the option granted shall be void and the purported exercise shall be ineffective. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating the
relationship between Landlord and Tenant of principal and agent, or of partners or joint venturers, or any relationship other than landlord and
tenant. If there is more than one Tenant or if Tenant is comprised of more than one party or entity, the obligations imposed upon Tenant shall be
joint and several obligations of all such parties and entities, any requests or demands from any one person or entity comprising Tenant shall be
deemed to have been made by all such persons or entities, and notices to any one person or entity comprising Tenant shall be deemed to have
been given to all such persons and entities. Tenant’s covenants contained in this Lease are independent and not dependent, and Tenant hereby
waives the benefit of any statute or judicial law to the contrary. Except as expressly provided in this Lease, Tenant’s obligation to pay Rent shall
not be discharged or otherwise affected by any law or regulation now or hereafter applicable to the Premises, or any other restriction on
Tenant’s use, or any casualty or taking, or any failure by Landlord to perform any covenant contained herein, or any other occurrence; and no
termination or abatement remedy that is not expressly provided for in this Lease for any breach or failure by Landlord to perform any
obligation under this Lease shall be implied or applicable as a matter of law.

21.04 Representations. Each party represents and warrants to the other party, and agrees, that each individual executing this Lease on
behalf of such party is authorized to do so on behalf of such party and that such party is not (i) in violation of any Laws relating to terrorism or
money laundering, or (ii) among the individuals or entities with whom U.S. persons or entities are restricted from doing business under
regulations of the Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) of the Department of the Treasury (including those named on OFAC’s Specially
Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List for the purpose of identifying suspected terrorists or on the most current list published by the
U.S. Treasury Department Office of Foreign Assets Control at its official website, http://www.treasury.gov/resource-center/sanctions/SDN-
List/Pages/default.aspx or any replacement website or other replacement official publication of such list) or under any statute, executive order
(including the September 24, 2001, Executive Order Blocking Property and Prohibiting Transactions with Persons Who Commit, Threaten to
Commit, or Support Terrorism, known as Executive Order 13224), or other governmental action and such party will not Transfer this Lease to,
contract with or otherwise engage in any dealings or transactions or be otherwise associated with such persons or entities.

21.05 Waiver of Trial by Jury; No Other Waiver. Landlord and Tenant hereby waive any right to trial by jury in any proceeding based
upon a breach of this Lease. No failure by either party to declare a default immediately upon its occurrence, nor any delay by either party in
taking action for a default, nor Landlord’s acceptance of Rent with knowledge of a default by Tenant, shall constitute a waiver of the default,
nor shall it constitute an estoppel. The delivery of keys to Landlord or to Landlord’s property manager shall not operate as a termination of this
Lease or a surrender of the Premises.

21.06  Time Periods. Whenever a period of time is prescribed for the taking of an action by Landlord or Tenant (other than the
payment of the Security Deposit or Rent), except as otherwise provided herein, the period of time for the performance of such action shall be
extended by the number of days that the performance is actually delayed due to strikes, acts of God, shortages of labor or materials, war,
terrorist acts, pandemics, civil disturbances and other causes beyond the reasonable control of the performing party (“Force Majeure”).

21.07 Transfer of the Property. Landlord shall have the right from time to time to transfer and assign, in whole or in part, all of its
rights and obligations thereafter accruing under this Lease and in the Building and Property but no such transfer or assignment shall affect any
provision of this Lease that entitles Tenant to an abatement of Rent or provides Tenant with the right to terminate this Lease.. Upon transfer,
Landlord shall be released from any further obligations hereunder and Tenant agrees to look solely to the successor in interest of Landlord for
the performance of such obligations, to the extent that any successor pursuant to a voluntary, third party transfer (but not as part of an
involuntary transfer resulting from a
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foreclosure or deed in lieu thereof) shall have assumed Landlord’s obligations under this Lease from and after the date of the transfer.

21.08 Submission. The submission of this Lease to Tenant or a summary of some or all of its provisions for examination does not
constitute a reservation of or option for the Premises or an offer to lease, and no legal obligations shall arise with respect to the Premises or
other matters herein unless and until such time as this Lease is executed and delivered by Landlord and Tenant and approved by the holder of
any mortgage on the Building having the right to approve this Lease.

21.09 Brokers. Tenant represents that it has dealt directly with and only with the Broker (described in Section 1) as a broker, agent or
finder in connection with this Lease. Tenant shall indemnify and hold Landlord and the Landlord Related Parties harmless from all claims of
any other brokers, agents or finders claiming to have represented Tenant in connection with this Lease. Landlord shall be responsible to pay all
commissions and fees due to the Broker pursuant to a separate agreement. Landlord shall indemnify and hold Tenant and the Tenant Related
Parties harmless from all claims of the Broker, and any other brokers, agents or finders claiming to have represented Landlord in connection
with this Lease. Any assistance rendered by any agent or employee of Landlord in connection with this Lease or any subsequent amendment or
modification or any other document related hereto has been or will be made as an accommodation to Tenant solely in furtherance of
consummating the transaction on behalf of Landlord, and not as agent for Tenant.

21.10 Survival. The expiration of the Term, whether by lapse of time, termination or otherwise, shall not relieve either party of any
obligations that accrued prior to or which may continue to accrue after the expiration or termination of this Lease.

21.11 Quiet Enjoyment. This Lease is subject to all easements, restrictions, agreements, and encumbrances of record to the extent in
force and applicable. Landlord covenants that Tenant, on paying the Rent and performing the tenant obligations in this Lease, shall peacefully
and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Premises, free from any claim by Landlord or persons claiming under Landlord, but subject to all of the
terms and provisions hereof, provisions of Law, and rights of record to which this Lease is or may become subordinate. This covenant is in lieu
of any other so called quiet enjoyment covenant, either express or implied. This covenant shall be binding upon Landlord and its successors
only during its or their respective periods of ownership of the Building.

21.12 Reservations. This Lease does not grant any rights to light or air over or about the Building. Landlord excepts and reserves
exclusively to itself any and all rights not specifically granted to Tenant under this Lease. Landlord reserves the right to make changes to the
Property, Building and Common Areas as Landlord deems appropriate provided Tenant’s access to and use of the Premises are not materially
adversely affected thereby. Wherever this Lease requires Landlord to provide a customary service or to act in a reasonable manner (whether in
incurring an expense, establishing a rule or regulation, providing an approval or consent, or performing any other act), this Lease shall be
deemed also to provide that whether such service is customary or such conduct is reasonable shall be determined by reference to the practices
of owners of buildings that (i) are comparable to the Building in size, age, class, quality and location, and (ii) at Landlord’s option, have been,
or are being prepared to be, certified under the U.S. Green Building Council’s Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) rating
system or a similar rating system.

21.13 REIT Provisions. Tenant and Landlord intend that all amounts payable by Tenant to Landlord shall qualify as “rents from real
property,” and will otherwise not constitute “unrelated business taxable income” or “impermissible tenant services income,” all within the
meaning of Section 856(d) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and the U.S. Department of Treasury Regulations
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promulgated thereunder (the “Regulations”). In the event that Landlord determines that there is any risk that any amount payable under this
Lease may not qualify as “rents from real property” or will otherwise constitute impermissible tenant services income within the meaning of
Section 856(d) of the Code and the Regulations, Tenant agrees to (a) cooperate with Landlord by entering into such amendment or amendments
as Landlord deems necessary to qualify all amounts payable under this Lease as “rents from real property,” and (b) permit (and, upon request,
to acknowledge in writing) an assignment of the obligation to provide certain services under the Lease, and, upon request, to enter into direct
agreements with the parties furnishing such services (which shall include, but not be limited to, a taxable REIT subsidiary of Landlord).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall not be required to take any action pursuant to the preceding sentence (including acknowledging in
writing an assignment of services pursuant thereto) if such action would result in (i) Tenant incurring more than de minimis additional liability
under this Lease, or (ii) more than a de minimis negative change in the quality or level of Building operations or services rendered to Tenant
under this Lease. For the avoidance of doubt: (A) if Tenant does not acknowledge in writing an assignment as described in clause (b) above (it
being agreed that Tenant shall not unreasonably withhold, condition or delay such acknowledgment so long as the criteria in clauses (i) and (ii)
hereinabove are satisfied), then Landlord shall not be released from liability under this Lease with respect to the services so assigned; and (B)
nothing in this Section shall limit or otherwise affect Landlord’s ability to assign its entire interest in this Lease to any party as part of a
conveyance of Landlord’s ownership interest in the Building.

21.14 Consent. In any case for which the consent of Landlord or Tenant is required under this Lease, each party hereby agrees that
such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, unless otherwise expressly provided in this Lease.

21.15 Arbitration. In any case where this Lease expressly provides for, or gives the option for, the settlement of a dispute or question
by arbitration pursuant to this Section 21.15, and in the case of any other dispute with respect to the granting of any consent or approval
requested by Tenant or Landlord hereunder (where such consent or approval is subject to a reasonableness requirement), and only in such cases
(and not in any case where other specific dispute resolution procedures are expressly provided for in this Lease, such as the dispute resolution
procedures with respect to Fair Market Rent Rate with respect to an Extension Term pursuant to Exhibit F), such dispute shall be subject to
binding arbitration in Boston, Massachusetts, under the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association (AAA). The
Expedited Procedures of the Commercial Arbitration Rules shall also apply to all disputes arbitrated under this Lease. Where arbitration is
used, the parties shall have no right to object if the arbitrator appointed was on the list submitted by the AAA and was not objected to in
accordance with AAA Rule E-4. With respect to construction-related disputes, the arbitrator shall be an attorney who is also a licensed
engineer, registered architect, or other construction professional and/or an attorney who specializes in construction disputes. Any finding or
determination of the arbitrator shall be final and binding pursuant to the Commercial Arbitration Rules and/or Expedited Procedures (except
that the arbitrator shall be bound by the provisions of this Lease and shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, modify or change any of
the provisions of this Lease). Landlord and Tenant agree to sign all documents and to do all other things necessary to submit to arbitration any
matter subject to of this Section 21.15. Landlord and Tenant consent to the entry of judgment in any court in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts upon any award or decision rendered in any arbitration held pursuant to this Section 21.15. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge
that any award or decision rendered in any arbitration held pursuant to this Section 21.15, whether or not such award or decision has been
entered for judgment, shall be final and binding upon Landlord and Tenant.

21.16  Execution. This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts and, when executed by each party, shall constitute an
agreement binding on all parties notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the original or the same counterpart provided that all
parties are furnished a copy or copies thereof reflecting the signature of all parties. Transmission of a facsimile or by email of a pdf copy of the
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signed counterpart of the Lease shall be deemed the equivalent of the delivery of the original, and any party so delivering a facsimile or pdf
copy of the signed counterpart of the Lease by email transmission shall in all events deliver to the other party an original signature promptly
upon request.

[Signatures on Following Page]
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Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as a sealed Massachusetts instrument in two or more counterparts as of the Effective

Date of this Lease set forth above.

LANDLORD:

OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER (DE) LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: /s/ Chad Remis
Name: Chad Remis
Title: Vice President

By: /s/ Kristen E. Binck
Name: Kristen E. Binck
Title: Assistant Secretary

TENANT:

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION,
a Massachusetts corporation

By: /s/ Christopher Simon
Name: Christopher Simon
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A

OUTLINE AND . OCATION OF PREMISES

This Exhibit is attached to and made a part of the Office Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) by and between OPG 125 SUMMER
OWNER (DE) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”), and HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts
corporation (“Tenant”), for space in the Building located at 125 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02110.

16th Floor Premises

125 SJMMER STEEF o|x|F|o|R|D
FLOORPLAN

16" Hoor — Suite 1620

T T————F——

LINCOLN STREET

SOUTH STREET

T ———— —— ——

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁqd| i
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SOUTH STREET

17th Floor Premises

125 SUMMER STREET
FLOORPLAN

17" Hoor —Suite 1701

SUMMERSTREET

O|X|F|O|R|D

KEY PLAN

NTS

LINCOLN STREET
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18th Floor Premises

125 &JMM = STI{;I- o|x|F|o|R|D
FLOORPLAN

18th Aoor — Suite 1800

SOUTH STREET
LINCOLN STREET
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SOUTH STREET

19th Floor Premises

125 SUMMER STREET
FLOORPLAN

19" Hoor — Suite 1900

LINCOLN STREET

O|X|F|O|R|D
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EXHIBIT A-1

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

Real property in the City of Boston, County of Suffolk, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, described as follows:

Parcel I

That certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon in Boston, Suffolk County, Massachusetts shown on a plan entitled “Plan of
Land, Boston, Mass.” dated September 17, 1984 prepared by Harry R. Feldman, Inc., Revised January 24, 1985, recorded with
Suffolk Registry of Deeds on February 1, 1985 with Instrument No 227, in Book 11385, Page 112, bounded and described

according to said plan as follows:

Northerly by Summer Street by three lines measuring twenty-seven and 19/100 (27.19) feet, sixty-one and 22/100 (61.22) feet and
one hundred three and 92/100 (103.92) feet;

Easterly by South Street one hundred seventeen and 48/100 (117.48) feet;
Southerly by land now or formerly of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts one hundred seven and 89/100 (107.89) feet;
Easterly by said land now or formerly of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts fifty-eight and 47/100 (58.47) feet;

Southerly by land now or formerly of Myer C. & Frances Handle and Charlotta Rosenberg, Trustees by three lines measuring forty-
two and 56/100 (42.56) feet, 21/100 (0.21) feet and thirty-seven and 98/100 (37.98) feet;

Westerly by Lincoln Street one hundred eighty-four and 48/100 (184.48) feet.

Parcel 1T

A certain parcel of land located in Boston, Suffolk County, Massachusetts, known and numbered as 34-38 Lincoln Street and
shown as Parcel 15-RT-5 on a plan of land shown on an Order of Taking from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts for the
Department of Public Works dated December 22, 1954 and recorded on December 24, 1954 in the Suffolk Registry of Deeds, Book
7020, Page 271, said parcel being more particularly bounded and described as follows:

Westerly by Lincoln Street - 19 feet;

Northerly by property now or formerly of 30 Lincoln Street Trust - 81 feet; and
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Southeasterly to Southwesterly in three courses - 1700 feet, 46.60 feet, and by an arc with the length of 40.83 feet and a radius of
20 feet, all as shown on said Plan.

Address: 125 Summer Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02110
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EXHIBIT B

EXPENSES AND TAXES

This Exhibit is attached to and made a part of the Office Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) by and between OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER
(DE) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”), and HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts corporation
(“Tenant”), for space in the Building located at 125 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02110. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall
have the meanings given in the Lease.

1. Payments.

1.01 Expense Excess and Tax Excess. Tenant shall pay Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the amount, if any, applicable to all periods
from and after the Term Commencement Date (but subject to the terms and provisions regarding the Rent Waiver Period) by which (a)
Expenses (defined below) for each calendar year during the Term exceed Expenses for the Base Year (the “Expense Excess”), and (b) Taxes
(defined below) for each Fiscal Year during the Term exceed Taxes for the Base Year (the “Tax Excess”). If Expenses or Taxes in any calendar
year or Fiscal Year, respectively, decrease below the amount of Expenses or Taxes for the Base Year, Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Expenses
or Taxes, as the case may be, for that calendar year or Fiscal Year, respectively, shall be $0. Landlord shall provide Tenant with a good faith
estimate of the Expense Excess for each calendar year and of the Tax Excess for each Fiscal Year during the Term. Tenant shall pay to
Landlord, along with monthly installments of Base Rent due hereunder, a monthly installment equal to one-twelfth of Tenant’s Proportionate
Share of Landlord’s estimate of both the Expense Excess and Tax Excess. If Landlord determines that its good faith estimate of the Expense
Excess or of the Tax Excess was incorrect by a material amount, Landlord may, not more than once in any calendar year provide Tenant with a
revised estimate. After its receipt of the revised estimate, Tenant’s monthly payments shall be based upon the revised estimate. If Landlord
does not provide Tenant with an estimate of the Expense Excess by January 1 of a calendar year or the Tax Excess by July 1 of a Fiscal Year,
then Tenant shall continue to pay monthly installments based on the previous year’s estimate(s) until Landlord provides Tenant with the new
estimate. Upon delivery of the new estimate, an adjustment shall be made for any month for which Tenant paid monthly installments based on
the previous year’s estimate. Tenant shall pay Landlord the amount of any underpayment within thirty (30) days after receipt of the new
estimate. Any overpayment shall be refunded to Tenant within thirty (30) days or credited against the next due future installment(s) of
Additional Rent. Appropriate adjustments (including adjustments in the amounts of Expenses and Taxes for the Base Year, which are
calculated on an annual basis as set forth above) shall be made for any portion of a year at the beginning or end of the Term or for any year
during which changes occur in the percentage of occupancy of the Building or in the Rentable Floor Area to which Landlord furnishes
particular services.

1.02  Reconciliation. As soon as is practical following the end of each (a) calendar year during the Term, Landlord shall furnish
Tenant with a statement, in line-item detail in accordance with sound accounting principles consistent with the management by owners of
comparable properties in the City of Boston and consistently applied throughout the Term, of the actual Expenses and Expense Excess for the
prior calendar year, and (b) Fiscal Year, Landlord shall furnish Tenant with a statement of the actual Taxes and Tax Excess for the prior Fiscal
Year. If the estimated Expense Excess for the prior calendar year is more than the actual Expense Excess for the prior calendar year, or if the
estimated Tax Excess for the prior Fiscal Year is more than the actual Tax Excess for the prior Fiscal Year, as the case may be, then Landlord
shall either provide Tenant with a refund or apply any overpayment by Tenant against Additional Rent due or next becoming due; provided that,
if the Term expires before the determination of the overpayment, then Landlord shall refund any overpayment to Tenant after first deducting the
amount of Rent due. If the estimated Expense Excess for the prior calendar year is less than the actual Expense Excess for the prior
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calendar year, or if the estimated Tax Excess for the prior Fiscal Year is less than the actual Tax Excess for the prior Fiscal Year, as the case
may be, then Tenant shall pay Landlord, within thirty (30) days after its receipt of the statement of Expenses or Taxes, any underpayment for
the prior calendar year (for Expenses) or for the prior Fiscal Year (for Taxes), as the case may be. Notwithstanding any dispute concerning any
Landlord’s statement, payments shall be made by the parties in accordance with Landlord’s statement at the time and in the manner set forth
above, and if necessary there shall be a further adjustment between the parties at the time the dispute is resolved.

2. Property Operating Expenses.

2.01 “Expenses” means all costs and expenses incurred in each calendar year in connection with operating, maintaining, repairing,
and managing the Building and the Property. Expenses include, without limitation: (a) all labor and labor related costs, including wages,
salaries, bonuses, taxes, insurance, uniforms, training, retirement plans, pension plans and other employee benefits; (b) management fees in an
amount not to exceed the prevailing rate for comparable buildings in downtown Boston; (c) the cost of equipping, staffing and operating an on-
site and/or off-site management office for the Building (including, without limitation, the market rental for the management office located in the
Building), provided if the management office services one or more other buildings or properties, the shared costs and expenses of equipping,
staffing and operating such management office(s) shall be equitably prorated and apportioned between the Building and the other buildings or
properties; (d) costs of accounting and IT services (which shall be equitably prorated between the Building and other buildings or properties to
which such services are provided); (e) the cost of services required under this Lease; (f) rental and purchase cost of parts, supplies, tools and
equipment; (g) insurance premiums and reasonable deductibles; (h) electricity, gas and other utility costs (excluding such utility costs
separately chargeable to tenant and such electricity charges paid by Tenant); and (i) the amortized cost of capital improvements (as
distinguished from replacement parts or components installed in the ordinary course of business) made subsequent to the Base Year that are:
(1) intended to effect economies in the operation or maintenance of the Property, reduce current or future Expenses, enhance the safety or
security of the Property or its occupants, or enhance the environmental sustainability of the Property’s operations, (2) intentionally deleted, or
(3) required under any Law enacted or first applicable to the Building after the Term Commencement Date. The cost of capital improvements
shall be amortized by Landlord the useful life of the capital improvement as reasonably determined by Landlord in accordance with sound
accounting principles consistent with the management by owners of comparable properties in the City of Boston and consistently applied
throughout the Term. The amortized cost of capital improvements may, at Landlord’s option, include actual or imputed interest at the rate that
Landlord would reasonably be required to pay to finance the cost of the capital improvement. Landlord, by itself or through an affiliate, shall
have the right to directly perform, provide and be compensated for any services under the Lease. If Landlord incurs Expenses for the Building
or Property together with one or more other buildings or properties, whether pursuant to a reciprocal easement agreement, common area
agreement or otherwise, the shared costs and expenses shall be equitably prorated and apportioned between the Building and Property and the
other buildings or properties.

2.02 Exclusions. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, Expenses shall not include: the cost of capital
improvements (except as set forth above); depreciation; principal and interest payments of mortgage and other non-operating debts of Landlord;
reserve funds; the cost of repairs or other work covered by insurance or condemnation proceeds; costs in connection with leasing space in the
Building, including, without limitation brokerage commissions, advertising and promotional expenses, lease concessions, rental abatements,
construction allowances granted to specific tenants, costs of renovating or otherwise improving or decorating space for any tenant or other
occupant of the Building or the Property, including Tenant, or costs of relocating any tenant; costs incurred in connection with the sale,
financing or refinancing of the Building; legal and other fees incurred in connection with tenant or other disputes with respect to the Building or
the Property; fines, interest and penalties incurred due to the late

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested



payment of Taxes or Expenses; any liabilities, costs or expenses associated with or incurred in connection with the removal, enclosure,
encapsulation or other handling of Hazardous Materials and the cost of defending against claims in regard to the existence or release of
Hazardous Materials at the Building or the Property (except with respect to those costs for which Tenant is otherwise responsible pursuant to
the express terms of this Lease); organizational expenses associated with the creation and operation of the entity which constitutes Landlord;
any penalties or damages that Landlord pays to Tenant under this Lease or to other tenants in the Building under their respective leases;
salaries, bonuses, fringe benefits other than insurance plans and tax qualified benefits plans, and other compensation and benefits of personnel
above the grade of the Building’s general manager; costs of operating, maintaining, repairing, and managing the Garage, including elevator
service thereto to the extent exclusively serving the Garage and not any Common Areas, ground lease or other underlying lease rent; charges
for electricity, water, or other utilities, services or goods and applicable taxes for which Tenant or any other tenant, occupant, person or other
party is obligated to reimburse Landlord (separate from Expenses) or to pay to third parties; costs of any work or services that are separately
chargeable to Tenant and other tenants or which are performed on an extra cost basis for any tenant in the Building or the Property to a
materially greater extent or in a materially more favorable manner than furnished generally to the tenants and other occupants; cost of any work
or services performed for any facility other than the Building or Property (it being understood that to the extent of any costs or services shared
with other properties, only the portion thereof allocable to the Building or Property, as reasonably determined by Landlord, shall be included in
Expenses); the cost of installing, operating and maintaining any specialty service which is not made generally available to the tenants of the
Building, such as an observatory, broadcasting facilities, child or daycare; charitable or political contributions; capital costs incurred by
Landlord’s repair and maintenance of the roof and all structural elements, except to the extent permitted under Section 2.01 above; reserve
funds; any cost representing an amount paid to a person, firm, corporation or other entity related to Landlord that is in excess of the amount
which would have been paid in an arms’ length relationship; lease payments for rental equipment (other than equipment for which depreciation
is properly charged as an expense) that would constitute a capital expenditure if the equipment were purchased and that would not otherwise be
included in Expenses if so purchased; cost of acquiring sculptures, paintings and other works of art located in the Common Areas; real estate
taxes and personal property taxes (which real estate taxes and personal property taxes shall be payable by Tenant, separate from Expenses, as
provided pursuant to the express terms of this Lease), and/or taxes on Landlord’s business (such as income, excess profits, franchise, capital
stock, estate, and inheritance taxes); all items for which another party pays or is required to compensate or pay so that Landlord shall not
recover any item of cost more than once; Landlord’s general overhead and any other expenses not attributable to the operation and management
of the Building and Property, except to the extent included in the management fee permitted under this Section 2; costs and expenses incurred
in connection with compliance with or contesting or settlement of any claimed violation of law or requirements of law (provided that the
foregoing shall not relieve Tenant of its obligations with respect to any compliance, contest or settlement of any claimed violation of law or
requirements of law for which Tenant is responsible under the terms of this Lease); costs of mitigation or impact fees or subsidies (however
characterized), imposed or incurred prior to the Effective Date or imposed or incurred solely as a result of another tenant’s or tenants’ use of the
Building, Property, or their respective premises; costs related to public transportation; and costs of cleaning the Lab Space (as defined in
Section 9.01).

2.03  Adjustments. If at any time during a calendar year during the Term the Building is not at least 100% occupied and receiving
Landlord services hereunder (or if a service provided by Landlord to tenants of the Building generally is not provided by Landlord to particular
tenant(s) due to self-provided services or other circumstances), Expenses shall be determined as if the Building had been 100% occupied (and
all services provided by Landlord to tenants of the Building generally had been provided by Landlord to tenants occupying 100% of the entire
Building) during that calendar year. Expenses for the Base Year shall also be determined in such manner.
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3. Property Taxes.

“Taxes” shall mean: (a) all real property taxes and other assessments on the Building and/or Property, including, but not limited to,
gross receipts taxes, assessments for special improvement districts and business improvement districts, governmental charges, fees and
assessments for police, fire, traffic mitigation or other governmental service of purported benefit to the Property, taxes and assessments levied
in substitution or supplementation in whole or in part of any such taxes and assessments and the Property’s share of any real estate taxes and
assessments under any reciprocal easement agreement, common area agreement, or similar agreement as to the Property; (b) all personal
property taxes for property that is owned by Landlord and used in connection with the operation, maintenance and repair of the Property; and
(c) all costs and fees incurred in connection with seeking reductions in any tax liabilities described in (a) and (b), including, without limitation,
any costs incurred by Landlord for compliance, review, and appeal of tax liabilities. Without limitation, Taxes shall be determined without
regard to any “green building” credit and shall not include any income, capital levy, transfer, capital stock, gift, estate, or inheritance tax. If a
change in Taxes is obtained for any year of the Term during which Tenant paid Tenant’s Proportionate Share of any Tax Excess, then Taxes for
that year will be retroactively adjusted and Landlord shall provide Tenant with a credit, if any, based on the adjustment. Likewise, if a change
is obtained for Taxes for the Base Year, Taxes for the Base Year shall be restated and the Tax Excess for all subsequent years shall be
recomputed. Tenant shall pay Landlord the amount of Tenant’s Proportionate Share of any such increase in the Tax Excess within thirty (30)
days after Tenant’s receipt of a statement from Landlord.

4. Audit Rights.

Within one hundred eighty (180) days after receiving Landlord’s annual reconciliation statement of Expenses (or, with respect to the
Base Year Expenses, within one hundred eighty (180) days after receiving Landlord’s initial statement of Expenses for the Base Year) (each
such period is referred to as the “Review Notice Period”), Tenant may give Landlord written notice (“Review Notice”) that Tenant intends to
review Landlord’s records of the Expenses for the calendar year (or Base Year, as applicable) to which the statement applies, identifying, with a
reasonable degree of specificity, the information that Tenant desires to review (the “Request for Information”). Within a reasonable time after
Landlord’s receipt of a timely Request for Information and executed Audit Confidentiality Agreement (referenced below), Landlord, as
determined by Landlord, shall forward to Tenant, or make available for inspection on site at such location deemed reasonably appropriate by
Landlord, such records (or copies thereof) for the applicable calendar year (or Base Year, as applicable) that are reasonably necessary for
Tenant to conduct its review of the information appropriately identified in the Request for Information. Within sixty (60) days after all relevant
records are made available to Tenant (such period is referred to as the “Objection Period”), Tenant shall have the right to give Landlord written
notice (an “Objection Notice”) stating in reasonable detail any objection to Landlord’s statement of Expenses for that year which relates to the
records that have been made available to Tenant. If Tenant provides Landlord with a timely Objection Notice and the audit or review discloses
that Expenses for the calendar year are less than reported, then Landlord shall provide Tenant with a credit against the next installment of Rent
in the amount of the overpayment by Tenant, and if the audit or review discloses that Expenses for the calendar year are more than five percent
(5%) less than reported, Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for the reasonable costs of such review or audit, up to a maximum of $5,000.00. If
the audit or review discloses that Expenses for the calendar year are greater than reported, Tenant shall pay Landlord the amount of any
underpayment within thirty (30) days. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Landlord disputes the results of such audit or review, the parties agree
to submit the matter in dispute to arbitration in accordance with the applicable provisions of this Lease. If Tenant fails to give Landlord an
Objection Notice with respect to any records that have been made available to Tenant prior to expiration of the Objection Period applicable to
the records which have been provided to Tenant, Tenant shall be deemed to have approved Landlord’s statement of Expenses with respect to the
matters reflected in such records and shall be barred from raising any claims regarding the
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Expenses relating to such records for that year. If Tenant fails to timely provide Landlord with a Review Notice and the Request for
Information Period described above, Tenant shall be deemed to have approved Landlord’s statement of Expenses and shall be barred from
raising any claims regarding the Expenses for that year. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Exhibit B or in this Lease, if
Tenant’s audit or review reveals that Landlord has overstated any line item or items of Expenses, Tenant shall have the right to audit any
statement of Expenses delivered by Landlord during the prior twelve (12) months, but only with respect to the same line item or items of
Expenses that were overstated.

If Tenant retains an agent to review Landlord’s records, the agent must be with a reputable certified public accounting firm selected by
Tenant and approved by Landlord (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), which firm must be licensed to
do business in the state or commonwealth where the Property is located. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all costs, expenses and fees
incurred for the audit or review, except as provided herein, and Tenant shall not directly or indirectly engage such agent or any other party in
connection with such audit or review whose compensation or fees are charged in whole or in part on a contingency basis. The records and
related information obtained by Tenant shall be treated as confidential, and applicable only to the Building, by Tenant and its auditors,
consultants and other parties reviewing such records on behalf of Tenant (collectively, “Tenant’s Auditors”), and, prior to making any records
available to Tenant or Tenant’s Auditors, Landlord may require Tenant and Tenant’s Auditors to each execute a confidentiality agreement in a
form reasonably provided by Landlord (“Audit Confidentiality Agreement”) in accordance with the foregoing. In no event shall Tenant be
permitted to examine Landlord’s records or to dispute any statement of Expenses unless Tenant has paid and continues to pay all Rent when
due.
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EXHIBIT C

WORK LETTER

This Exhibit is attached to and made a part of the Office Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) by and between OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER
(DE) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”), and HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts corporation
(“Tenant™), for space in the Building located at 125 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02110. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall
have the meanings given in the Lease.

C.1 Intentionally Deleted.

C.2 Landlord’s Work and Landlord Delays. The Initial Tenant Work shall be constructed by Landlord in accordance with, and subject
to, the provisions of this Exhibit C.

In addition, Landlord shall perform the shell condition work described on Schedule C-1 attached hereto using Building standard
materials (the “Shell Condition Work™). The cost of the Shell Condition Work shall be performed at Landlord’s sole expense.

Landlord anticipates that it will substantially complete the Shell Condition Work and the Initial Tenant Work, and cause the Term
Commencement Date to occur, on the Estimated Delivery Date. Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to (a) obtain all building permits required
for the Shell Condition Work and the Initial Tenant Work (collectively, the “Permits”) within thirty-five (35) days after the date of the CD Set
GMP Submission (as defined below)) (such time period, the “Permitting Period”), and (b) substantially complete the Shell Condition Work and
the Initial Tenant Work within one hundred fifty-five (155) days after the later of (i) the date on which the Permits are obtained, (ii) the date of
Tenant’s written approval of the Base Price (as defined below), and (iii) Tenant’s delivery to Landlord of the Excess Tenant Work Costs Letter
of Credit (as defined below) (such one hundred fifty-five (155) day period, the “Construction Period”). If Landlord is unable to obtain the
Permits on or before the expiration of the Permitting Period, then each day after the end of the Permitting Period until the Permits are obtained
shall constitute a “Permitting Delay Day”. If Landlord is unable to substantially complete the Shell Condition Work and the Initial Tenant Work
on or before the expiration of the Construction Period, then each day after the end of the Construction Period until the Shell Condition Work
and the Initial Tenant Work are substantially complete shall constitute a “Construction Delay Day”. The total number of Permitting Delay Days
and Construction Delay Days shall be referred to herein as the “Total Landlord Delay Days”. The Total Landlord Delay Days minus the Total
Tenant Delay Days (as defined below) shall be referred to herein as the “Net Landlord Delay Days”.

Subject to the provisions of this Lease, Landlord shall not be in default hereunder for any failure to tender possession of any portion of
the Premises in the required condition to Tenant by any particular date; the validity of the Lease shall not be affected or impaired thereby; and
Tenant shall accept possession of the Premises when Landlord tenders possession thereof to Tenant in the condition required by the terms of
this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, (i) the Rent Commencement Date shall be
extended by the number of Net Landlord Delay Days (but if the Total Tenant Delay Days exceeds the Total Landlord Delay Days, there shall be
no acceleration of the Rent Commencement Date), (ii) if the number of Net Landlord Delay Days exceeds ninety (90) days, then Tenant shall
be entitled to a credit against Base Rent first becoming due under the Lease equal to [***] Base Rent (i.e., calculated at the daily Base Rent
that would otherwise be in effect for Lease Year 1 under the Lease) for each day of Net Landlord Delay Days in excess of ninety (90) days, and
(iii) if the number of Net Landlord Delay Days exceeds one hundred eighty (180) days, then Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease
by delivering not less than sixty (60) days’ advance written notice thereof to Landlord,
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which notice must be delivered within sixty (60) days after the end of such one hundred eighty (180) day period. If the Term Commencement
Date occurs within such sixty-day period, then Tenant’s termination shall be null and void. If the Term Commencement does not occur within
such sixty-day period, then this Lease shall terminate on the date set forth in Tenant’s termination notice.

For purposes hereof, “substantially complete” and “substantial completion” shall mean that the applicable work by Landlord under this
Paragraph C.2 has been completed, other than minor punchlist-type items the completion of which will not delay or interfere with Tenant’s
occupancy of the Premises for the regular conduct of business (“Punchlist Items™) (the date of such substantial completion, the “Substantial
Completion Date”), as evidenced by the issuance of a temporary or permanent certificate of occupancy for the Premises and a certificate of
completion of the Construction Manager and reasonably approved by the Tenant’s architect; provided, however, that if such certificate of
occupancy cannot be issued due to any work to be performed by Tenant or any action required of Tenant, then the issuance of a certificate of
occupancy shall not be a condition to the occurrence of the Substantial Completion Date, provided that Landlord has secured sign-offs for the
Shell Condition Work and the Initial Tenant Work from all departments, divisions, or other authorities of the City of Boston having jurisdiction
thereover to the extent such sign-offs can be obtained absent completion of any work to be performed by Tenant or any action required by
Tenant, and for purposes of determining the number of Construction Delay Days, if any, the Shell Condition Work and the Initial Tenant Work
shall be deemed substantially complete on the date that the certificate of occupancy would have issued but for the non-completion of such work
or action to be performed by Tenant, and Landlord shall secure such certificate of occupancy for the Shell Condition Work and/or the Initial
Tenant Work as soon as practicable following the completion of any such work or action to be performed by Tenant. The foregoing provisions
shall be self-operative, but in confirmation thereof at Landlord’s request Tenant shall execute and deliver an instrument confirming the date on
which substantial completion of such work occurred and the number of, if any, Permitting Delay Days, Construction Delay Days and Total
Tenant Delay Days, provided that any failure by Tenant to execute and return such confirmatory instrument (or to provide written objection
identifying the elements of the work that Tenant claims must be completed in order to achieve substantial completion of such work or any good
faith dispute regarding the number of any Permitting Delay Days and/or Construction Delay Days and/or Total Tenant Delay Days) within three
(3) business after its delivery to Tenant shall be deemed Tenant’s agreement with the matters set forth in such instrument. Either party may
submit any dispute on such matters to arbitration pursuant to Section 21.15 of the Lease.

C.3 Tenant’s Construction Documents. Tenant shall submit to Landlord the final construction documents for the Initial Tenant Work
described on Schedule C-2, which construction documents shall be consistent in all material respects with the layout shown on the Fit Plan
attached to Schedule C-2, as well as the Dedicated Venting System, and the Back-Up Power and Supplemental System, and shall be prepared in
accordance with the requirements for the Construction Documents set forth in Schedule C-3 (the “Construction Documents”). In the event that
the Construction Documents are not consistent in all material respects with the Fit Plan, any actual delay in the substantial completion of the
Initial Tenant Work within the Construction Period due to such material inconsistencies shall constitute a Tenant Delay. Landlord shall provide
Tenant an estimate of any anticipated delays that may result from such material inconsistencies, provided that if Tenant elects to proceed with
such material inconsistencies, the duration of any Tenant Delay shall be determined based on the duration of any actual delay, regardless of any
estimate provided by Landlord. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary Tenant’s cabling (the “Cabling Work”, which shall include IT
cabling) shall be included in the Initial Tenant Work, and the Cabling Work shall be included in the Construction Documents and the GMP
Contract (as defined below) and shall be performed by Landlord as part of the Initial Tenant Work. Landlord hereby confirms its approval of
Spagnolo Gisness & Associates as Tenant’s architect for the Initial Tenant Work. Tenant shall also retain, or cause its architect to retain, the
services of the electrical and mechanical engineers engaged by Landlord for the Building or such other experienced engineers as are otherwise
reasonably approved by Landlord, as

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested
C-2



well as Landlord’s structural engineer if any portion of Initial Tenant Work affects structural components of the Building. Landlord hereby
confirms its approval of McNamara Salvi and WB Engineers and Consultants as acceptable engineers. Even if any such architect or engineers
may have been otherwise engaged by Landlord in connection with the Building, Tenant shall be solely responsible for the liabilities and
expenses of all architectural and engineering services relating to the Initial Tenant Work (subject to reimbursement from the Tenant Work
Allowance as provided below), and for the adequacy and completeness of the Construction Documents submitted to Landlord. The
Construction Documents shall comply with the Building’s construction rules and regulations, including without limitation those designed to
maintain a uniform exterior appearance of the Building. Tenant shall be solely responsible for the timely preparation and submission to
Landlord of the Construction Documents. Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to review and approve (or provide comments on) the
Construction Documents within ten (10) Business Days after the same are delivered to Landlord, provided that Landlord reserves the right to
extend such review period in the event that the Construction Documents require Landlord to review, or to cause its third-party engineer to
review, structural elements or other special elements of the Initial Tenant Work. Tenant shall, within five (5) Business Days after receipt of
Landlord’s comments, cause the Construction Documents to be corrected or revised to address Landlord’s comments and resubmitted to
Landlord for its review and approval as provided above. Once the Construction Documents have been approved by Landlord, Tenant shall
respond promptly (and in all events within three (3) Business Days) to Landlord’s requests from time to time for Tenant’s approval of all
construction-related items (e.g., carpet and paint selections and other design specifications) not specified on the Construction Documents.
Promptly following approval of the Construction Documents (and in any event within three (3) Business Days), Landlord shall submit the
approved Construction Documents to the Construction Manager (as defined below) for purposes of determining the Base Price for the Initial
Tenant Work (the “CD Set GMP Submission”).

C.4 Tenant Allowance. Landlord shall provide an allowance for the costs (“Allowance Costs”) of constructing the Initial Tenant
Work in the Premises for Tenant’s initial occupancy (including, without limitation, the so-called soft costs of architectural and engineering fees
and construction management fees set forth below, and costs of the Cabling Work) in an amount not to exceed the Tenant Work Allowance set
forth in Section 1 of the Lease (such amount sometimes being referred to herein as the “Allowance”). Tenant may requisition not more than
[***] percent ([***]%) of the Tenant Work Allowance for the architectural fees, engineering fees and other so-called “soft costs” for the Initial
Tenant Work incurred by Tenant as described above (“Tenant’s Soft Construction Costs”). To the extent that the Initial Tenant Work Costs (as
defined below) for the Initial Tenant Work exceed the Tenant Work Allowance (all such excess being referred to as the “Excess Tenant Work
Costs”), Tenant shall pay for the entire amount of the Excess Tenant Work Costs in accordance with Paragraph C.8 below, and Landlord shall
not provide any reimbursement therefor.

Landlord shall solicit bids for the Initial Tenant Work from three (3) reputable general contractors designated by Landlord and
reasonably approved by Tenant. Landlord shall promptly supply Tenant with such detailed information about bid requests and negotiations
with contractors as Tenant may reasonably request, provided that any delays resulting from Tenant’s failure to act within five (5) Business Days
upon the information supplied to Tenant by Landlord shall be subject to the provisions on Tenant Delay under Paragraph C.10 below. Landlord
will accept the lowest responsible bid, in Landlord’s good faith determination taking into account (among other things) the assurances of timely
performance of the work, unless Landlord and Tenant reasonably and mutually determine to select another bidder. The bidder mutually
approved by Landlord and Tenant shall be referred to herein as the “Construction Manager”.

Landlord and Tenant shall work together in good faith in connection with the construction pricing of the Initial Tenant Work. Landlord
shall notify Tenant of the total fixed-price construction cost of the Initial Tenant Work (including the Cabling Work) shown on such
Construction Documents (“Base Price”),
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including the general contractor’s so-called general conditions and fees for the Initial Tenant Work, which Base Price shall be subject to
Tenant’s approval, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed subject to the provisions hereof. Upon the approval of the Base
Price by Landlord and Tenant, Landlord and the Construction Manager shall enter into a “Guaranteed Maximum Price With No Shared
Savings” contract reflecting such Base Price (“GMP _Contract”). Landlord shall provide Tenant with a copy of the GMP Contract for review,
provided that the GMP Contract shall not be subject to Tenant’s approval. Such GMP Contract shall provide, however, that the Base Price shall
be subject to adjustment for any Initial Tenant Work Change Orders (if any) under Paragraph C.5 below.

The “Initial Tenant Work Costs” shall be solely comprised of (i) the Base Price (as adjusted for any Initial Tenant Work Change Order),
(ii) architectural, mechanical, electrical and structural design fees incurred by Landlord for the Initial Tenant Work, (iii) all costs obtaining
permits and inspections required by governmental authorities in connection with the Initial Tenant Work, together with the costs of insuring the
Initial Tenant Work, to the extent not already included in the Base Price, (iv) all costs of Building services or facilities (such as electricity,
HVAC, fire alarm plug ins/outs, freight elevator usage, and cleaning, in each case at Building standard rates charged to tenants generally)
required to implement the Initial Tenant Work, and (v) a construction management fee for the Landlord’s managing agent providing such
construction management services equal to [***] percent ([***]%) of the hard costs of the Initial Tenant Work, which hard costs, for purposes
of this calculation, shall include costs for or related to general conditions, project requirements, insurance, pre-construction services and
permits, but exclude the construction management fee itself. All costs referred to in this paragraph shall be subject to reimbursement or
application by Landlord from the Allowance. Prior to commencing the Initial Tenant Work, Landlord shall submit to Tenant for its approval,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, a construction budget for the Initial Tenant Work Costs (the
“Construction Budget”). The Construction Budget approved by Tenant shall be the basis for determining the amount of Excess Tenant Work
Costs to be paid by Tenant and the amount of the Excess Tenant Work Costs Letter of Credit (defined below). The aggregate of the Excess
Tenant Work Costs to be paid by Tenant and the amount of the Letter of Credit (as defined in Section 6) shall never be greater than 89% of the
total amount of the Construction Budget at any point during construction, and Tenant shall be required to adjust the scope of the Initial Tenant
Work to ensure that said 89% cap is not exceeded. Payments for estimated Excess Tenant Work Costs shall be secured by a letter of credit, in
the amount of such estimated Excess Tenant Work Costs, which letter of credit shall be approved by Landlord and Tenant (which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed) (the “Excess Tenant Work Costs Letter of Credit”), which may be drawn by Landlord
only if Tenant fails to pay such Excess Tenant Work Costs as provided in Paragraph C.8 below. Within seven (7) Business Days following
Tenant’s payment of the Excess Tenant Work Costs, Landlord shall coordinate with Tenant to deliver the Excess Tenant Work Costs Letter of
Credit to the issuer along with a statement by Landlord that the Excess Tenant Work Costs Letter of Credit is no longer applicable and shall be
canceled. The Estimated Tenant Work Costs Letter of Credit shall be delivered by Tenant to Landlord within five (5) Business Days following
Tenant’s approval of the Construction Budget. Landlord shall have no obligation to disburse or apply any portion of the Allowance or to
perform the Initial Tenant Work at any time when there exists a Default under the Lease (or for so long as an event or condition has occurred
which with notice and the passage of time would constitute such a Default), until such time as the Default (or the event or condition) has been
cured by Tenant. Except as set forth above with respect to Tenant’s Soft Costs, the Tenant Work Allowance shall not be disbursed to Tenant in
cash, but shall be applied by Landlord to the payment of the total Initial Tenant Work Costs, if, as, and when the costs thereof is actually
incurred and paid by Landlord. In addition to the Allowance, within thirty (30) days following Landlord’s receipt of invoices evidencing the
cost of the initial test-fit plan for the Initial Tenant Work, Landlord shall pay to Tenant an amount not to exceed $[***] per square foot of
Rentable Floor Area of the Premises towards the cost of such test-fit plan (the “Concept Plan Allowance”).
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C.5 Change Orders. Tenant may, from time to time, by written order to Landlord on a form specified by Landlord (“Initial Tenant
Work Change Order” or “Change Order”), request a change in the Initial Tenant Work shown on the Construction Documents. Landlord shall
cause the Initial Tenant Work to be performed in accordance with such Initial Tenant Work Change Order after approval thereof by Landlord.
The Construction Documents shall not be modified in any material respect except with Landlord’s prior written approval which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned (except as provided in Section C.6) or delayed; and all modifications to the Construction Documents,
whether material or not, shall be made only by Initial Tenant Work Change Order submitted to and approved by Landlord. Tenant shall be
responsible for all additional costs arising from any Initial Tenant Work Change Order (including, without limitation, as to each such Initial
Tenant Work Change Order, the general contractor mark-ups for general conditions and fees and the applicable construction management fee
equal to [***] percent ([***]%) of the hard costs of such Change Order, which hard costs, for purposes of this calculation, shall include costs
for or related to general conditions, project requirements, insurance, pre-construction services and permits, but shall exclude the construction
management fee itself. The amount of the Excess Tenant Work Costs Letter of Credit shall be amended and/or supplemented to secure any
Initial Tenant Work Change Order costs.

C.6 Landlord’s Performance of the Work. Landlord shall be deemed authorized to proceed with the Initial Tenant Work shown on the
Construction Documents upon the later of (a) the City of Boston’s issuance of the Permits and (b) Tenant’s written confirmation of Tenant’s
approval of the Base Price, unless Tenant has then requested that Landlord delay the commencement of such work, in which event any such
timely request (or any subsequent request) by Tenant to delay the work shall be subject to the provisions on Tenant Delay under Paragraph C.10
below. All Initial Tenant Work shall be performed and constructed by Landlord in accordance with the Construction Documents and in
compliance with applicable Laws; provided that (a) Landlord shall not be responsible for any aspects of the design of the Initial Tenant Work or
any non-compliance of the Initial Tenant Work shown on the Construction Documents with applicable Laws, and (b) after the Construction
Documents have been approved by Landlord, any change in the work shown thereon, whether material or not, shall be made only after Tenant
shall have submitted revised Construction Documents to Landlord for its review and approval in accordance with Paragraph C.3 above.

With respect to any Initial Tenant Work Change Order submitted after Landlord is initially authorized (or deemed authorized) to
proceed with the Initial Tenant Work, Landlord shall be deemed authorized to proceed with such Change Order immediately upon submission
thereof; provided that if Tenant shall specifically request in writing a price estimate, delay estimate, and/or notification of any changes to the
Construction Documents required by Landlord as provided in the immediately following paragraph for such Change Order, Landlord shall be
deemed authorized to proceed with such Change Order on the second Business Day after Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s response(s) to Tenant’s
request for a price estimate, delay estimate, and/or notification if the Change Order has not then been withdrawn.

The Construction Documents approved by Landlord shall not be changed or modified by either party without the approval in writing of
the other party, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned (except as provided in this paragraph) or delayed. No Initial
Tenant Work shall be performed except in accordance with the Construction Documents, as the same may be revised in accordance with the
express provisions of this Exhibit C. Landlord may condition its approval of any Initial Tenant Work Change Order on revisions to the
Construction Documents described in reasonable detail in a written notice from Landlord to Tenant if, in Landlord’s reasonable judgment,
(i) the requested work would delay completion of the Initial Tenant Work beyond the Construction Period (unless Tenant acknowledges that
such delay shall constitute a Tenant Delay under Paragraph C.10 below), (ii) would increase the cost of operating the Building or performing
any other work in the Building (unless Tenant pays such additional costs and provides an amendment or supplement to the Excess Work Costs
Letter of Credit for such
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amount), (iii) are incompatible with the design, quality, equipment or systems of the Building, (iv) would require unusual expense to readapt
the portion of the Premises used for general office purposes to general purpose office use, or (v) otherwise do not comply with the provisions of
this Lease (including, without limitation, Section 8). Landlord shall not be responsible for any aspects of the design of the Initial Tenant Work,
including the design of any Initial Tenant Work shown on any Initial Tenant Work Change Orders, with applicable Laws.

C.7 Tenant’s Early Access. The Initial Tenant Work to be performed by Landlord under this Exhibit C shall not include the purchase,
installation, or testing of any personal property, furniture, computers or telecommunications equipment, or any other specialized business
fixtures and equipment (even if the same may be generally depicted for illustration or space planning purposes on the Construction
Documents), all of which shall be Tenant’s responsibility under this Paragraph C.7. As described above, the Cabling Work shall be included in
the Construction Documents and the GMP Contract, and shall be performed by Landlord as part of the Initial Tenant Work. Tenant shall have
the right to access the Premises on or before the date that is sixty (60) days prior to the anticipated Substantial Completion Date (without
triggering the Term Commencement Date), for the purposes of installing Tenant’s furniture, equipment, and personal property, provided that
any such access shall be subject in each case to (i) Landlord’s approval of the schedule and scope of such work (which shall not delay the
performance by Landlord of the Initial Tenant Work), (ii) Landlord’s approval of Tenant’s contractors or vendors for such work in accordance
with Section 8 of the Lease, (iii) Landlord’s receipt from Tenant of copies of all necessary permits for the applicable work by Tenant, if any,
and (iv) customary insurance certificates from Tenant’s contractors, subcontractors, and other parties acting under Tenant with respect to the
applicable work in accordance with Section 8 of the Lease. Landlord shall keep Tenant reasonably informed as to the expected Substantial
Completion Date and shall give Tenant not less than sixty (60) days’ prior written notice of the expected Substantial Completion Date. Tenant
shall be responsible for any damage to the Initial Tenant Work or the Premises to the extent caused by Tenant or its employees, agents,
contractors, subcontractors, material suppliers and laborers in connection with such entry. Any entry into the Premises by Tenant (or its
contractors, subcontractors, or other parties acting under Tenant) prior to the Substantial Completion Date shall not trigger the Term
Commencement Date and shall be subject to all of the provisions of the Lease that are applicable to the Premises during the Term, except that
no Rent or other costs or expenses shall be payable by Tenant during any period of access prior to the Substantial Completion Date.

C.8 Close-Out of Initial Tenant Work. On a date reasonably specified by Landlord, Landlord and Tenant shall inspect the Initial
Tenant Work for the purpose of confirming substantial completion as heretofore set forth and preparing a list of the Punchlist Items then
remaining to be completed (the “Final Punchlist”). Landlord shall submit the Final Punchlist to Tenant, and Tenant shall sign and return the
Final Punchlist to Landlord within two (2) Business Days after its receipt (or, if earlier, by the day before Tenant takes occupancy of the
Premises), noting any items that Tenant reasonably believes should be clarified or added thereto. If the Final Punchlist signed by Tenant is not
timely delivered by Tenant, then the Initial Tenant Work shall be deemed final and complete, and Landlord shall have no further obligation to
cause any other Initial Tenant Work to be completed, other than the Punchlist Items specified in Landlord’s Final Punchlist and the correction of
latent defects as provided below. With respect to items on the Final Punchlist, Landlord shall cause such items to be completed in a diligent
manner during regular business hours, but in a manner that will seek to minimize interruption of Tenant’s use and occupancy. With respect to
any Final Punchlist items, Landlord shall cause such items to be completed in like manner, but Landlord may nevertheless reserve Landlord’s
rights to require Tenant to pay the costs therefor as Excess Tenant Work Costs. Tenant shall pay to the Landlord for the cost of the Excess
Tenant Work Costs as provided herein within ten (10) days after determination of substantial completion as aforesaid.
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Within ninety (90) days after the completion of all items of Initial Tenant Work listed on the Final Punchlist, Landlord shall provide
Tenant with a final statement prepared by Landlord for all additional items to be included Excess Tenant Work Costs not previously
determined. Such statement shall be conclusive between the parties unless the statement is disputed by Tenant by notice to Landlord given
within ten (10) days after Tenant’s receipt of such statement, specifying in reasonable detail any disputed items. If the statement is not disputed
by Tenant within such ten (10) day period, Tenant shall pay the additional items of Excess Tenant Work Costs set forth such statement within
thirty (30) days after Tenant’s receipt of such statement. If Tenant disputes such statement, either party shall have the right to submit such
dispute to arbitration pursuant to Section 21.15 of the Lease, and Tenant shall pay the Excess Tenant Work Costs as agreed by the parties or as
determined by arbitration within thirty (30) days after such agreement or determination.

Except for latent defects and uncompleted items of Initial Tenant Work specified in the Final Punchlist, Tenant shall be deemed to have
accepted all elements of the Initial Tenant Work on the Term Commencement Date. In the case of a dispute concerning the completion of items
of the Initial Tenant Work specified in the Final Punchlist, such items shall be deemed completed and accepted by Tenant upon the delivery to
Tenant of a certificate of the Construction Manager that such items have been completed and reasonably approved by Tenant’s architect;
provided that either party shall have the right to submit any dispute regarding the completion of items on the Final Punchlist to arbitration
pursuant to Section 21.15 of the Lease. In the case of latent defects in the Initial Tenant Work appearing after the Term Commencement Date,
Tenant shall be deemed to have waived any claim for correction or cure thereof on the date fifty one (51) weeks following the Substantial
Completion Date if Tenant has not then given notice of such defect to Landlord. With respect to items as to which Tenant has given adequate
and timely notice hereunder, Landlord shall cause Landlord’s contractor so to, remedy, repair, or replace any incomplete, defective or
malfunctioning aspects of the Initial Tenant Work (and Landlord shall ensure that the GMP Contract provides for such a contractor warranty),
such action to occur as soon as practicable during normal working hours and so as to avoid any unreasonable interruption of Tenant’s use of the
Premises. If timely and adequate notice has been given and if Landlord has other guarantees, contract rights, or other claims against
contractors, materialmen or architects, Landlord shall, with regard to any incomplete, defective or malfunctioning aspects of the Initial Tenant
Work also enforce such guarantees or contract rights.

C9 Tenant’s Authorized Representative. Tenant hereby designates Kevin O’Kelly Lynch to serve as Tenant’s Authorized
Representative, who shall have full power and authority to act on behalf of Tenant on any matters relating to the Initial Tenant Work. Tenant
may from time to time change the Tenant’s Authorized Representative or designate additional Tenant’s Authorized Representative(s) by written
notice delivered to Landlord in accordance with the Lease.

C.10  Tenant Delays. Tenant acknowledges that that substantial time will be required on its part to provide complete information
concerning its requirements to the architect and engineers for the Initial Tenant Work, that Tenant agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts
to make timely decisions, and that Tenant will cooperate with Landlord to achieve the earliest possible Term Commencement Date. Any delay
in the commencement or performance or substantial completion of the Initial Tenant Work, where indicated below, as a result of any of the
following of which Landlord has given Tenant written notice within five (5) days after the occurrence thereof (except that no notice shall be
required in connection with any failure by Tenant to timely comply with any time periods expressly set forth in this Lease) is referred to herein
as a “Tenant Delay”:

@@ any failure by Tenant to timely respond to requests for information necessary to complete the preparation of the
Construction Documents or to carry out the Initial Tenant Work, as required in this Exhibit C;

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested
C-7



(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

any failure by Tenant timely to approve a substitute for any materials, equipment, designs, processes, or products shown
on the Construction Documents that are not readily available to Landlord’s contractor to acquire in a timely manner and
incorporate into the Initial Tenant Work in the ordinary course without delay,

any Initial Tenant Work Change Order which causes a delay in the substantial completion of the Initial Tenant Work,
whether or not such requested Initial Tenant Change Order is actually implemented;

any failure of Tenant to act in a timely manner as required hereunder (and if no time period is set forth in this Exhibit C
for such matter, then within three (3) Business Days of request) on any construction-related question or matter, including
any failure to respond within two (2) Business Days to any requests for information by Landlord or the permitting
authorities in connection with the applications for the Permits and Amended Building CO;

any request by Tenant that Landlord delay the commencement of, or delay or suspend the performance of, any element of
the Initial Tenant Work (it being agreed that Landlord is not required to comply with such request and may decline to
comply therewith in its sole discretion), or

any other act or omission of Tenant or any of their officers, employees, agents, contractors, or equipment vendors,
including without limitation, any early entry pursuant to Paragraph C.7 above, which directly causes a delay in the
substantial completion of the Initial Tenant Work, subject to Landlord’s obligation to give Tenant written notice within
five (5) days after the occurrence thereof as set forth above.

The total number of days that the substantial completion of the Shell Condition Work and Initial Tenant Work is actually delayed beyond the
Construction Period due to any Tenant Delays shall be referred to herein as the “Total Tenant Delay Days”.

In the event that either Landlord or Tenant disputes in good faith the amount of the Total Landlord Delay Days or the Total Tenant Delay Days,
such dispute shall be resolved by arbitration pursuant to Section 21.15 of the Lease.
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Schedule C-1

Description of Shell Condition Work

Landlord, at Landlord’s sole cost and expense and not as a deduction from the Allowance, shall perform the following work for the
Premises, using building standard materials and construction methods:

1.

2.

Delivery of the Premises demolished, vacant and in so-called “broom clean” condition;
Installation of a code-compliant sprinkler loop (with heads turned up);

All Building Systems, including electrical service with a direct meter, submeter or check meter, shall be brought to the
core electrical closet and fully operational in accordance with performance specifications suitable to support the Initial
Tenant Work as set forth on Schedule C-2;

VAV boxes and diffusers currently in place will be in good working order, provided that Tenant may request, by written
notice delivered to Landlord within five (5) days after the date of the Lease, that Landlord remove the VAV boxes at
Landlord’s sole cost as part of the demolition scope;

Adequate connection points to the domestic water service and plumbing vent, located within the core;
Concrete floors finished and ready to accept commercial grade floor covering;
All core and shell walls and column enclosures (if currently enclosed) scraped and patched within reason;

New building standard perimeter window coverings will be installed following completion of the Initial Tenant Work;
and

Remove from the Premises all actionable levels of Hazardous Materials (if any) in compliance with applicable
Environmental, Health and Safety Laws.

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested



Schedule C-2
Preliminary Plans for Initial Tenant Work
Landlord shall perform the work within the Premises in accordance with the layout as shown on the attached Fit Plan, and in

accordance with the Construction Documents approved by Landlord, as the same may be revised in accordance with the express provisions of
Exhibit C to the Lease.
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FIT PLAN

[See attached]
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1.

Schedule C-3

Requirements for Construction Documents for Initial Tenant Work

Preparation of Construction Documents. The Construction Documents shall include all architectural, mechanical, electrical, fire

protection, plumbing and structural drawings and detailed specifications for the Initial Tenant Work, as applicable, and shall show and/or
specify all work necessary to complete the Initial Tenant Work including all cutting, fitting, and patching and all connections to the mechanical
and electrical systems and other components of the Building as well as any re-balancing and re-commissioning scope that is necessary to
address Base Building systems affected by the Initial Tenant Work. Where the Initial Tenant Work interfaces with Base Building, the Initial
Tenant Work design shall visually integrate with the Base Building in a manner and with materials and finishes that are compatible with the
Base Building in that area. Landlord reserves the right to reject Construction Documents which in its reasonable opinion fail to comply with
this provision. The Construction Documents shall include but not be limited to:

(a) Major Work Information: A list of any items or matters which might require structural modifications to the Building, including
but not limited to the following:

@) Location and details of special floor areas exceeding the applicable floor load for such area of the Building;
) Location and weights of storage files, batteries, HVAC units and technical areas;

3) Location of any special soundproofing requirements;

4) Existence of any extraordinary HVAC requirements necessitating perforation of structural members; and
(5) Existence of any requirements for heavy loads, dunnage or other items affecting the structure.

(b) Plans Submission: Two (2) blackline drawings and one (1) CAD disk (subject to Tenant’s architect’s and its consultants’ and
subconsultants’ reasonable conditions for re-use) showing all architectural, mechanical and electrical systems, including
cutsheets (where reasonably requested by Landlord), specifications and the following:

CONSTRUCTION PLANS:

(1) All partitions shall be shown; indicate ratings of all partitions; indicate all non-standard construction and details referenced,;

) Dimensions for partition shall be shown to face of drywall; critical tolerances and + dimensions shall be clearly noted;

(©) All plumbing fixtures or other equipment requirements and any equipment requiring connection to Building plumbing systems

shall be noted.

REFLECTED CEILING PLAN:

)
@

Layout suspended ceiling grid pattern in each room, describing the intent of the ceiling working point, origin and/or centering;
and

Locate all ceiling-mounted lighting fixtures and air handling devices including air dampers, fan boxes, etc., lighting fixtures,
supply air diffusers, wall switches, down lights, special lighting fixtures, special return air registers, special supply air diffusers,
and special wall switches.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT PLAN:
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@)) All telephone outlets required;

) All electrical outlets required; note non-standard power devices and/or related equipment;

3) All electrical requirements associated with plumbing fixtures or equipment; append product data for all equipment requiring
special power, temperature control or plumbing considerations;

4) Location of telecommunications equipment and general layout of conduits; and

5) Components and design of antennas, if any, (including associated equipment) as installed, in sufficient detail to evaluate

weight, bearing requirements, wind-load characteristics, power requirements and the effects on Building structure, moisture
resistance of the roof membrane and operations of pre-existing telecommunications equipment, to the extent known or based
on information provided by Landlord.

DOOR SCHEDULE:

@) Provide a schedule of doors, sizes, finishes, hardware sets and ratings; and

) Non-standard materials and/or installation shall be explicitly noted.

HVAC:

() Areas requiring special temperature and/or humidity control requirements;

) Heat emission of equipment (including catalogue cuts where reasonably required by Landlord or, where unavailable, based on
engineer’s assumptions therefor), such as CRTs, copy machines, etc.;

3) Special exhaust requirements for conference rooms, pantry, toilets, etc.; and

() Any extension of system beyond demised space.

ELECTRICAL:

1) Special lighting requirements;

) Power requirements and special outlet requirements of equipment;

3) Security requirements;

4 Supplied telephone equipment and the necessary space allocation for same;

5) Any extensions of tenant equipment beyond demised space and

(6) Load study confirming compliance with the leased space’s allowable watts per square foot.

PLUMBING:

() Remote toilets;

) Pantry equipment requirements;

3) Remote water and/or drain requirements such as for sinks, ice makers, etc.; and

“4) Special drainage requirements, such as those requiring holding or dilution tanks.

ROOF:

Detailed plan of any existing and proposed roof equipment, if any, showing location and elevations of all equipment.

SPECIAL SERVICES:
Equipment cuts (where reasonably requested by Landlord), power requirements, heat emissions, raised floor requirements, fire
protection requirements, security requirements, and emergency power.

2. Plan Requirements. The Construction Documents shall be fully detailed and fully coordinated with each other and with the Base
Building design, shall show complete dimensions, and
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shall have designated thereon all points of location and other matters, including special construction details and finish schedules. Tenant and its
architect shall be solely responsible for ascertaining all existing field conditions. Any plans in Landlord’s files, if any, that are provided to
Tenant shall be without any representation or warranty. All drawings shall be uniform size, shall incorporate the standard electrical and
plumbing symbols, and be at a scale of 1/8” = 1°0” or larger. Materials and/or installation shall be explicitly noted and adequately specified to
allow for performing Landlord review, securing a building permit, pursuing construction pricing, and performing construction. All equipment
and installations shall be made in accordance with standard materials and procedures unless a deviation outside of industry standards is shown
on the Construction Documents and approved by Landlord. To the extent practicable, a concise description of products, acceptable substitutes
(if any), and installation procedures and standards shall be provided to the extent customary. Product cuts (where reasonably requested by
Landlord) must be provided and special mechanical or electrical loads noted. Landlord’s approval of the plans, drawings, specifications or
other submissions in respect of any work, addition, alteration or improvement to be undertaken by or on behalf of Tenant shall create no
liability or responsibility on the part of Landlord for their completeness, design sufficiency or compliance with requirements of any applicable
Laws.
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Schedule C-4

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED
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EXHIBIT D

COMMENCEMENT LETTER
(EXAMPLE)
Date
Tenant
Address
Re: Commencement Letter with respect to that certain Lease dated as of , 20___, by and between OPG 125 SUMMER

OWNER (DE) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as Landlord, and HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts
corporation, as Tenant, for 62,066 rentable square feet on the ___ floor of the Building located at 125 Summer Street, Boston, MA
02110.

Lease Id:
Business Unit Number:

Dear

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the above referenced Lease, Tenant accepts possession of the Premises and
acknowledges:

1. The Term Commencement Date of the Lease is . The Rent Commencement Date of the Lease is

2. The Term Expiration Date of the Lease is

Please acknowledge the foregoing and your acceptance of possession by signing all 3 counterparts of this Commencement Letter in the
space provided and returning two (2) fully executed counterparts to my attention. Tenant’s failure to execute and return this letter, or to provide
written objection to the statements contained in this letter, within thirty (30) days after the date of this letter shall be deemed an approval by
Tenant of the statements contained herein.

Sincerely,

Authorized Signatory
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Acknowledged and Accepted:

Tenant: HAEMONETICS CORPORATION

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
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EXHIBIT E
BUILDING RULES AND REGULATIONS

This Exhibit is attached to and made a part of the Office Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) by and between OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER
(DE) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”), and HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts corporation
(“Tenant”), for space in the Building located at 125 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02110. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall
have the meanings given in the Lease.

The following rules and regulations shall apply, where applicable, to the Premises, the Building, the parking facilities (if any), the
Property and the appurtenances. In the event of a conflict between the following rules and regulations and the remainder of the terms of the
Lease, the remainder of the terms of the Lease shall control.

1. Sidewalks, doorways, vestibules, halls, stairways and other similar areas shall not be obstructed by Tenant or used by Tenant for
any purpose other than ingress and egress to and from the Premises. No rubbish, litter, trash, or material shall be placed, emptied, or thrown in
those areas. At no time shall Tenant permit Tenant’s employees to loiter in Common Areas or elsewhere about the Building or Property.

2. Plumbing fixtures and appliances shall be used only for the purposes for which designed and no sweepings, rubbish, rags or other
unsuitable material shall be thrown or placed in the fixtures or appliances.

3. Except as otherwise provided in the Lease: No signs, advertisements or notices shall be painted or affixed to windows, doors or
other parts of the Building, except those of such color, size, style and in such places as are first approved in writing by Landlord. On multi-
tenant floors, elevator lobby signage identifying each tenant using Building standard graphics shall be installed by Landlord at its expense,
provided that any changes to a tenant’s initial elevator lobby signage shall be made by Landlord at such tenant’s expense. All tenant
identification and suite numbers at the entrance to the Premises, whether on multi-tenant or single-tenant floors, shall be subject to Landlord’s
prior approval in writing and shall be installed by Landlord, at Tenant’s cost and expense, using the standard graphics for the Building. Except
in connection with the hanging of lightweight pictures and wall decorations, no nails, hooks or screws shall be inserted into any part of the
Premises or Building except by the Building maintenance personnel without Landlord’s prior approval, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

4. Landlord may provide and maintain in the first floor (main lobby) of the Building an alphabetical directory board or other directory
device listing tenants and no other directory shall be permitted unless previously consented to by Landlord in writing.

5. Tenant shall not place any lock(s) on any door in the Premises or Building without Landlord’s prior written consent, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, and Landlord shall have the right at all times to retain and use keys or other access codes or devices to all
locks within and into the Premises. A reasonable number of keys and/or access cards to the locks on the entry doors in the Premises shall be
furnished by Landlord to Tenant at Tenant’s cost and Tenant shall not make any duplicate keys or access cards. All keys and access cards shall
be returned to Landlord at the expiration or early termination of the Lease.

6.  All contractors, contractor’s representatives and installation technicians performing work in the Building and all third party
vendors providing services to tenants or other occupants in the Building
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(such as special event caterers and liquor providers) shall be subject to Landlord’s prior approval (which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld), shall be required to provide customary certificates of insurance (in form and substance reasonably approved by Landlord for the
applicable work or service and naming Landlord and other designated parties as additional insureds), and shall comply with Landlord’s
standard rules, regulations, policies and procedures, which may be revised from time to time. Landlord has no obligation to allow any particular
telecommunication service provider to have access to the Building or to the Premises. If Landlord permits access, Landlord may condition the
access upon the payment to Landlord by the service provider of fees assessed by Landlord in Landlord’s sole discretion.

7. Movement in or out of the Building of furniture or office equipment, or dispatch or receipt by Tenant of merchandise or materials
requiring the use of elevators, stairways, lobby areas or loading dock areas, shall be performed in a manner and restricted to hours reasonably
designated by Landlord. Tenant shall obtain Landlord’s prior approval by providing a detailed listing of the activity, including the names of any
contractors, vendors or delivery companies, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Tenant shall assume all risk for damage, injury
or loss in connection with the activity.

8. Landlord shall have the right to approve the weight, size, or location of heavy equipment or articles in and about the Premises,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided that approval by Landlord shall not relieve Tenant from liability for any damage
in connection with such heavy equipment or articles.

9. Corridor doors, when not in use, shall be kept closed.

10. Tenant shall not: (a) make or permit any improper, objectionable or unpleasant noises, odors, or vibrations in the Building, or
otherwise interfere in any way with other tenants or persons having business with them; (b) solicit business or distribute or cause to be
distributed, in any portion of the Building, handbills, promotional materials or other advertising; or (c) conduct or permit other activities in the
Building that, constitute a nuisance.

11. No animals, except any service animals required for particular individuals, shall be brought into the Building or kept in or about
the Premises.

12. Intentionally Omitted.
13. Tenant shall not use, or permit any part of the Premises to be used for lodging, sleeping or for any illegal purpose.

14. Tenant shall reasonably cooperate with the Landlord to minimize any action which would violate Landlord’s labor contracts or
which would cause a work stoppage, picketing, labor disruption or dispute or interfere with Landlord’s or any other tenant’s or occupant’s
business or with the rights and privileges of any person lawfully in the Building (“Labor Disruption”). Tenant shall take reasonable actions
necessary to resolve the Labor Disruption, and, at the request of Landlord, immediately terminate any work in the Premises that gave rise to the
Labor Disruption, until Landlord gives its written consent (which consent may be withheld in Landlord’s sole discretion) for the work to
resume. Tenant shall have no claim for damages against Landlord or any of the Landlord Related Parties nor shall the Term Commencement
Date of the Term be extended as a result of the above actions.

15. Tenant shall not install, operate or maintain in the Premises or in any other area of the Building, electrical equipment that would

overload the electrical system beyond its capacity for proper, efficient and safe operation as determined solely by Landlord. Tenant shall not
furnish cooling or heating to the Premises, including, without limitation, the use of electric or gas heating devices, without Landlord’s
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prior written consent, which consent may be withheld in Landlord’s sole discretion. Tenant shall not use more than its proportionate share of
telephone lines and other telecommunication facilities available to service the Building.

16. Tenant shall not operate or permit to be operated a coin or token operated vending machine or similar device (including, without
limitation, telephones, lockers, toilets, scales, amusement devices and machines for sale of beverages, foods, candy, cigarettes and other goods),
except for machines for the exclusive use of Tenant’s employees and invitees.

17.  Bicycles and other vehicles are not permitted inside the Building (except for the bike storage area in the Garage) or on the
walkways outside the Building, except in areas designated by Landlord.

18. Landlord may from time to time adopt systems and procedures for the security and safety of the Building and Property, their
occupants, entry, use and contents. Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, guests and invitees shall comply with Landlord’s systems and
procedures.

19. Landlord shall have the right to prohibit the use of the name of the Building, any photographs or other graphic representations of
the Building, or any other publicity by Tenant that in Landlord’s sole opinion may impair the reputation of the Building or its desirability.
Upon written notice from Landlord, Tenant shall refrain from and discontinue such publicity immediately.

20. The Building is a non-smoking building. Neither Tenant nor its employees, contractors, agents, guests, or invitees shall smoke or
permit smoking of (i) any form of tobacco-related products (including, but not limited to pipes, cigars, cigarettes and similar products), (ii)
vaporized products via electronic cigarettes (or any similar products and technological evolutions or innovations thereof), or (iii) any other
plant-based or synthetic products which emit substances into the air at any time either in the Premises, in any other part of the Building, around
the entrances to the Building, or in any other exterior area of the Property. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord may, at its election in its
sole discretion from time to time, designate any exterior area of the Property (if any) as a permitted smoking area of tobacco-related products.

21. Landlord shall have the right to designate and approve standard window coverings for the Premises and to establish rules to
assure that the Building presents a uniform exterior appearance. Tenant shall ensure, to the extent reasonably practicable, that window
coverings are closed on windows in the Premises while they are exposed to the direct rays of the sun.

22. Deliveries to and from the Premises shall be made only at the times in the areas and through the entrances and exits reasonably
designated by Landlord. Tenant shall not make deliveries to or from the Premises in a manner that might interfere with the use by any other
tenant of its premises or of the Common Areas, any pedestrian use, or any use which is inconsistent with good business practice.

23. The work of cleaning personnel shall not be hindered by Tenant after 6:00 P.M., and cleaning work may be done at any time when
the offices are vacant. Windows, doors and fixtures may be cleaned at any time. Tenant shall provide adequate waste and rubbish receptacles to
prevent unreasonable hardship to the cleaning service.
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EXHIBIT F

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

This Exhibit is attached to and made a part of the Office Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) by and between OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER
(DE) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”), and HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts corporation
(“Tenant™), for space in the Building located at 125 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02110. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall
have the meanings given in the Lease.

1. Parking.

(a) During the Term, Tenant shall have the right to lease from Landlord, and Landlord shall lease to Tenant, or cause the operator (the
“Operator”) of the garage serving the Building (the “Garage”) to lease to Tenant, up to [***] ([***]) unreserved parking spaces in the Garage
(the “Spaces”) for the use of Tenant and its employees. The Spaces shall be leased at the rate of $[***] per Space, per month, plus applicable
tax thereon, as such rate may be adjusted from time to time to reflect the then current rate for parking in the Garage. If requested by Landlord,
Tenant shall execute and deliver to Landlord the standard parking agreement used by Landlord or the Operator in the Garage for such Spaces.
Tenant may from time to time (but not more often than one time per month) (i) give back, and terminate the leases for, any number of Spaces,
and/or (ii) request additional unreserved parking spaces in the Garage to be leased by Tenant hereunder. With respect to any such additional
parking spaces requested by Tenant, Landlord shall lease to Tenant, or cause the Operator to lease to Tenant, such additional parking spaces to
Tenant upon the terms set forth herein; provided, however, that the lease of such additional parking spaces shall be subject to the availability of
such parking spaces, and in no event shall Landlord be obligated to lease, or cause the Operator to lease, to Tenant more than thirty-four (34)
parking spaces in the Garage.

(b) No deductions or allowances shall be made for days when Tenant or any of its employees does not utilize the parking facilities or
for Tenant utilizing less than all of the Spaces. Tenant shall not have the right to lease or otherwise use more than the number of unreserved
Spaces set forth above.

(c) Except for particular spaces and areas designated by Landlord or the Operator for reserved parking, all parking in the Garage shall
be on an unreserved, first-come, first-served basis; provided, however, that, subject to the terms of this Lease (including without limitation,
Section 1(g) of this Exhibit F), Tenant shall at all times have the right to use the Spaces.

(d) Neither Landlord nor the Operator shall be responsible for money, jewelry, automobiles or other personal property lost in or stolen
from the Garage regardless of whether such loss or theft occurs when the Garage or other areas therein are locked or otherwise secured. Except
as caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord and without limiting the terms of the preceding sentence, Landlord shall not be
liable for any loss, injury or damage to persons using the Garage or automobiles or other property therein, it being agreed that, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, the use of the Spaces shall be at the sole risk of Tenant and its employees.

(e) Landlord or its Operator shall have the right from time to time to designate the location of the Spaces and to promulgate
reasonable rules and regulations regarding the Garage, the Spaces and the use thereof, including, but not limited to, rules and regulations
controlling the flow of traffic to and from various parking areas, the angle and direction of parking and the like. Tenant shall comply with and
cause its employees to comply with all such rules and regulations and all reasonable additions and amendments thereto.
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(f)  Except for emergency repairs, Tenant and its employees shall not perform any work on any automobiles while located in the
Garage or on the Property.

(g) Landlord or the Operator shall have the right to temporarily close the Garage or certain areas therein in order to perform necessary
repairs, maintenance and improvements to the Garage; provided, however, that Tenant shall be entitled to receive an abatement in the parking
fee payable hereunder with respect to each Space that Tenant cannot use during any such period of closure of all or a portion of the Garage.

(h) Tenant shall not assign or sublease any of the Spaces (except to a transferee under an assignment of this Lease or a subletting of
the entire Premises under this Lease) without the consent of Landlord in Landlord’s sole discretion. Landlord shall have the right to terminate
Tenant’s parking rights with respect to any Spaces that Tenant desires to sublet or assign in violation of the foregoing.

(i) Landlord may elect to provide parking cards or keys to control access to the Garage. In such event, Landlord shall provide Tenant
with one card or key for each Space that Tenant is leasing hereunder, provided that Landlord shall have the right to require Tenant or its
employees to place a deposit on such access cards or keys and to pay a fee for any lost or damages cards or keys.

2. Extension Options. Tenant shall have one (1) option (the “First Extension Option”) to extend the initial Term for one (1) extension
term of five (5) years commencing at the expiration of the initial Term (the “First Extension Term”). Any extension of the Term for the First
Extension Term shall be applicable to the entire Premises (as the same may be expanded). If Tenant fails timely to exercise the First Extension
Option, Tenant shall have no further extension rights hereunder. If Tenant timely exercises the First Extension Option as provided below, the
Term shall be extended for the First Extension Term, and Tenant shall pay Base Rent for the Premises during the First Extension Term, in
accordance with the terms and conditions of Section 4.02 of the Lease, at a Base Rent rate equal to the Fair Market Rent Rate (as defined
below) for the Premises for the First Extension Term as determined in accordance with the provisions of this Section set forth below (the
“Extension Rent Rate”). Time is of the essence with respect to Tenant’s timely exercise of the First Extension Option as provided herein. Any
notice exercising the First Extension Option must be unconditional and irrevocable in order to be effective. Except as set forth herein, Tenant’s
lease of the Premises during the First Extension Term shall be on all of the terms and conditions in effect for the Premises immediately prior to
such extension. Additionally, Tenant shall have one (1) option (the “Second Extension Option,” and together with the First Extension Option,
as applicable, an “Extension Option”) to extend the First Extension Term for one (1) extension term of five (5) years commencing at the
expiration of the First Extension Term (the “Second Extension Term,” and together with the First Extension Term, as applicable, an “Extension
Term”). Any extension of the Term for the Second Extension Term shall be applicable to the entire Premises (as the same may be expanded).
If Tenant fails timely to exercise the Second Extension Option, Tenant shall have no further extension rights hereunder. If Tenant timely
exercises the Second Extension Option as provided below, the Term shall be extended for the Second Extension Term, and Tenant shall pay
Base Rent for the Premises during the Second Extension Term, in accordance with the terms and conditions of Section 4.02 of the Lease, at a
Base Rent rate equal to the Fair Market Rent Rate for the Premises for the Second Extension Term as determined in accordance with the
provisions of this Section set forth below. Time is of the essence with respect to Tenant’s timely exercise of the Second Extension Option as
provided herein. Any notice exercising the Second Extension Option must be unconditional and irrevocable in order to be effective. Except as
set forth herein, Tenant’s lease of the Premises during the Second Extension Term shall be on all of the terms and conditions in effect for the
Premises immediately prior to such extension, except that Tenant shall have no further option to extend the Term after the end of the Second
Extension Term.

The procedures for Tenant to exercise an Extension Option, and for the applicable Extension Rent Rate (as defined below) applicable to
the applicable Extension Term to be determined, are as follows:
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(a) Tenant’s Exercise Notice. If Tenant wishes to exercise the First Extension Option, Tenant shall so notify Landlord no more than
fifteen (15) months, and no less than twelve (12) months, prior to the date the initial Term is then scheduled to expire. If Tenant wishes to
exercise the Second Extension Option, Tenant shall so notify Landlord no more than fifteen (15) months, and no less than twelve (12) months,
prior to the date the First Extension Term is then scheduled to expire. Failure by Tenant timely to send a notice under this subparagraph (a)
shall constitute an irrevocable waiver of Tenant’s right to extend the Term.

(b) Landlord’s Response. If Tenant timely delivers a notice under subparagraph (a) above, Landlord shall furnish Tenant with
Landlord’s determination of the Base Rent rate equal to the Fair Market Rent Rate (as defined below) for the Premises for the applicable
Extension Term (once determined pursuant to the terms and provisions set forth below, the “Extension Rent Rate”) no later than thirty (30) days
following Landlord’s receipt of such notice. Within thirty (30) days after Landlord furnishes its estimate of the Extension Rent Rate to Tenant
under the preceding sentence, Tenant shall, by written notice delivered to Landlord, either (i) give Landlord notice accepting Landlord’s
determination of the Extension Rent Rate for the applicable Extension Term, or (ii) give Landlord notice disputing Landlord’s determination of
such applicable Extension Rent Rate, which notice under clause (ii) shall state Tenant’s determination of such applicable Extension Rent Rate.
Failure timely to give a notice disputing Landlord’s determination of such applicable Extension Rent Rate shall constitute an acceptance of
Landlord’s determination of such applicable Extension Rent Rate. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Tenant may request, but no earlier
than sixteen (16) months prior to the then scheduled expiration of the Term, that Landlord provide its determination of the Extension Rent Rate
prior to Tenant’s delivery of an exercise notice pursuant to subparagraph (a) above, and Landlord shall deliver such determination within thirty
(30) days following Landlord’s receipt of Tenant’s request therefor.

(c) Arbitration. If Tenant disputes Landlord’s determination of the applicable Extension Rent Rate under subparagraph (b)(ii) above,
the parties shall use good faith efforts to resolve such dispute for a period of thirty (30) days after such dispute notice is delivered. If, after such
thirty (30) day period, the dispute over such Extension Rent Rate is not resolved, then either party may cause the matter of the Fair Market Rent
Rate to be submitted to arbitration as set forth below, by giving notice of such submission to the other party. Each of Landlord and Tenant,
within twenty (20) days after notice of such submission to arbitration, shall appoint an independent, licensed, commercial real estate broker
with at least ten (10) years’ experience as a broker for first-class high-rise office buildings in downtown Boston, Massachusetts (a “Qualified
Broker”), and shall give notice of such appointment to the other party. If either Landlord or Tenant shall fail timely to appoint a Qualified
Broker, the other may apply to the Boston Office of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) for appointment of such a Qualified Broker
five (5) Business Days after notice of such failure to the delinquent party if such Qualified Broker has not then been appointed. Within thirty
(30) days after appointment of the second Qualified Broker, the two Qualified Brokers shall each determine the Fair Market Rent Rate and
furnish a written statement thereof to Landlord and Tenant. Unless the higher of the determinations of the Fair Market Rent Rate made by a
Qualified Broker is more than one hundred ten percent (110%) of the lower, the average of the two such determinations shall be binding on
Landlord and Tenant. In the event that (i) the higher of the two such determinations is more than one hundred ten percent (110%) of the lower,
and (ii) Landlord and Tenant are unable to agree on the Fair Market Rent Rate within thirty (30) days after the parties’ receipt of the Qualified
Brokers’ written statements, then the Qualified Brokers shall together promptly appoint a third such licensed, and experienced commercial real
estate broker, from a firm unaffiliated with Landlord or Tenant or either of the firms with which the Qualified Brokers are associated (the
“Third Broker), which Third Broker shall determine the Fair Market Rent Rate and furnish a written statement thereof to Landlord and Tenant.
In the event that the Qualified Brokers cannot promptly agree on the appointment of the Third Broker, then the Third Broker shall be appointed
by the Boston office of the AAA. Unless the determination of the Third Broker, as aforesaid, is less than the lower or more than the higher
determination of the
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Qualified Brokers, such determination of the Third Broker shall be binding on Landlord and Tenant. In the event that the determination of the
Third Broker, as aforesaid, is the lowest of the three such determinations, then the lower of the determinations of the Qualified Brokers shall be
binding on Landlord and Tenant. Conversely, if the determination of the Third Broker, as aforesaid, is the highest of the three such
determinations, then the higher of the determinations of the Qualified Brokers shall be binding on Landlord and Tenant. Any and all fees and
expenses incurred in making the aforesaid determinations shall be paid to the Qualified Broker chosen by Tenant exclusively by Tenant, to the
Qualified Broker chosen by Landlord exclusively by Landlord, and to the Third Broker and the AAA in equal proportion by Landlord and
Tenant. If the AAA shall cease to provide arbitration for commercial disputes in Boston, a Qualified Broker or Third Broker, as the case may
be, shall be appointed by any successor organization providing substantially the same services, and in the absence of such an organization, by a
court of competent jurisdiction under the arbitration act of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts. For any period during which the applicable
Extension Rent Rate is in dispute hereunder, Tenant shall make payment on account of the applicable Extension Rent Rate at the rate estimated
by Landlord as such Extension Rent Rate, and the parties shall adjust for overpayments or underpayments within thirty (30) days after the
decision of the arbitrators is announced.

(d) Fair Market Rent Rate. The “Fair Market Rent Rate” for the Extension Term in question shall mean the annual fair market rent
per square foot for the Premises for a term coterminous with the applicable Extension Term under the terms of this Lease, as though the
Premises were in the condition then existing or in such better condition as such space is required to be maintained hereunder. In making such
determination, reference shall be made to lease transactions for comparable office space in the Building and comparable first-class high-rise
buildings in downtown Boston, and appropriate adjustments to the rent rates in such comparable transactions shall be made for any relevant
factors, including, without limitation, the timing of the transaction, the location and condition of the space, the quality of the Building, and any
free rent, tenant improvements or other tenant concessions (or the lack thereof). Without limiting the generality of the foregoing adjustments, if
the rent rate in a comparable transaction was determined based on a percentage discount to fair market rent, then the amount of such discount
shall be disregarded (i.e., added back into the rental rate) for purposes of determining the Fair Market Rent Rate hereunder. The Fair Market
Rent Rate shall be determined using a new Base Year for charges for Expense Excess and Tax Excess in respect of the applicable Extension
Term, based on the calendar year in which such Extension Term commences, which new Base Year shall apply to the Premises during such
Extension Term.

(e) Confirmatory Instrument. If Tenant shall exercise an Extension Option in accordance with this Section, the provisions of this
Section shall be self-operative, but upon request by either party after determination of the Extension Rent Rate for the applicable Extension
Term, the parties shall execute an agreement specifying the Extension Rent Rate for the applicable Extension Term and acknowledging the
extension of the Term.

(f) General. Notwithstanding any provision of this Section to the contrary, the Extension Options shall be void, at Landlord’s
election, if (i) Tenant is in default hereunder, after any applicable notice and cure periods have expired, at the time Tenant elects to extend the
Term or at the time the Term would expire but for such extension, or (ii) at the time of Tenant’s exercise of the Extension Option more than
fifty percent (50%) of the Premises is subleased (other than pursuant to a Permitted Transfer), or an assignment of the Lease (other than in
connection with a Permitted Transfer) is then in full force and effect.

3. Right of First Offer. As used herein, the “First Offer Space” shall mean any of the following spaces or any part thereof that

Landlord from time to time during the initial Term determines is available for lease to a third party in accordance with and subject to the
provisions of this Section 3: Any space on any floor immediately above the highest floor of the Premises, any space on any floor immediately
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below the lowest floor of the Premises, and any space on any floor on which the Premises occupy only a portion of such floor.

() Landlord’s ROFO Notice. Subject to the Superior Rights (as defined below), before hereafter entering into a lease for all or any
part of the First Offer Space with a third party (other than the then existing tenant of such space), Landlord shall give Tenant a notice (each, a
“Landlord’s ROFO Notice”) specifying (i) the location and Rentable Floor Area of the part of the First Offer Space designated by Landlord for
offer to Tenant hereunder (each, an “Offered Space”) and (ii) the terms on which Landlord would be willing to lease such Offered Space to
Tenant in accordance with the terms of this Section 3, provided that Rent in respect of the Offered Space shall be at the Fair Market Rent Rate,
as reasonably determined by Landlord, taking into account all relevant factors. The term for the Offered Space shall be coterminous with the
Term of this Lease (as the same may be extended pursuant to this Lease). Landlord reserves the right to offer all or part of the First Offer Space
in such size and configuration for the applicable Offered Space specified in any Landlord’s ROFO Notice hereunder as Landlord determines in
its sole discretion.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section 3 to the contrary, Tenant’s rights of first offer hereunder with respect to any applicable First Offer
Space shall be subject and subordinate to the “Superior Rights”, which shall include and refer to Landlord’s right from time to time to lease all
or part of the applicable First Offer Space to (i) any tenant with existing rights to such First Offer Space as of the Effective Date, which tenants
are Analog, SunTrust, FirstPro, and Novetta, (ii) after such time as Tenant has rejected (or is deemed to have rejected) a Landlord’s ROFO
Notice for an Offered Space hereunder, any tenant that is granted rights for all or part of such Offered Space in the initial lease for such space
entered into by Landlord in accordance with the provisions of this Section 3, (iii) any tenant that is granted rights for all or part of the currently
vacant First Offer Space in the initial leases entered into by Landlord pursuant to the initial lease up, and (iv) any then existing tenant of the
First Offer Space (it being understood and agreed that Landlord shall have the right to extend or renew any then current lease (or enter into a
new lease) with any then existing tenant even if no extension or renewal rights are contained in said then current lease).

(b) Tenant’s Response. Within ten (10) Business Days after receipt of Landlord's ROFO Notice, Tenant shall, by written notice
delivered to Landlord, either (a) reject Landlord's ROFO Notice, or (b) reject Landlord's ROFO Notice but unconditionally and irrevocably
offer to lease the Offered Space from Landlord for its own use at a Base Rent rate proposed in Tenant’s response and otherwise on the terms set
forth in Landlord’s ROFO Notice, or (c) unconditionally and irrevocably accept Landlord’s offer to lease the Offered Space from Landlord for
its own use on the terms set forth in Landlord's ROFO Notice. The failure by Tenant to timely respond as aforesaid shall be deemed Tenant's
rejection of Landlord's ROFO Notice for the Offered Space under clause (a).

If Landlord's ROFO Notice is rejected under clause (a) above (or deemed rejected by Tenant's failure to timely respond), then Landlord may
enter into any lease for all or part of the Offered Space on such terms and conditions (including without limitation extension or expansion rights
with respect to the Offered Space or any portion thereof) as Landlord determines in its sole discretion.

If Tenant timely offers to lease the Offered Space on alternative terms as set forth in clause (b) above, then Landlord may, by written
notice delivered within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof, accept or decline such offer (the failure to so respond being deemed Landlord's
election to decline Tenant's offer). If such offer under clause (b) is declined (or deemed declined), then, for a period of one (1) year after
Landlord's receipt of Tenant's offer (the “Leasing Period”), Landlord may enter into any lease for all or part of the Offered Space (which may
be enlarged to include other space by up to twenty five percent of the rentable square feet without requiring any re-offer hereunder) at an
effective rent (after taking into
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account any tenant improvement allowance) greater than ninety percent of the effective rent under Tenant's offer. If, during such Leasing
Period, Landlord desires to enter into a third-party lease for all of part of such Offered Space at an effective rent less than or equal to ninety
percent of the effective rent under Tenant's offer, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a new Landlord's ROFO Notice for such space. If and to the
extent that Landlord does not enter into any lease for all or part of the Offered Space within such Leasing Period, Landlord shall re-commence
the process under this Section before entering into a lease for such space.

(c) End of Term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to any First Offer Space with a delivery date that would occur within
the last three (3) years of the initial Term (a “Late Term ROFO Space”), any right of Tenant to lease such Late Term ROFO Space under this
Section shall apply if and only if, Tenant has timely and validly exercised, or has the right to exercise its First Extension Option pursuant to
Section 2 of this Exhibit F, and simultaneously with the acceptance (if any) of the applicable offer to lease such Late Term ROFO Space in
accordance with this Section, Tenant shall irrevocably and unconditionally agree to exercise Tenant’s First Extension Option, in which event the
Term shall be extended in accordance with the terms of such Extension Option, provided that the Fair Market Base Rent for the Premises
thereunder shall be determined at the time provided under such Extension Option, notwithstanding the timing of Tenant’s agreement under this
sentence to exercise such Extension Option. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, if Tenant does not timely exercise its First Extension
Option, Landlord shall have no obligation to deliver a Landlord’s ROFO Notice as of the expiration of the First Extension Option.

(d) Confirmatory Instrument. If the applicable offer to lease an Offered Space is accepted as provided under this Section above, the
Offered Space shall, subject to the provisions set forth below and without further action by the parties, be leased by Tenant on the accepted
terms and otherwise on all of the terms of the Lease in effect immediately prior to such expansion, provided that, at the request of either party,
Landlord and Tenant shall promptly execute and deliver an agreement confirming such expansion of the Premises and the estimated date the
Premises are to be expanded pursuant to this Section with a provision for establishing the effective date of such expansion based on actual
delivery. Landlord’s failure to deliver, or delay in delivering, all or any part of such leased Offered Space, for any reason, shall not give rise to
any liability of Landlord, shall not alter Tenant’s obligation to accept such space when delivered, shall not constitute a default of Landlord, and
shall not affect the validity of the Lease.

(e) General. Notwithstanding any provision of this Section to the contrary, Tenant’s rights under this Section shall be void, at
Landlord’s election, if (i) Tenant is in default hereunder, after any applicable notice and cure periods have expired, at the time Landlord would
otherwise give a Landlord’s ROFO Notice to Tenant hereunder or at the time Tenant makes any election with respect to the First Offer Space
under this Section or at the time the First Offer Space would be added to the Premises, or (ii) any Transfer has occurred under Section 11 of the
Lease (other than a Permitted Transfer).

4. Hazardous Materials.

(a) Hazardous Materials. As used herein, the term “Hazardous Materials” shall mean any wastes, materials or substances (whether in
the form of liquids, solids, aerosols or gases, and whether or not air-borne), specifically including live organisms, viruses and fungi, medical
waste and so-called “bio-hazard” materials, which are or are deemed to be (i) pollutants or contaminants, or which are or are deemed to be
hazardous, toxic, ignitable, reactive, corrosive, infectious, dangerous, harmful or injurious, or which present a risk to public health or to the
environment, or which are or may become regulated by or under the authority of any applicable local, state (including, without limitation,
Chapter 21E of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) or federal laws, judgments, ordinances, orders, rules, regulations,
codes or other governmental restrictions, guidelines or requirements, any amendments or successor(s)
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thereto, replacements thereof or publications promulgated pursuant thereto, including, without limitation, any such items or substances which
are or may become regulated by any of the Environmental, Health and Safety Laws (as hereinafter defined); (ii) listed as a chemical known to
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity; or (iii) a pesticide, petroleum, including crude oil or any fraction
thereof, asbestos or an asbestos-containing material, a polychlorinated biphenyl, radioactive material, urea formaldehyde, biohazard material,
mold, fungus, virus, living organisms or other medical waste.

(b)  Environmental, Health and Safety Laws. In addition to the laws referred to in Section 4(a) above, the term “Environmental,
Health and Safety Laws” shall be deemed to include, without limitation, 33 U.S.C. Section 1251 et seq., 42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq., 42
U.S.C. Section 7401 et seq., 42 U.S.C. Section 9601 et seq., the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act (EPCRTKA) 42
U.S.C. § 11001-11050 and all local, state and federal laws, judgments, ordinances, orders, rules, regulations, codes and other governmental
restrictions, guidelines and requirements, any amendments and successors thereto, replacements thereof and publications promulgated pursuant
thereto, which deal with or otherwise in any manner relate to, Hazardous Materials, air or water quality, air emissions, soil or ground
conditions, environmental, health and safety, including, but not limited to, industrial hygiene, soil, water, or environmental conditions or other
environmental, health and safety matters of any kind. In addition to the foregoing, Tenant shall comply with all terms, conditions and guidelines
contained in all licenses, permits and approvals applicable to Tenant’s laboratory uses and agrees to further acknowledge such agreement to so
comply in writing upon request of Landlord.

(c) Use of Hazardous Materials; Licenses; Audit Reports. Tenant agrees that during the Term of this Lease, there shall be no use,
presence, disposal, storage, generation, leakage, treatment, manufacture, import, handling, processing, release, or threatened release of
Hazardous Materials on, from or under the Premises, the Building or the Property (individually and collectively, “Hazardous Use”) except for
Hazardous Materials which are typically used in the operation of offices or laboratories (including in connection with the Back-Up Power And
Supplemental Components referenced in Exhibit F), provided that such Hazardous Materials are stored, used and disposed of in strict
compliance with all applicable Environmental, Health and Safety Laws and with all BSL-2 requirements and protocol. Tenant represents and
warrants that the list attached hereto as Schedule F-1 is a list of substantially all Hazardous Materials expected to be used and stored by Tenant
in the Premises as of the Term Commencement Date.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, under no circumstances shall Tenant use or permit to exist in the Premises, or obtain any license,
permit, registration or consent from any local, federal or state governmental agency, authority, commission, board or the like (each, a
“Governmental Authority”) permitting Tenant to use or store in the Premises, any of the Hazardous Materials or classes thereof listed and/or
identified on Schedule F-2 attached hereto.

Within five (5) business days following Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s written request therefor, Tenant shall promptly provide Landlord
with copies of any and all licenses, permits, registrations or consents relating to the use, storage or disposal of Hazardous Materials that are
obtained, modified or renewed during the Term. In addition, Tenant shall not permit the imposition of any lien by Governmental Authority or
other party to secure payment for damages caused by, or the recovery of any costs or expenses for, the cleanup, remediation, investigation,
transportation, disposal, release or threatened release of any Hazardous Material. Tenant also shall provide Landlord with prompt written notice
in reasonable detail of (i) any release or threatened release at, on, under or from the Premises, Building or Property of which Tenant becomes
aware which would reasonably be expected to exceed reportable quantities or give rise to a violation of any Environmental, Health and Safety
Laws, or which could result in a legal obligation to investigate or remediate Hazardous Materials pursuant to, Environmental, Health and Safety
Laws or any provisions of this Lease; (ii) any notice received by Tenant, or of which Tenant has knowledge, from any
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Governmental Authority in connection with any such release or any violation of Environmental, Health and Safety Laws, or in connection with
the presence or alleged presence of any Hazardous Materials at the Premises, Building or Property; or (iii) any incurrence of expense by any
Governmental Authority or other party in connection with the assessment, containment, disposal or removal of any Hazardous Materials
located at, on, in, or under, or emanating from the Premises.

Within five (5) days following Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s written request from time to time given no more than once in any Lease
Year, Tenant shall provide Landlord with an updated list of all Hazardous Materials, including quantifies used and such other information as
Landlord may reasonably request, used or stored by Tenant in the Premises or otherwise on the Property. In the event Tenant fails to handle,
store or dispose of Hazardous Materials in the Premises or otherwise on the Property in compliance with all applicable Environmental, Health
and Safety Laws and all BSL-2 requirements and protocols, Tenant shall not handle, store or dispose of such Hazardous Materials in the
Premises or on the Property until Tenant complies with all Environmental, Health and Safety Laws and BSL-2 requirements and protocols
applicable to the handling, storage, or disposal of such Hazardous Materials. For the purposes of this Section 4(c), the term Hazardous Use shall
include Hazardous Use(s) on, from or under the Premises by Tenant or any of its directors, officers, employees, shareholders, partners,
licensees, invitees, agents, contractors or occupants (collectively, “Tenant’s Parties”), whether known or unknown to Tenant, and whether
occurring and/or existing during or prior to the commencement of the Term of this Lease.

(d) Compliance. During the Term of this Lease, Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall comply with, and shall not be in violation
of, any Environmental, Health and Safety Laws.

(e) Inspection and Testing by Landlord. If Landlord has reason to believe that Tenant has violated the provisions of this Section 4 or
other provisions of this Lease governing Hazardous Materials, Landlord shall have the right to (i) inspect the Premises and to (ii) conduct tests
and investigations to confirm whether Tenant is in compliance with the provisions of this Section. Except in case of emergency, Landlord shall
give reasonable notice to Tenant before conducting any inspections, tests, or investigations. The cost of all such inspections, tests and
investigations shall be borne by Tenant if Tenant is in breach of Section 4 or other provisions of the Lease governing Hazardous Materials.
Neither any action nor inaction on the part of Landlord pursuant to this 4(e) shall be deemed in any way to release Tenant from, or in any way
modify or alter, Tenant’s responsibilities, obligations, and/or liabilities incurred pursuant to Section 4 hereof.

(f) Decommissioning. On or before the date that Tenant, and anyone claiming by, through or under Tenant, vacates the Premises, and
immediately prior to the time that Tenant delivers the Premises to Landlord, Tenant shall, to the reasonable satisfaction of Landlord:

(i) cause the Premises to be decommissioned in accordance with the regulations of the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission and/or the Massachusetts Department of Public Health for the control of radiation, cause the Premises to be released for
unrestricted use by the Radiation Control Program of the Massachusetts Department of Public Health for the control of radiation, and
deliver to Landlord the report of a qualified radiation health physicist or radiation safety officer confirming, in substance, that he or she
has examined the Premises (including visual inspection, Geiger counter evaluation and airborne and surface monitoring) and found no
evidence of residual radioactive materials, radiation above natural background levels, or violation of any Environmental Health and
Safety Laws; and deliver to Landlord the report of a certified industrial hygienist confirming, in substance, that he or she has examined
the Premises (including visual inspection, onsite screening and laboratory analysis and found no evidence that the Premises contains
any Hazardous Materials, no building materials or components have been adversely impacted by Hazardous Materials, or is otherwise
in violation of any Environmental Health and
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Safety Laws;
(ii) intentionally deleted;

(iii) decommission all laboratory space in and about the Premises, including without limitation, to the extent required
to deliver a complete Laboratory Decommissioning Checklist, and otherwise in accordance with applicable Laws and best practices for
similarly used laboratory space, and to the satisfaction of Landlord and any Governmental Authority involved in the closure;

(iv) terminate all licenses, permits, registrations and consents obtained by Tenant for the use or storage of Hazardous
Materials or radioactive materials at the Premises or transfer such licenses, permits, registrations and consents for Tenant’s activities at
another location;

(v) remove from the Premises and dispose of all universal waste, Hazardous Materials, and radioactive materials
stored in the Premises in compliance with applicable Laws (including, without limitation, all Environmental, Health and Safety Laws);

(vi) decontaminate all surfaces and fixed equipment in the Premises;

(vii) review and remediate and properly dispose of any specific Hazardous or Radioactive Materials that may be
associated with any laboratory fixtures used by Tenant in the Premises; and

(viii) provide to Landlord a copy of its most current universal, chemical, radiological and biological waste removal
manifests and or bills of lading and a certification from Tenant executed by an officer of Tenant that no Hazardous Materials or other
potentially dangerous or harmful chemicals brought onto the Premises from and after the date that Tenant first took occupancy of the
Premises remain in the Premises.

(g) Tenant shall indemnify, hold harmless, and, at Landlord’s option (with such attorneys as Landlord may approve in advance and in
writing), defend Landlord and Landlord’s officers, directors, shareholders, partners, members, managers, employees, contractors, property
managers, agents and mortgagees and other lien holders, from and against any and all Losses (including without limitation, any costs of
cleanup, remediation, removal and restoration) arising from or related to: (a) any violation or alleged violation by Tenant or any of Tenant’s
Parties of any of the requirements, ordinances, statutes, regulations or other laws referred to in this Section 4, including, without limitation, the
Environmental, Health and Safety Laws; (b) any breach of the provisions of this Section 4 by Tenant or any of Tenant’s Parties; or (c) any
Hazardous Use on, about or from the Premises of any Hazardous Material approved by Landlord under this Lease (including in connection with
the Back-Up Power And Supplemental Components). The indemnification of Landlord by Tenant includes, without limitation, reasonable costs
incurred in connection with any investigation of site conditions or any cleanup, remedial, removal or restoration work required by any federal,
state or local governmental agency or political subdivision because of Hazardous Material present in the Building, soil or ground water, on or
under the Premises based upon the circumstances identified in the first sentence of this subsection (g). The indemnification and hold harmless
obligations of Tenant under this subsection (g) shall survive any termination of this Lease.

5. Dedicated Venting System. During the Term, Tenant shall have the exclusive right to use the venting system to be installed as part of the
Initial Tenant Work to exclusively serve the Premises, along with all related facilities, including, without limitation, any ducts flues, or chases
installed to provide access to space outside of the Premises for the operation, maintenance, and repair of such venting system
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(collectively the “Dedicated Venting System”) and the non-exclusive right to access those portions of the Building and the Property (including,
without limitation, the roof of the Building), to the extent necessary for the operation, maintenance, and repair of the Dedicated Venting
System. Tenant acknowledges and agrees that access to any portion of the Dedicated Venting System located outside of the Premises shall be
subject to coordination with the Landlord for such access. Tenant shall at all times comply with any and permits and approvals issues by
applicable governmental authorities with respect to the use of the Dedicated Venting System. Tenant’s use of the Dedicated Venting System
shall not at any time: (i) affect the waterproofing of the roof; or (ii) cause any interference with (w) the Building’s operating or mechanical
systems, (x) the operations of any tenant in the Building, including any tenant’s roof deck use by reason of the emission of noxious vapors or
odors (it being understood that emissions from the Dedicated Venting System shall be colorless and odorless so as to avoid such interruption
and shall be in compliance with all Laws related to such emissions), (y) any telecommunications equipment in or on the Building (A) of any
telecommunications service provider which makes its services available generally to the tenants of the Building or (B) serving a larger portion
of the Building than the Premises. Tenant shall also cooperate with any rooftop management policy which Landlord may implement for the
Building, provided that such policy does not materially decrease Tenant’s rights or materially increase Tenant’s obligations under this Lease.
Tenant shall not be charged any Additional Rent as a result of the installation of the Dedicated Venting System, unless Tenant damages any
portion of the Building or the roof in connection with its operation, maintenance, or repair of such Dedicated Venting System. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in Section 8.03 of the Lease, in the event Landlord elects to remove the Dedicated Venting System and
completes the removal of the Dedicated Venting System within ninety (90) days following the end of the Term, Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord for its actual, documented, out-of-pocket costs of such removal within thirty (30) days following Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s
invoice therefor, accompanied by reasonably detailed documentation supporting such costs, given delivered within fifteen (15) days following
the completion of such removal; provided, however, that Landlord shall have delivered Tenant an estimate of such costs of removal no later
than five (5) Business Days prior to the commencement of such removal. Landlord shall have the right to retain the Letter of Credit until
Landlord’s receipt of Tenant’s reimbursement of such removal costs; provided that Tenant shall have the right to deposit with Landlord a cash
security deposit for the cost of such removal in lieu of the Letter of Credit, in which event Landlord will return the Letter of Credit to Tenant
promptly after its receipt of such a cash security deposit.

6. Generator. Tenant shall have the right to install, at Tenant’s sole cost, a back-up generator on the roof of the Building, a booster in the
designated therefor by Landlord, subject to Landlord’s prior written approval of Tenant’s plans and specifications therefor, which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Tenant shall also have the non-exclusive right to access those portions of the Building
and the Property (including, without limitation, the roof of the Building), to the extent necessary for the installation, operation, maintenance,
and repair of the Back-Up Power And Supplemental Components. Landlord shall have no obligations to Tenant with respect to the installation,
operation, repair, maintenance or replacement of the Back-Up Power And Supplemental Components. Tenant shall be responsible, at Tenant's
sole cost and expense, for maintaining, testing, refueling and cleaning the Back-Up Power And Supplemental Components, all in compliance
with applicable Laws. Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense, enter into a regularly scheduled preventive maintenance/service contract with a
maintenance contractor approved by Landlord for servicing the Back-Up Power And Supplemental Components (and a copy thereof shall be
furnished to Landlord). The service contract must include all services suggested by the equipment manufacturers in the operation/maintenance
manual or required by applicable government laws, ordinances, rules and regulations. Landlord may, upon notice to Tenant, enter into such a
maintenance/service contract on behalf of Tenant or perform the work and, in either case, charge Tenant the cost thereof along with a
reasonable amount for Landlord's overhead.
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Tenant acknowledges and agrees that access to any portion of the Back-Up Power and Supplemental Components located outside of the
Premises shall be subject to coordination with the Landlord for such access. Tenant shall at all times comply with any and permits and
approvals issues by applicable governmental authorities with respect to the use of the Back-Up Power and Supplemental Components. Tenant’s
use of the Back-Up Power and Supplemental Components shall not at any time: (i) affect the waterproofing of the roof; or (ii) cause any
interference with (w) the Building’s operating or mechanical systems, (x) the operations of any tenant in the Building, including any tenant’s
roof deck use, (y) any telecommunications equipment in or on the Building (A) of any telecommunications service provider which makes its
services available generally to the tenants of the Building or (B) serving a larger portion of the Building than the Premises. Tenant shall also
cooperate with any rooftop management policy which Landlord may implement for the Building, provided that such policy does not materially
decrease Tenant’s rights or materially increase Tenant’s obligations under this Lease. Tenant shall not be charged any Additional Rent as a
result of the installation of the Back-Up Power and Supplemental Components, unless Tenant damages any portion of the Building or the roof
in connection with its installation, operation, maintenance, or repair of such Back-Up Power and Supplemental Components. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained in Section 8.03 of the Lease, in the event Landlord elects to remove the Back-Up Power and Supplemental
Components and completes the removal of the Back-Up Power and Supplemental Components within ninety (90) days following the end of the
Term, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for its actual, documented, out-of-pocket costs of such removal within thirty (30) days following
Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s invoice therefor, accompanied by reasonably detailed documentation supporting such costs, given delivered
within fifteen (15) days following the completion of such removal; provided, however, that Landlord shall have delivered Tenant an estimate of
such costs of removal no later than five (5) Business Days prior to the commencement of such removal. Landlord shall have the right to retain
the Letter of Credit until Landlord’s receipt of Tenant’s reimbursement of such removal costs; provided that Tenant shall have the right to
deposit with Landlord a cash security deposit for the cost of such removal in lieu of the Letter of Credit, in which event Landlord will return the
Letter of Credit to Tenant promptly after its receipt of such a cash security deposit.

7. Negative Condition. In light of the fact that the Premises are in a multi-tenant Building, Tenant shall not perform any act or carry on
any practice or operate any machinery or equipment (including, but without limitation, the use of grinders) which would be in violation of the
provisions of Article 5 of the Lease and Sections 5 and 6 of this Exhibit F (a “Negative Condition”). Upon Landlord’s written notice to Tenant
that such a Negative Condition exists, Tenant shall thereafter promptly undertake actions to remedy such Negative Condition (which actions
may include the installation, operation, maintenance and inspection of odor, noise, vibration, water and/or smoke control devices, and the
establishment of effective control procedures to eliminate such odors, noise, vibration, smoke, water or other objectionable emissions) within
five (5) days following receipt of such notice, or such longer period of time as is reasonably necessary to remedy such Negative Condition so
long as Tenant promptly undertakes to remedy any such condition and diligently and continuously pursues such remedy to completion within
thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice from Landlord. Tenant shall cease the activity causing the Negative Condition upon receipt of
Landlord’s notice until the Negative Condition has been remedied. The means Tenant uses to prevent such migration may include but not be
limited to: (i) operating the HVAC systems, including any special exhaust systems, under negative pressure, (ii) sealing all openings in the
demising walls, (iii) providing continuous waterproof base (per Landlord’s criteria) along the demising walls in the showers (if any), kitchen
and laboratory areas in the Premises, and (iv) placing machines or equipment in settings of cork, rubber or spring type noise and vibration
eliminators. If any such Negative Condition is not so remedied, Landlord may, at its discretion either: (i) cure such Negative Condition, and
Tenant shall then pay, as additional rent hereunder, the cost and expense incurred by Landlord to effect such cure within thirty (30) days
following Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s written demand therefor, or (ii) treat Tenant’s failure to remedy such Negative Condition as a Default,
entitling Landlord to any of its remedies pursuant to the terms of this Lease.
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Schedule F-1

INITTIAL LIST OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND QUANTITIES

Hlaicons Chamiesl Actual Planned Storage MAQ with Approved Storage for Entire Floor (100% of CA)
Classification Quantity Approved Storage Open Use
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Chemical Name Classification Conversion Quantity Unit

[k] [**%] [5%] [#5%]
k] [**%] [#%] [##%]
%] [**%] [5%] [##%]
[k] [**%*] [5%] [##%]
%] [**%] [5%] [##%]
%] [***] [5%] [#%%]
[*] [**%] [5%] [#5%]
] [**%] [%] [5%]
[***] [] [o] []
[***] [] [] []
[***] [F] [] []
[***] [F] [] []
[***] [***] [***] [***]
[***] [***] [***] [***]
[k] [**%*] [5%] [#5%]
[] [*¥*%*] [5%] [#%]
[k] [**+*] [##%] [##%]
%] [**%*] [#5%] [##%]
%] [**%] [5%] [#5%]
%] [*¥*%] [#5%] [##%]
%] [**%] [5%] [##%]
] [**%] [5%] [#5%]
[***] [] [] []
[***] [] [o] []
[***] [F] [] []
[***] [F] [] []
[***] [F] [] []
[***] [***] [***] [***]
[***] [***] [***] [***]
[] [*¥*%*] [%] [##%]
[k] [**%*] [5%] [##%]
k] [**%] [#5%] [##%]
%] [**%] [5%] [#5%]
%] [**%] [5%] [##%]
%] [**%] [5%] [##%]
] [**%] [5%] [#5%]
] [**%] [5%] [#5%]
[***] [] [o] []
[***] [F] [] []
[***] [] [] []
[***] [F] [o] []
[***] [F] [] []
[***] [***] [***] [***]
[***] [***] [***] [***]
[k] [*¥*%*] [%] [##%]
[k] [**%*] [5%] [#5%]
%] [**%] [5%] [#5%]
%] [*¥*%] [#5%] [##%]
k] [**%] [#5%] [##%]
%] [*¥**] [5%] [##%]
%] [***] [5%] [#5%]
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Schedule F-2

PROHIBITED HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

1) Selected biological agents and toxins (Select Agents) as defined by the Federal Select Agent Program
(http://www.selectagents.gov/) which have the potential to pose a severe threat to public, animal or plant health or to animal or plant products
and require registration to possess, use or transfer. Select Agents are regulated under 7 CFR Part 331, 9 CFR Part 121 and 42 CFR Part 73, and
may also be regulated by the City of Boston.

2) Chemicals that present a high level of security risk under the April 2007 Department of Homeland Security — Chemical Facilities
Anti-Terrorism Standards (CFATS) regulation (http://www.dhs.gov/identifying-facilities-covered-chemical-security-regulation), that are at or
above the applicable Screening Threshold Quantity.

3) The following chemicals:

Picric Acid

Pyrophoric Material: As defined in 780 CMR as a chemical with an auto ignition temperature in air, at or below a temperature of
130°F (54.4°C).

Oxidizer Class 3: As defined in 780 CMR as an oxidizer that will cause a severe increase in the burning rate of combustible materials
with which the oxidizer comes in contact or that will undergo vigorous self-sustained decomposition due to contamination or exposure
to heat.

Toxic Gas: As defined in 527 CMR as a gas that has a median lethal concentration (LC50) in air of more than 200 parts per million,
but not more than 2,000 parts per million by volume of gas or vapor, or 2 milligrams per liter but no more than 20 milligrams per liter
of mist, fume, or dust, when administered by continuous inhalation for 1 hour (or less if death occurs within 1 hour) to albino rats
weighing between 0.44 1b and 0.66 1b (200 and 300 grams) each.

Corrosive Gas: As defined in 527 CMR as a gas that causes visible destruction of or irreversible alterations in living tissue by
chemical action at the site of contact.

4) Radioactive Materials and Devices: as regulated in 105 CMR 120 Radiation Control Program.

5) Explosive Materials: as defined in 18 USC 841(c) of the Federal explosives statutes in United States Code, CHAPTER 40 -
IMPORTATION, MANUFACTURE, DISTRIBUTION AND STORAGE OF EXPLOSIVE MATERIALS.

6) Oxidizer Class 4: As defined in 780 CMR as an oxidizer that can undergo an explosive reaction due to contamination or exposure to
thermal or physical shock. Additionally, the oxidizer will enhance the burning rate and is capable of causing spontaneous ignition of
combustibles.

7) Organic Peroxides: As defined in 780 CMR.
Unclassified detonable: Organic peroxides which are capable of detonation. These peroxides present an extremely high
explosion hazard through rapid explosive decomposition.
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Class I: Class I organic peroxides are capable of deflagration, but not detonation. These peroxides present a high explosion
hazard through rapid decomposition.

8) Unstable (reactive) materials: As defined in 780 CMR.

Class 4: Materials that in themselves are readily capable of detonation or explosive decomposition or explosive reaction at
normal temperatures and pressures. This class includes, among others, materials that are sensitive to localized thermal or
mechanical shock at normal temperatures and pressures.

Class 3: Materials that in themselves are capable of detonation or explosive decomposition or explosive reaction, but that

require a strong initiating source or that must be heated under confinement before initiation. This class includes, among others,
materials that are sensitive to thermal or mechanical shock at elevated temperatures and pressures.

9) Water-reactive materials: As defined in 780 CMR.
Class 3: Materials which react explosively with water without requiring heat or confinement.

10) Cryogenic liquids (flammable or oxidizing): As defined in 780 CMR as any liquid that has a boiling point below -200°F (-129°C).

11) Highly Toxic Gas: As defined in 527 CMR as a chemical that has a median lethal concentration (LC50) in air of 200 parts per
million by volume or less of gas or vapor, or 2 milligrams per liter or less of mist, fume, or dust, when administered by continuous inhalation
for 1 hour (or less if death occurs within 1 hour) to albino rats weighing between 0.44 1b and 0.66 1b (200 and 300 grams) each.

12) Unstable (reactive) gas: As defined in 527 CMR as a gas that, in the pure state or as commercially produced, will vigorously
polymerize, decompose, or condense; become self-reactive; or otherwise undergo a violent chemical reaction under condition of shock,
pressure, or temperature.

13) Pyrophoric gas: As defined in 527 CFR as a gas with an auto ignition temperature in air, at or below a temperature of 130°F

(54.4°C).
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EXHIBIT G
LETTER OF CREDIT REQUIREMENTS

This Exhibit is attached to and made a part of the Office Lease Agreement (the “Lease”) by and between OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER
(DE) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”), and HAEMONETICS CORPORATION, a Massachusetts corporation
(“Tenant™), for space in the Building located at 125 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02110. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall
have the meanings given in the Lease.

1. The Letter of Credit (as defined in the Lease) shall be for the amount set forth in Section 1 of the Lease,
subject to the terms of Section 6 of the Lease. The Letter of Credit (i) shall be irrevocable and shall be issued by a commercial
bank that has a financial condition reasonably acceptable to Landlord and has an office in Boston, Massachusetts or New York
City that accepts requests for draws on the Letter of Credit, (ii) shall require only the presentation to the issuer of a certificate
of the holder of the Letter of Credit stating that Landlord is entitled to draw on the Letter of Credit pursuant to the terms of the
Lease, (iii) shall be payable to Landlord or its successors in interest as the Landlord and shall be freely transferable without
cost to any such successor, (iv) shall be for an initial term of not less than one year and contain a provision that such term shall
be automatically renewed for successive one-year periods unless the issuer shall, at least forty five (45) days prior to the
scheduled expiration date, give Landlord notice of such nonrenewal, and (v) shall otherwise be in form and substance
reasonably acceptable to Landlord. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term of the Letter of Credit for the final period shall be
for a term ending not earlier than the date forty five (45) days after the last day of the Term. If at any time (a) the issuer is either
(1) closed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“EDIC”) or any other governmental authority, or (2) declared
insolvent by the FDIC for any reason, or (b) any major ratings agency downgrades the credit of the Letter of Credit issuer by
more than two grades, or in any case, below investment grade, Tenant shall, within ten (10) Business Days after receipt of
written notice thereof from Landlord, provide Landlord a replacement Letter of Credit satisfying all of the terms of this
section. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Exhibit G or in the Lease, Landlord hereby confirms that the
form of letter of credit attached hereto as Schedule G is acceptable to Landlord.

2. Landlord shall be entitled to draw upon the Letter of Credit for its full amount or any portion thereof if
(a) Tenant shall fail to perform any of its obligations under the Lease after the expiration of any applicable notice and cure
period, or fail to perform any of its obligations under the Lease and transmittal of a default notice or the running of any cure
period is barred or tolled by applicable Law, or fail to perform any of its obligations under the Lease and any applicable notice
and cure period would expire after the expiration of the Letter of Credit, or (b) not less than thirty (30) days before the
scheduled expiration of the Letter of Credit, Tenant has not delivered to Landlord a new Letter of Credit in accordance with
this Exhibit. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, draw on the Letter of
Credit from time to time in the event of a bankruptcy filing by or against Tenant and/or to compensate Landlord, in such order
as Landlord may determine, for all or any part of any unpaid rent, any damages arising from any termination of the Lease in
accordance with the terms of the Lease, and/or any damages arising from any rejection of the Lease in a bankruptcy
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proceeding commenced by or against Tenant. Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, apply the amount so drawn to the
extent necessary to cure Tenant’s failure.

3. Any amount of the Letter of Credit drawn in excess of the amount applied by Landlord to cure any such
failure shall be held by Landlord as a cash security deposit for the performance by Tenant of its obligations under the Lease.
Any cash security deposit may be mingled with other funds of Landlord and no fiduciary relationship shall be created with
respect to such deposit, nor shall Landlord be liable to pay Tenant interest thereon. If Tenant shall fail to perform any of its
obligations under the Lease, Landlord may, but shall not be obliged to, apply the cash security deposit to the extent necessary
to cure Tenant’s failure. After any such application by Landlord of the Letter of Credit or cash security deposit, as the case
may be, Tenant shall reinstate the Letter of Credit to the amount originally required to be maintained under the Lease, upon
demand. Provided that Tenant is not then in default under the Lease, and no condition exists or event has occurred which after
the expiration of any applicable notice or cure period would constitute such a default, within forty five (45) days after the later
to occur of (i) the payment of the final Rent due from Tenant (including without limitation, the reimbursement for removal
costs of the Dedicated Venting System as provided in Section 5 of Exhibit F) or (ii) the later to occur of the Term Expiration
Date or the date on which Tenant surrenders the Premises to Landlord in compliance with Section 19 of the Lease, the Letter of
Credit and any cash security deposit, to the extent not applied, shall be returned to the Tenant, without interest. The Letter of
Credit and/or any cash security deposit held by Landlord as security under the Lease is sometimes referred to in this Exhibit G
as the “Security Deposit.”

4. In the event of a sale of the Building or lease, conveyance or transfer of the entire Building, Landlord shall
transfer the Letter of Credit or cash security deposit to the transferee. Upon such transfer, the transferring Landlord shall be
released by Tenant from all liability for the return of such security, and Tenant agrees to look to the transferee solely for the
return of said security. The provisions hereof shall apply to every transfer or assignment made of the security to such a
transferee. Tenant further covenants that it will not assign or encumber or attempt to assign or encumber the Letter of Credit or
the monies deposited herein as security, and that neither Landlord nor its successors or assigns shall be bound by any
assignment, encumbrance, attempted assignment or attempted encumbrance.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, upon the expiration of the fourth (4™)
Lease Year (the “First Reduction Date”), the Security Deposit shall be reduced to the amount of [***] ($[***]) (the “First
Reduced Security Deposit Amount”), subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 5. Tenant may effect the
reduction of the amount of the Security Deposit to the First Reduced Security Deposit Amount (the “First Reduction”) by
delivering written notice to Landlord (the “First Reduction Notice”) on or after the First Reduction Date requesting such
reduction. If the Security Deposit is in the form of a Letter of Credit, Landlord shall cooperate with Tenant in executing such
documentation as is required by the issuer of the Letter of Credit to effectuate the First Reduction (the “First Reduction
Documentation™). Provided that (i) no Default by Tenant of its monetary or material non-monetary obligations (provided that
Landlord has given Tenant written notice of any Default of a material non-monetary obligation) under this Lease beyond
applicable notice and cure periods exists as of the date Landlord is required to deliver the First Reduction Amount (hereinafter
defined) or the First Reduction Documentation, as applicable, and (ii) this Lease is in full force and effect,
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within thirty (30) days after Landlord’s receipt of the First Reduction Notice on or after the First Reduction Date, (a) if the
Security Deposit is in the form of a cash security deposit, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant the amount of [***] Dollars and
[***] Cents ($[***]) (the “First Reduction Amount”), representing the difference between the amount of the original Security
Deposit deposited hereunder and the First Reduced Security Deposit Amount, or (b) if the Security Deposit is in the form of a
Letter of Credit, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant First Reduction Documentation executed by Landlord. Upon the expiration of
the eighth (8™ Lease Year (the “Second Reduction Date”), the Security Deposit shall be reduced to the amount of [***] and
[***] Dollars ($[***]) (the “Second Reduced Security Deposit Amount”), subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Section 5. Tenant may effect the reduction of the amount of the Security Deposit to the Second Reduced Security Deposit
Amount (the “Second Reduction”) by delivering written notice to Landlord (the “Second Reduction Notice”) on or after the
Second Reduction Date requesting such reduction. If the Security Deposit is in the form of a Letter of Credit, Landlord shall
cooperate with Tenant in executing such documentation as is required by the issuer of the Letter of Credit to effectuate the
Second Reduction (the “Second Reduction Documentation”). Provided that (1) no Default by Tenant of its monetary or
material non-monetary obligations (provided that Landlord has given Tenant written notice of any Default of a material non-
monetary obligation) under this Lease beyond applicable notice and cure periods exists as of the date Landlord is required to
deliver the Second Reduction Amount (hereinafter defined) or the Second Reduction Documentation as applicable, and (2) this
Lease is in full force and effect within thirty (30) days after Landlord’s receipt of the Second Reduction Notice on or after the
Second Reduction Date, (x) if the Security Deposit is in the form of a cash security deposit, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant
the amount of [***] Dollars and [***] Cents ($[***]) (the “Second Reduction Amount”), representing the difference between
the amount of the First Reduced Security Deposit Amount and the amount of the Second Reduced Security Deposit Amount, or
(y) if the Security Deposit is in the form of a Letter of Credit, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant Second Reduction
Documentation executed by Landlord.
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SCHEDULE G
Approved Form of Letter of Credit

[See Attached Form]
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JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.

GLOBAL TRADE SERVICES

131 SOUTH DEARBORN, 5th FLOOR MAIL CODE: IL1-0236
CHICAGO, IL 60603-5506 SWIFT: CHASUS33

Haemonetics Corporation 400 Wood Rd
Braintree, MA 02184-2412

Date : <Date>
Subject : Draft Standby Letter of Credit Our Reference : [ ***]

Dear Sir/Madam,

This Draft Standby Letter of Credit is provided to you at your request and with no obligation on our part despite our assistance in the preparation
of this Draft Standby Letter of Credit. The Draft Standby Letter of Credit is not to be construed as evidence of commitment on our part to issue

such Draft Standby Letter of Credit's in the future.

Quote

IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT Reference No.: [***]

To: Haemonetics Corporation 400 Wood Rd

Braintree, MA 02184-2412 Dear Sir/Madam,

We hereby issue our Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit in your favor.

Your Reference : 125SmrStBostonMA

Beneficiary : OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER (DE) LLC 125 SUMMER STREET
C/O OXFORD BOSTON, MA 02211
Account Party : Haemonetics Corporation 400 Wood Rd

Braintree, MA 02184-2412
Date of Expiry : 15-Nov-2019
Place of Expiry : OUR COUNTER

Amount : USD [*%**]
Applicable Rule : ISP LATEST VERSION

FUNDS UNDER THIS CREDIT ARE AVAILABLE AGAINST PRESENTATION

Date : <Date>

OF THE BENEFICIARYS SIGNED AND DATED STATEMENT REFERENCING OUR LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER [***], STATING THE AMOUNT OF

THE DEMAND AND READING AS FOLLOWS:

THE AMOUNT REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE AND OWING TO US FROM HAEMONETICS CORPORATION (TENANT) UNDER THAT CERTAIN LEASE

DATED ....... ,

INCLUDING ANY AMENDMENTS AND RESTATEMENTS THERETO, BETWEEN TENANT AND OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER (DE) LLC, AS LANDLORD

(THE LEASE)

G-5
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FOR PREMISES LOCATED AT 125 SUMMER ST. BOSTON, MA. OR

WE ARE IN RECEIPT OF NOTICE FROM JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. THAT THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WILL NOT BE EXTENDED BEYOND
(CURRENT EXPIRY DATE) HAEMONETICS CORPORATION (TENANT) HAS

FAILED TO SUPPLY ACCEPTABLE REPLACEMENT SECURITY WITHIN THE TIME FRAME SPECIFIED IN THAT CERTAIN LEASE DATED ............ ,
INCLUDING ANY AMENDMENTS AND RESTATEMENTS THERETO BETWEEN HAEMONETICS CORPORATION AS TENANT AND OPG 125 SUMMER
OWNER (DE) LLC, AS LANDLORD (THE LEASE) FOR PREMISES LOCATED AT 125 SUMMER

ST. BOSTON, MA. WE HEREBY DEMAND THE AMOUNT OF USD.............. UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NO. [***].

IT IS A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT IT SHALL BE

DEEMED AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR ONE YEAR FROM THE PRESENT OR ANY FUTURE EXPIRATION DATE,
UNLESS AT LEAST FORTY-FIVE (45) DAYS PRIOR TO THE THEN CURRENT EXPIRATION DATE

WE SEND NOTICE IN WRITING TO YOU BY RECEIPTED MEANS (COURIER/MESSENGER, REGISTERED/CERTIFIED MAIL OR HAND DELIVERY) AT
THE ABOVE ADDRESS, THAT WE ELECT NOT TO AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND THIS STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT FOR ANY ADDITIONAL PERIOD
(NOTICE OF NON-EXTENSION).

BUT IN ANY EVENT, THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WILL NOT BE AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED BEYOND JULY 31, 2032 (THE FINAL EXPIRATION DATE).

PARTIAL AND MULTIPLE DRAWINGS ARE PERMITTED.

WE FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT UPON RECEIPT OF THE DOCUMENTS REQUIRED HEREIN, WE WILL HONOR YOUR
COMPLYING DRAW(S) AGAINST THIS IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT WITHOUT

INQUIRY INTO THE ACCURACY OF BENEFICIARY'S STATEMENT AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER APPLICANT DISPUTES THE CONTENT OF
SUCH STATEMENT.

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS TRANSFERABLE, BUT ONLY IN ITS

ENTIRETY, AND MAY BE SUCCESSIVELY TRANSFERRED. TRANSFER OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT SHALL BE EFFECTED BY US UPON YOUR
SUBMISSION OF THIS ORIGINAL LETTER OF CREDIT, INCLUDING ALL AMENDMENTS, IF ANY, ACCOMPANIED BY OUR TRANSFER REQUEST
FORM DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED, WITH THE SIGNATURE THEREON AUTHENTICATED BY YOUR BANK, ALONG WITH PAYMENT OF OUR
TRANSFER CHARGES AS INDICATED THEREIN. FAILURE BY THE ACCOUNT PARTY TO PAY THE TRANSFER FEE SHALL NOT AFFECT THE
VALIDITY OF THE TRANSFER. IF YOU WISH TO TRANSFER THE LETTER OF CREDIT, PLEASE CONTACT US FOR THE FORM WHICH WE SHALL
PROVIDE TO YOU UPON YOUR REQUEST. IN ANY EVENT, THIS LETTER OF CREDIT MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY
LISTED IN OR OTHERWISE SUBJECT TO, ANY SANCTION OR EMBARGO UNDER ANY APPLICABLE RESTRICTIONS. CHARGES AND FEES
RELATED TO SUCH TRANSFER WILL BE FOR THE ACCOUNT OF THE APPLICANT.
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THIS LETTER OF CREDIT MAY BE CANCELLED PRIOR TO EXPIRATION PROVIDED THE ORIGINAL LETTER OF CREDIT (AND AMENDMENTS, IF
ANY) ARE RETURNED TO US TOGETHER WITH A STATEMENT SIGNED BY THE BENEFICIARY STATING THAT THE ATTACHED LETTER OF CREDIT
IS NO LONGER REQUIRED AND IS BEING RETURNED TO THE ISSUING BANK FOR CANCELLATION.

WE ENGAGE WITH YOU THAT PRESENTATIONS MADE UNDER AND IN CONFORMITY WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS CREDIT WILL
BE DULY HONORED ON PRESENTATION IF PRESENTED ON OR BEFORE THE EXPIRATION AT OUR COUNTERS AT 131 SOUTH DEARBORN, 5TH
FLOOR, MAIL CODE IL1-0236, CHICAGO, IL 60603-5506, ATTN: STANDBY LETTER

OF CREDIT UNIT. ALL PAYMENTS DUE HEREUNDER SHALL BE MADE BY WIRE TRANSFER TO THE BENEFICIARYS ACCOUNT PER THEIR
INSTRUCTIONS. ALL DOCUMENTS PRESENTED MUST BE IN ENGLISH

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, AND, TO THE
INTERNATIONAL STANDBY PRACTICES, ICC PUBLICATION NO. 590 (THE ISP98), AND IN THE EVENT OF ANY CONFLICT, THE LAWS OF THE
STATE

OF NEW YORK WILL CONTROL, WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OF LAWS.

PLEASE ADDRESS ALL CORRESPONDENCE REGARDING THIS LETTER OF CREDIT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT
UNIT, [***] INCLUDING THE LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER MENTIONED ABOVE.

All inquiries regarding this transaction may be directed to our Client Service Group at the following Telephone Number or Email Address quoting our reference
Telephone Number: [**%*]

Email Address: [***]

Yours Faithfully,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,

Authorized Signature

Unquote

All inquiries regarding this transaction may be directed to our Client Service Group at the following Telephone Number or Email Address quoting our reference
Telephone Number; [**%*]

Email Address: [***]

We hereby agree with the format/language of the above drafted Standby Letter of Credit, and we request JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. to issue the
Standby Letter of Credit, as above drafted and it forms an Integral part of our application.

Obligor Name: __
Authorised Signature: __
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Name and Title:
Date:
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EXHIBIT H

SUBORDINATITON, NON-DISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT

This Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is dated as of , 201,
by and among Midland National Life Insurance Company, an Iowa corporation (together with its successors and assigns,
“Lender”), Haemonetics Corporation, a Massachusetts corporation, (“Tenant”), and OPG 125 Summer Owner (DE) LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”).

RECITALS

A. Tenant is the tenant under a certain lease agreement with Landlord (the “Lease”) dated as of December, 2018, of the
premises described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Property”), together with the buildings and
improvements now existing or hereafter constructed on the Property and the equipment and fixtures attached to such buildings and
improvements (collectively, the “Premises”).

B.  This Agreement is being entered into in connection with a mortgage loan (the “Loan”) from Lender to Landlord,
evidenced by a note from Landlord (the “Note”) and secured by, inter alia: (a) a first Mortgage and Security Agreement
encumbering the Premises (the “Indenture”) from Landlord dated as of December 15, 2014 and recorded with the Suffolk County
Registry of Deeds (the “Land Records™) in Book 53845, Page 227; and (b) an Assignment of Leases and Rents (the “Assignment
of Leases and Rents”) dated as of December 15, 2014 and recorded among the Land Records in Book 53845, Page 254. The
Indenture and the Assignment of Leases and Rents are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Security Documents”.

AGREEMENT

For mutual consideration, including the mutual covenants and agreements set forth below, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Subordination;_Lender Election. Tenant agrees that the Lease is and shall be, at the option of Lender upon notice to
Tenant, at any time and from time to time, either subject and subordinate, or superior, to the Security Documents and to all present
or future advances under the obligations secured thereby and all renewals, amendments, modifications, consolidations,
replacements and extensions of the secured obligations and the Security Documents, to the full extent of all amounts secured by the
Security Documents from time to time. Such options of Lender may be exercised an unlimited number of times. If subordinated,
said subordination is to have the same force and effect as if the Security Documents and such renewals, modifications,
consolidations, replacements and extensions thereof had been executed, acknowledged, delivered and recorded prior to the Lease,
any amendments or modifications thereof and any memorandum or short form thereof (and without Lender having any knowledge
of the Lease). This Agreement shall constitute notice to Tenant that for the time being, until further written notice to the contrary,
Lender elects that the Lease is and shall be subject and subordinate to the Security Documents. In addition, to the extent that the
Lease shall entitle Tenant to notice of any mortgage, this Agreement shall constitute such notice to Tenant with respect to the
Indenture.
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2. Non-Disturbance. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1, Lender agrees that, if Lender exercises any of its rights
under the Security Documents, including an entry by Lender pursuant to the Indenture or a foreclosure of, or exercise of any power
of sale under, the Indenture or any sale or transfer in lieu thereof, Lender will not disturb Tenant’s right of quiet possession of the
Premises under the terms of the Lease and shall recognize the terms of the Lease subject to the rights of the Landlord thereunder for
any default by Tenant.

3. Attornment, Etc. Tenant agrees that, in the event of a foreclosure of the Indenture or the acceptance of a conveyance in
lieu of foreclosure by Lender or any other succession of Lender to ownership of Landlord’s interest in the Premises, Tenant will
attorn to and recognize Lender as its landlord under the Lease for the remainder of the term of the Lease (including all extension
periods which have been or are hereafter exercised) upon the same terms and conditions as are set forth in the Lease, and, provided
only that Tenant shall have received written notice from Lender or Lender’s designee that Lender has succeeded to the interest of
Landlord under the Lease or otherwise has the right to receive rents and require Tenant to perform its obligations under the Lease
and the recognition and non-disturbance for such successor of the Lease, Tenant hereby agrees to pay and perform all of the
obligations of Tenant pursuant to the Lease. Such attornment shall be effective and self-operative, without the execution of any
further instrument on the part of any of the parties hereto, immediately upon Lender succeeding to Landlord’s interest in the
Premises. Upon the written request of either Lender or Tenant to the other given on or after any such foreclosure, acceptance of a
conveyance in lieu of foreclosure or other succession of Lender or to ownership of Landlord’s interest in the Premises, Lender, as
landlord, and Tenant, as tenant, shall execute a lease of the Premises containing, subject to the terms hereof, all of the same terms,
provisions, options and conditions as are contained in the Lease between Landlord and Tenant, which lease shall be for the then
unexpired portion of the term of the Lease.

4. Lender Not Bound, Etc. Tenant agrees that, in the event Lender succeeds to the interest of Landlord under the Lease,
Lender shall not be:

(a) Liable for Landlord Acts, Omissions. Liable for any act or omission of any prior Landlord (including, without
limitation, the then-defaulting Landlord), or

(b)  Subject to Defenses. Subject to any defense or offsets which Tenant may have against any prior Landlord
(including, without limitation, the then-defaulting Landlord), or

(c) Bound by Advance Payments. Bound by any payment of “Base Rent” or “Additional Rent” (as such terms are
defined in the Lease) which Tenant might have paid for more than one month in advance of the due date under the Lease to any
prior Landlord (including, without limitation, the then-defaulting Landlord) except to the extent such monies actually have been
received by Lender, or

(d) Bound by Prior Payment Obligations. Bound by any obligation of any prior Landlord to make any payment to
Tenant which was required to be made, or arose from any circumstance which occurred, prior to the time Lender succeeded to any
such prior Landlord’s interest, or
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(e) Accountable for Monies Not Received. Accountable for any monies deposited with any prior Landlord
(including security deposits), except to the extent such monies are actually received by Lender, or

(f) Bound by Amendments, Etc. Bound by any amendment or modification of the Lease for which Lender has not
given its written consent or by any waiver or forbearance on the part of any prior Landlord (including, without limitation, the then-
defaulting Landlord) made or given without the written consent of Lender; or

(g) Liable for Warranties, Etc. Liable with respect to warranties or indemnities of any nature whatsoever made by
any prior Landlord (including, without limitation, the then- defaulting Landlord), including any warranties or indemnities regarding
use, compliance with zoning, hazardous wastes or environmental laws, Landlord’s title, Landlord’s authority, habitability, fitness
for purpose, or possession.

In the event that Lender shall acquire title to the Premises, Lender shall have no obligation, nor incur any liability, beyond Lender’s
then equity interest, if any, in the Premises, and Tenant shall look exclusively to such equity interest of Lender, if any, in the
Premises for the payment and discharge of any obligations or liability imposed upon Lender hereunder, under the Lease or under
any new lease of the Premises.

5. Lender’s Cure Rights. Tenant hereby agrees to give to Lender copies of all notices of Landlord default(s) under the
Lease in the same manner as, and whenever, Tenant shall give any such notice of default to Landlord, and no such notice of default
shall be deemed given to Landlord unless and until a copy of such notice shall have been so delivered to Lender. Tenant shall
accept performance by Lender of any term, covenant, condition or agreement to be performed by Landlord under the Lease with the
same force and effect as though performed by Landlord. Lender’s cure of Landlord’s default shall not be considered an assumption
by Lender of Landlord’s obligations with respect to the subject matter of such Landlord default or of any other obligations of
Landlord under the Lease. If, in curing any such default, Lender requires access to the Premises to effect such cure, Tenant shall
furnish access to the Premises to Lender as required by Lender to effect such cure at all reasonable times; provided that Tenant’s
occupancy, use and enjoyment of the Premises is not unreasonably disrupted thereby. Unless Lender otherwise agrees in writing,
Lender shall have no liability to perform Landlord’s obligations under the Lease, both before and after Lender’s exercise of any
right or remedy under this Agreement. No Landlord default under the Lease shall exist or shall be deemed to exist (i) as long as
Lender, in good faith, shall have commenced to cure such default within the above-referenced time period and shall be prosecuting
the same to completion with reasonable diligence, subject to force majeure, or (ii) if possession of the Premises is required in order
to cure such default, or if such default is not susceptible of being cured by Lender, as long as Lender, in good faith, shall have
notified Tenant that Lender intends to institute proceedings under the Security Documents, and, thereafter, as long as such
proceedings shall have been instituted and shall be prosecuted with reasonable diligence. In the event of the termination of the
Lease by reason of any default thereunder by Landlord (provided nothing herein shall be construed as creating, giving rise to,
acknowledging or recognizing any such termination right on Tenant’s part) or as a result of a rejection of the Lease following
Landlord’s bankruptcy, upon Lender’s written request, which must be given (if at all) within thirty (30) days after any such
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termination or rejection, Tenant, within fifteen (15) days after receipt of such request, and within thirty (30) days after Lender
becomes owner of Landlord’s interest in the Premises, shall execute and deliver to Lender or its designee or nominee a new lease of
the Premises for the remainder of the term of the Lease upon all of the terms, covenants and conditions of the Lease, subject,
however, to the curing of the default giving rise to such termination (unless such default is not susceptible to a cure by Lender, its
designee or nominee). Neither Lender nor its designee or nominee shall become liable under the Lease unless and until Lender or
its designee or nominee becomes, and then only with respect to periods during which Lender or its designee or nominee becomes,
the owner of Landlord’s interest in the Premises. Lender shall have the right, without Tenant’s consent but subject to the provisions
of this Agreement, to foreclose, or exercise any power of sale under, the Indenture or to accept a conveyance in lieu of foreclosure
of the Indenture or to exercise any other remedies under the Security Documents.

6. Lender’s Consent Required. Tenant agrees that it will remain obligated under the Lease in accordance with its terms
and without the prior written consent of Lender as determined in Lender’s sole discretion, and neither Landlord nor Tenant may (a)
amend, modify, or waive any provision of the Lease, or (b) terminate, cancel or surrender the Lease except in accordance with the
express provisions of the Lease, or enter into any agreement to do so. Tenant also agrees that it will not sublease any or all of the
Property unless in accordance with the terms of the Lease or pay any installment of Basic Rent or Additional Rent under the Lease
more than one month in advance of the due date thereof or otherwise than in the manner provided for in the Lease. Tenant further
agrees that it shall not take any action to terminate (except as expressly permitted by the Lease), rescind or avoid the Lease,
notwithstanding any action with respect to the Tenant which may be taken by any trustee or receiver of Landlord or of any assignee
of Landlord or by any court in any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or
other proceeding affecting Landlord or any assignee of Landlord. Any of the aforementioned actions by Tenant (or Landlord)
without Lender’s prior written consent shall be void. Tenant agrees that no prepayment of Basic Rent or Additional Rent paid under
the Lease more than one month in advance, no amendment or modification of the Lease, no surrender or cancellation of the Lease
(except in accordance with the express provisions thereof), and no waiver or consent by Landlord under the terms of the Lease,
shall be binding upon or as against Lender, as holder of the Security Documents, and as Landlord under the Lease if it succeeds to
that position, unless consented to in writing by Lender. Tenant acknowledges and agrees that the Security Documents contain
provisions requiring Landlord to obtain Lender’s consent for any matter requiring Landlord’s consent under the Lease. Where
Lender’s consent is specifically required under the Lease, unless otherwise provided therein, Lender may withhold its consent in its
sole and absolute discretion.

7. Intentionally Omitted.

8. Consent to Assignment, Etc. Tenant has no knowledge of any prior assignment or pledge of the rents accruing under the
Lease by Landlord. Tenant hereby consents to the Assignment of Leases and Rents. Tenant acknowledges that the interest of the
Landlord under the Lease is to be assigned to Lender solely as security for the purposes specified in said assignment, and Lender
shall have no duty, liability or obligation whatsoever under the Lease or any extension or renewal thereof, either by virtue of said
assignment or by any subsequent
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receipt or collection of rents thereunder, unless Lender shall specifically undertake such liability in writing.

9. Assignment of Lease to Lender.

(a) Tenant hereby confirms that it has notice that pursuant to the Assignment of Leases and Rents, Landlord has
assigned to Lender all of Landlord’s interest in and to the Lease, and that all Basic Rent or Additional Rent and any other rent or
payments payable to Landlord under the Lease shall be paid when due directly by Tenant to Landlord until Tenant receives written
direction from Lender. Tenant hereby agrees, upon written notice, to pay all such rent and other sums due under the Lease to
Lender in accordance with the Lender’s written notice. By executing and delivering this Agreement, Tenant hereby confirms (i) that
any notice required to be given by Lender to Tenant under the Lease for the purpose of granting rights to mortgagees under the
Lease are fully satisfied, and (ii) that Tenant will provide Lender with a duplicate copy of any notice given by Tenant to Landlord,
in accordance with the notice provisions set forth in Section 12 below.

(b) Tenant agrees and acknowledges that the interest of Landlord in the Lease has been assigned to Lender for the
purposes specified in the Assignment of Leases and Rents only and that, subject to the terms hereof, the Lender assumes no
obligation, duty or liability under the Lease.

10. Inspections, Etc. Upon a default under the Lease beyond any applicable notice and/or cure period (a “Lease Default”),
and during the continuation of such Lease Default, Tenant agrees that Lender and/or Landlord shall have the right to inspect the
books and records of Tenant relating to the operation of the Premises, as well as the financial statements of Tenant, at Tenant’s
office during normal business hours and upon not less than three (3) business days notice. In connection with any such examination
by Lender and/or Landlord, Lender and/or Landlord agrees to treat, and to instruct their respective employees, accountants and
agents to treat, all information as confidential and not to disclose it to any other person except (i) to Lender and/or Landlord and
their respective employees, professionals and consultants on a “need to know” basis, (ii) as may be required by law, and (iii) in
connection with any litigation or arbitration under this Agreement or the Lease. In addition, upon the occurrence and during the
continuation of a Lease Default, Tenant agrees to permit Lender and/or Landlord and Lender’s and/or Landlord’s representatives
access to, and an opportunity to inspect, the Premises during normal business hours and upon reasonable notice.

11.  Authority of Signatory. If Tenant is a corporation, each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of such
corporation represents and warrants that such individual is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of such
corporation, in accordance with a duly adopted resolution of the Board of Directors of such corporation or in accordance with the
by-laws of said corporation, and that this Agreement is binding upon such corporation in accordance with its terms. If Tenant is a
partnership, each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of said partnership represents and warrants that such individual is
duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of such partnership in accordance with the partnership agreement
for such partnership.
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12. Notices. Any notice, election, communication, request or other document or demand required or permitted under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered on the earlier to occur of (a) receipt or (b) the date of delivery, refusal
or non-delivery indicated on the return receipt, if deposited in a United States Postal Service Depository, postage prepaid, sent
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or if sent via a recognized commercial courier service providing for a receipt,
addressed to Tenant or Lender, as the case may be, at the following addresses:

If to Tenant:

Haemonetics Corporation

125 Summer Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02110

Attention: SVP-Global Business Services

with a copy to:

Haemonetics Corporation
125 Summer Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02110
Attention: General Counsel

If to Landlord:

OPG 125 Summer Owner DE LLC
c/o Oxford Properties Group

125 Summer Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02110
Attention: Property Manager

with a copy to:

OPG 125 Summer Owner DE LLC
c/o Oxford Properties Group

125 Summer Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02110
Attention: Director, Legal

If to Lender:

MIDLAND NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY, an Iowa Corporation
One Sammons Plaza

Sioux Falls, South Dakota 57193

Fax: 605-373-2752

Attn: Mortgage Accounting

with a copy to:
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MIDLAND NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
c/o Guggenheim Commercial Real Estate Finance, LLC
3414 Peachtree Road NE, Suite 975

Atlanta, GA 30326

Phone: 404-481-2084

Attn: Eugene Ansley, Jr.

Cohen Financial

Loan Administration Service Center
4601 College Blvd., Suite 300
Leawood, KS 66211

Fax: 866-315-6202

Phone: 866-315-6212

email: loanadmin@cohenfinancial.com

From time to time any party may designate a new address for purposes of notice hereunder to each of the other parties hereto.
13. Miscellaneous.

(@) The term “Lender” as used herein includes any successors or assigns of the Lender named herein, including
without limitation, any co-lender at the time of making the Loan, any purchaser at a foreclosure sale and any transferee pursuant to
a conveyance in lieu of foreclosure, and their successors and assigns, and the term “Tenant” as used herein includes the Tenant
named herein (the “Original Tenant”) and any successors or assigns of the Original Tenant.

(b) If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such provision shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary to be enforceable, or if such modification is not practicable, such
provision shall be deemed deleted from this Agreement, and the other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect.

(c) Neither this Agreement nor any of the terms hereof may be terminated, amended, supplemented, waived or
modified orally, but only by an instrument in writing executed by the party against which enforcement of the termination,
amendment, supplement, waiver or modification is sought.

(d)  This Assignment shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the state in which the
Property is located (the “State”) and the laws of the United States applicable to transactions in the State.

(e) Time is of the essence.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGES]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lender has executed and ensealed this Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment
Agreement, as of the day and year first above written.

LENDER:
MIDLAND NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY, an lowa corporation

By: Guggenheim Partners Investment Management, LLC, as Investment Adviser for
Midland National Life Insurance Company

By:
William Bennett, Managing Director

STATE OF )

) SS:

COUNTY OF )

Onthis___ day of , 201__ before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared
William Bennett, known to me or properly identified to be the person who signed the foregoing instrument as Managing Director of
Guggenheim Partners Investment Management, LL.C, in its capacity as Investment Adviser for Midland National Life Insurance
Company (the “Company”), which Company is named therein as “Lender”, who, being by me first duly sworn, acknowledged to
me that they executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of the Company, as their and its free and voluntary act and deed for the
purpose set forth therein.

Notary Public

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGES]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Tenant has executed and ensealed this Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment
Agreement, as of the day and year first above written.

TENANT:

HAEMONETICS CORPORATION,
a Massachusetts corporation

By:
Name: Christopher Simon
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
COUNTY OF NORFOLK

On this _____ day of December, 2018, before me the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared
personally known to me (or provided to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the
instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument as their free act and deed an the
free act and deed of Haemonetics Corporation.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord has executed and ensealed this Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment
Agreement, as of the day and year first above written.

LANDLORD:

OPG 125 SUMMER OWNER (DE) LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:
Name:
Title:
By:
Name:
Title:
STATE OF )
) SS:
COUNTY OF )
On this day of December, 2018 before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared
, known to me or properly identified to be the person who signed the foregoing instrument as of OPG 125

Summer Owner (DE) LLC (the “Company”), which Company is named therein as “Landlord”, who, being by me first duly sworn,
acknowledged to me that they executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of the Company, as their and its free and voluntary act
and deed for the purpose set forth therein.

Notary Public
STATE OF )
) SS:
COUNTY OF )
On this day of December, 2018 before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared
, known to me or properly identified to be the person who signed the foregoing instrument as of OPG 125

Summer Owner (DE) LLC (the “Company”), which Company is named therein as “Landlord”, who, being by me first duly sworn,
acknowledged to me that they executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of the Company, as their and its free and voluntary act
and deed for the purpose set forth therein.

Notary Public

[***]Confidential treatment has been requested



Exhibit A

Real property in the City of Boston, County of Suffolk, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, described as follows:

Parcel 1

That certain parcel of land with the buildings thereon in Boston, Suffolk County, Massachusetts shown on a plan entitled “Plan of
Land, Boston, Mass.” dated September 17, 1984 prepared by Harry R. Feldman, Inc., Revised January 24, 1985, recorded with
Suffolk Registry of Deeds on February 1, 1985 with Instrument No 227, in Book 11385, Page 112, bounded and described

according to said plan as follows:

Northerly by Summer Street by three lines measuring twenty-seven and 19/100 (27.19) feet, sixty-one and 22/100 (61.22) feet and
one hundred three and 92/100 (103.92) feet;

Easterly by South Street one hundred seventeen and 48/100 (117.48) feet;
Southerly by land now or formerly of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts one hundred seven and 89/100 (107.89) feet;
Easterly by said land now or formerly of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts fifty-eight and 47/100 (58.47) feet;

Southerly by land now or formerly of Myer C. & Frances Handle and Charlotta Rosenberg, Trustees by three lines measuring forty-
two and 56/100 (42.56) feet, 21/100 (0.21) feet and thirty-seven and 98/100 (37.98) feet;

Westerly by Lincoln Street one hundred eighty-four and 48/100 (184.48) feet.

Parcel 11

A certain parcel of land located in Boston, Suffolk County, Massachusetts, known and numbered as 34-38 Lincoln Street and
shown as Parcel 15-RT-5 on a plan of land shown on an Order of Taking from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts for the
Department of Public Works dated December 22, 1954 and recorded on December 24, 1954 in the Suffolk Registry of Deeds, Book
7020, Page 271, said parcel being more particularly bounded and described as follows:

Westerly by Lincoln Street - 19 feet;

Northerly by property now or formerly of 30 Lincoln Street Trust - 81 feet; and

Southeasterly to Southwesterly in three courses - 1700 feet, 46.60 feet, and by an arc with the length of 40.83 feet and a radius of
20 feet, all as shown on said Plan.

Address: 125 Summer Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02110
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EXHIBIT I
TENANT’S APPROVED SIGNAGE
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EXHIBIT I-1

TENANT’S APPROVED LOGO

- I I
HAEMONETICS®
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Christopher Simon, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Haemonetics Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

2/5/2019

/s/ Christopher Simon

Christopher Simon, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, William Burke, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Haemonetics Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

2/5/2019

/s/ William Burke

William Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant To
18 USC. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant To
Section 906 of the Sarbanes/Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Haemonetics Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 29, 2018 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Christopher Simon, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code, that this Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

2/5/2019

/s/ Christopher Simon

Christopher Simon,
President and Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature
that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Haemonetics and will be
retained by Haemonetics and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant To
18 USC. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant To
Section 906 of the Sarbanes/Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Haemonetics Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 29, 2018 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William Burke, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code, that this Report fully complies with the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

2/5/2019
/s/ William Burke

William Burke,
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature
that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Haemonetics and will be
retained by Haemonetics and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



